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Having said that, the idea was to let's start with a couple of things that would have to be in place 853

first.  854

One, would be to make sure that the developer and the neighbors aren't spending any more 855

money, at least for 30 days on this. Why don't we see if there's any good faith at all involved on 856

both sides, just standing down on the litigation? Don't abandon it. Don't give up any rights that 857

you have, but just don't expend more money on pursuing motions and depositions and things 858

until we have this 30-day period to try and get a deal.859

During that period of time, it would be a different deal. I wouldn't be there. If people don't want 860

me there, I'm more than happy to not be there. And we would have our Planning Department sit 861

down and work and see if the developer and the neighbors could work out things that specifically 862

addressed (sic) the density in Area 3, which is tied to the setbacks, which addresses the idea of 863

shifting densities, possibly to Areas 1 and 2, to create more opportunity for amenities in Area 3, 864

which talk about traffic, which talk about schools, which talk about a lot of issues that have 865

come up. And I could stand up here for another half hour going through this list.  866

And then, assuming that that may not work, and that's probably a half-good assumption, given 867

what's happened for the last year and a half, there would also be a separate effort, and that effort 868

would be on staff working with no one to say, if we didn't have to reach a compromise between 869

neighbors and the developer, what do we think, as a professional planning staff, a development 870

agreement could look like that addresses those things and even more. And on that, we would 871

talk, obviously, with the Councilman who represents the area, and we would talk with – other 872

people that are familiar with the impacts out there. That was the plan.  873

And that would have given you an option four. Because you have four options: You vote it up. 874

You vote it down. You continue it, or this option four that I just talked about. And so staff’s just 875

trying to be, for want of a better word, nimble and stay on our toes to give you different options 876

for how you might want to address this.  877

When we found out today that there's not gonna be a stand down on behalf of the lawyers, I very 878

candidly said, and I'll say it out loud, if we can't get that far, I – don't have much hope that 30 879

days of sitting down and talking again is gonna make any difference at all. And, so having said 880
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that, I work for you, Mayor and Council, and I'll do whatever you instruct me to do, but that's the 881

report as where they're at. 882

I also would just like to put for the record, I didn't produce a presentation here on the golf course. 883

A constituent in Badlands sent the Mayor a package of photos, and just before the meeting the 884

Mayor asked me if photos existed of before and after, and I said, I'm aware that they do, because 885

they were sent to me by the Mayor, so I retrieved them and brought them down in response to 886

your request. 887

 888 

MAYOR GOODMAN889

Thank you. So, today's option, after we go through the rest of the process here, because of, I 890

don't remember your exact words, but the failure to get this month of breathing room without any 891

legal advice, involvement, litigation, whatever, your assessment, having gone to all these 892

meetings, is if we can't move that, it's an up or down today? 893

 894 

BRAD JERBIC895

I think that that's obviously your call. I still think there’s, if – you want to continue, for the 896

reasons that Councilwoman indicated, a lack of familiarity with the agreement, new information 897

coming to you at the last minute, or things, those are – things I'm not going to interfere with your 898

decision making. But if it's to get an agreement, I just don't think that's realistic. 899

 900 

MAYOR GOODMAN901

Okay. The other piece I wanted to ask because we – 902

 903 

BRAD JERBIC904

I mean, other than what’s before you now.  905

 906 

MAYOR GOODMAN907

Okay. We did hear from Councilman Seroka, who's new, but we have a distaff down there, our 908

lovely Councilwoman Fiore. And do you feel, are you comfortable with the information you 909
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have, thus far, in making, I mean, you are not allowed to abstain on these things, unless you have 910

a vested interest? 911

912

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE913

Okay. So, as we've been through this process, and as I've met with Mr. Binion, and I've met with 914

the developers and I've met with many, many people that live in the Badlands, and I have my 915

own issue in Ward 6 with a golf course, what I see is if we push this issue today the way that our 916

attorney, Mr. Jerbic, had, you know, given us these options, I'm just concerned with three things 917

that I spoke with the Badlands' residents with, and that's the quality of life, keeping the property 918

values, and how the construction would impede in the access.  919

Those are my three biggest concerns to make sure that the Badlands residents have. Those were 920

my three big issues, and those are the things that I gave my word on that I would fight for. And 921

as I, as a brand new Councilwoman, sit here and look at property values, especially for some 922

folks that aren't moving out of Badlands, they're staying there till they die, and they're building. 923

So with a dead golf course or with a golf course that's full of desert, with no, like what's 924

happening, those property values are not gonna come up.  925

So, if I were to vote to kill this today, I would be, basically, not committing to my obligation to 926

make sure that the Badlands property values stay up. In order for me to make sure that all parties 927

here will get along, and now this is only my second Council meeting, and we're getting up to 928

speed on this, I would definitely request 30 more days, because if we vote the wrong way today, 929

it's gonna impact your lives for the next decade or two. If we do not fix the golf course issue, if 930

we do not make the south entrance pretty, if we do not increase those property values, we're all 931

in trouble.932

So I really think, you guys have been battling for two years, and I'm sorry, but egos aside, 933

pettiness aside, put your egos away for a minute and give us 30 days. Why? Because if the 934

developer walks away, the property values, we're done. Badlands is done. Okay? That's my 935

biggest concern.936

My promise to the residents of Badlands was three things: keeping those property values, the 937

quality of life, and what is the construction going to, the access. How is it going to impede on my 938
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friend Jack Binion's life? So, with those three promises, I cannot today vote up or down. I really 939

request 30 days. 940

941

MAYOR GOODMAN942

Okay. Councilman, I see your finger, please.  943

 944 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN945

Thank you. My finger was twitching. Thank you. I have been the beneficiary of following this 946

for two and a half years since the first meeting I had with the developer at a coffee shop on 947

Rancho and Charleston. And, the map pretty much looks the same as it did then. There have 948

been concessions made by the developer. They are, I think, naturally occurring kinds of 949

concessions you would make when you're trying to do something.  950

The – investment base here is not a whole lot of money, actually. I know that the, they spent 951

more than $10 million to buy this land. It was a land play, you know, basically, not knowing for 952

sure if they would get permission to build. They found a cheap piece of land, and they bought it. 953

And, that's their score, and that's a good thing, that’s a good business move.  954

But you have to be careful about all those kinds of things, ‘cause you do need permission to do a 955

lot of things in this Valley and you have for a century. So it isn't just like you can come in and 956

change and wow the Council and say: Well, everything is gonna move aside for us because we're 957

big and we can do this, ‘cause look at the houses we've built.  958

Now it isn't that way, because the houses that are built already in there deserve consideration. 959

The people in there deserve consideration. And I know a lot of them, it's true, having grown up 960

in this town. But having grown up in this town, it also causes me to be upset, in a personal way, 961

about what, what's happened here. I gotta tell you, Mayor, that I do support some sort of 962

development agreement. I do. But not this one, though. I just can't see this one either. 963

Nine months ago, I met with the developers two times at their invitation. And I gave them what I 964

thought was a reasonable way to go, from my standpoint, to get my vote, which would have been 965

a combination building, and actually pretty high density, but because of an appearance sake, they 966
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didn't want to venture into any kind of drawings even to explore my idea. So they cast that aside 967

by just ignorance, not ignorance. I should say they ignored it or benign neglected it. 968

And, so, we had meetings at the first of the year, still no progress. Then an election came along. 969

And I had been hearing about all of the tales that the homeowners had been saying about stories 970

they'd been getting from the developer, this changes, that changes, nothing consistent, and – 971

almost like a mean character. Well, I didn't understand that either, because I wasn't the 972

beneficiary of this kind of an attitude from the developer. They were just here trying to make a 973

buck.974

But anyway, in that meeting in November that we had, a Council meeting, I brought up, and the 975

developer was kind enough to bring up an aerial photo of this land before it was Peccole 976

property. It was natural land. It had a, some arroyos with growth in them, which meant it was 977

supporting fauna, not just the flora that was growing there, but the fauna.978

And then you look at what the Peccole people had done, and that is, they had developed that land 979

to the fullest extent possible, preserving the desert landscape, the natural scape, the life of the 980

desert. To me, that was important, and yet it still could be developed if you paid attention to 981

some of those things that had been done before.  982

And I, this new developer scoffed at that. In fact, I think one of the developer's family (sic) came 983

up here and scoffed at me and said: Well, you have, all you care about is trees. Well, I guess we 984

could have added rabbits and squirrels of all kinds unique to the desert. We could have added all 985

kinds of life then. But that was then. Now you see they're dying, because of the, frankly, 986

inappropriate action, I think, of an ambitious developer. And I think if they curbed their ambition 987

some and got a little more friendly with the homeowners, maybe, just maybe we could get to a 988

development agreement.  989

Well, Your Honor, I got a really nice peak at the character of the developers, though, back in 990

March, when they started a slander campaign against me –, saying that I was anti-Semitic, that I 991

was, it was impossible for me to make a decision here. I, it was not possible for me to vote, and I 992

should recuse myself, because I didn't like Jews, because the developer, one of them at least, is 993

Jewish.994
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And I told you about my youth here, growing up in this desert. For 60, in those, 65 years ago and 995

all my youth here, I had basically no religious outlook on my friends. We were all Catholics, 996

Jews, and Mormons. I didn't even know what a Protestant was. And so, we grew up like each 997

other, without religious or racial barriers, without any of those things, and – that's the way I've 998

lived my life ever since, from 9 years old at age, well, 1951 up until today. And it was a real 999

mortal blow to me to be accused of this.  1000

And then, when the campaign, not only through the campaign that was ensuing, but the 1001

developer's agents, paid employees of the developers, fanning the flames, proceeded to even 1002

further accuse me of anti-Semitism and reported me to the FBI, because I had a closed mind or 1003

something. FBI. I thought the only FBI file I had was when I applied to work for the FBI when I 1004

got out of high school and when I worked at the test site. 1005

So you see, I have had a really interesting look into the dark side of this development group. But 1006

every dark side can have a good side, too. Well, we all know about Star Wars, right? There can 1007

be a flip side to a dark side. And I'll wager even this developer can develop new ways.  1008

I'm a believer in redemption. I'm a believer in people losing their temper and saying things that 1009

are untrue. Slander, naturally has occurred here, but I'm willing to say that if they would just 1010

think about what they did to me and then consider that this is my opinion of what they've been 1011

doing to the dwellers here, then I – can't see anything but the developer, the dwellers' side. It's 1012

hard not to not feel as if this is the crap that they've been getting all this time.  1013

Congressman (sic) Berkley called me a couple of days ago on another matter, and she said: Boy, 1014

I can't believe they accused you of being an anti-Semite. I've known you seen we were in 1015

college. And she lives in Queensridge. And by the way, she's not totally opposed to the deal. I 1016

mean, she’s, she would like to see the people work together, as I would, and as you do, Mayor. 1017

And your intention today is honorable. It's the best kind of intention.  1018

If I was at one of these warring parties, though, I would not be anywhere without my lawyers. I 1019

just think, at this time, you know, it's so far gone. You can't make a statement without it being 1020

part of a record. So consequently, developer, keep your lawyers. This is a full employment act 1021

for them, but you need them, and you need them over here, too. But frankly, I don't think our 1022
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staff should be involved anymore. And maybe that doesn't jive with what you thought, Your 1023

Honor.1024

Because what's happened is the perception of our staff being involved, from the City Attorney on 1025

down, through Planning and Code (sic), all of them, Engineering, has been that they looked. It 1026

just, unfortunately, had the appearance of looking like they were on the developer's side, because 1027

they were trying to help –, trying to get a compromise. 1028

Well, a compromise is, from the dwellers' point of view, that's a give. That's a give from a zero 1029

position. They had their position. They had their land. They had their rights. They had their 1030

lifestyle. An interloper comes in and wants to do something else. Well, okay, everything he 1031

makes naturally will be a compromise from the initial proposal, because everything he does is 1032

still a, it’s a sum game. You can't lose if you're the developer. You trade it down until you get 1033

something you like, and you still make money, maybe less than before. 1034

But, Your Honor, that's why I hesitate to have our staff involved any more in this. I think it's up 1035

to the seven of us to decide. And if it goes to court, fine. The court is used to civil fights like this. 1036

They know how to measure blame. They know how to wage, you know, weigh damages. They 1037

also, I think, think fairly, too, in these courts here in Clark County. And so, I – don't think we 1038

have anything to fear by going to court, frankly. So that's my two cents and a half. And, you 1039

know, I'm ready to vote on it. 1040

 1041 

MAYOR GOODMAN1042

Well, we have public hearing yet. So I just — 1043

 1044 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1045

Okay. Maybe put it that way. Let's put it that way. That's the background in which I approach 1046

hearing everything and voting. 1047

 1048 

MAYOR GOODMAN1049

Thank you. Okay. At this point then, what I'd like to do is go ahead, hear from the public. If you 1050

have something that is new to add, please feel free to share it. But as you've heard with this two-1051
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year process, we've gone through, I think we've heard just about everything. And so, I'm gonna 1052

set the time for everybody at a – minute. And, if anybody does want to respond from the legal 1053

staff from either side, we'll raise that to the three-minute level, and that will be it.  1054

But from any resident or anybody else who'd like to speak, now again, I have Gordon Culp, I 1055

have David Gomez, I have Ronald Iversen, Debbie Kaner, Dale, I did this before and I'm sorry, 1056

Roesener, it looks like, Anne Smith, and Eva Thomas. It does not preclude you from coming up. 1057

And just state your name. We don't need your address and please come, you don't need a card if 1058

you don't want to. You can just come up and make your comments. Thank you.  1059

 1060 

DOUG RANKIN1061

I brought water this time. A couple clarifications, first of all, online, I noticed on Monday, there 1062

was one set of development agreements on the – site, and then today it was the date-stamped 1063

5/24 agreement. We had received an agreement – 1064

 1065 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW 1066

Excuse me, Sir. Mayor –  1067

 1068 

MAYOR GOODMAN1069

Oh, your name, I'm sorry. 1070

 1071 

DOUG RANKIN1072

Oh, I'm sorry. Doug Rankin, 1055 Whitney Ranch Road, Suite 1-0-, 210, representing some of 1073

the homeowners. We received from City Attorney Jerbic a different development agreement. The 1074

one that's posted online this morning is date-stamped 5/24, just wanna make sure that we're 1075

referring to the development agreement that you shared on Friday. 1076

 1077 

BRAD JERBIC1078

Like I said, the one I shared on Friday is the one that I gave to Planning to give to the computer 1079

people to put online. I haven't seen any other one.1080
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DOUG RANKIN1081

Okay. Well, as I said, I went online this morning, and it was date-stamped 5/24. So, that was the 1082

original development agreement that went to Planning Commission. 1083

1084

PETER LOWENSTEIN1085

Madame Mayor, I'll clarify. 1086

 1087 

MAYOR GOODMAN1088

Please.1089

 1090 

PETER LOWENSTEIN1091

We– put up on the – 1092

 1093 

MAYOR GOODMAN1094

Your name, please? 1095

 1096 

PETER LOWENSTEIN1097

Peter Lowenstein, Planning Department. Staff had added the full development agreement with 1098

all associated exhibits. The 5/24, plus the addendum was what was at Planning Commission 1099

meeting. We apologize if the later version of the development agreement was removed. We are 1100

in the process of rectifying that.1101

 1102 

MAYOR GOODMAN1103

And you will have that up by when? 1104

 1105 

PETER LOWENSTEIN1106

That should be up as soon as they, it's forwarded to the FTP site, and then the web services can 1107

update.1108
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MAYOR GOODMAN1109

Okay. Thank you. Please go ahead, Mr. Rankin. 1110

 1111 

DOUG RANKIN1112

Okay. And I'm gonna be very brief. 1113

 1114 

MAYOR GOODMAN1115

Right. Minute. 1116

 1117 

DOUG RANKIN1118

First of all, what we're here to decide if, on the development agreement, if you should vote to 1119

consider it, is you must find, per state law and your code, that it is, provisions of the agreement 1120

are consistent with the Master Plan.1121

We know for a fact the Master Plan is park/recreation/open space, approved in 1992, reaffirmed 1122

three additional times since that time as park/recreation/open space. Park/recreation/open space 1123

does not allow any density. The project is proposing to place 35.39 dwelling units per acre in 1124

Areas 2 and 3. That is not compatible or consistent with the Master Plan. The Master Plan calls 1125

for this to be park/recreation/open space, no residential development.  1126

Where does – that go? There's (sic) two places that density of 35 acres to unit go. They go in the 1127

Neighborhood Revitalization Plan as the neighborhood, per your 2020 Master Plan. Here's the 1128

Badlands Golf Course. Here's neighborhood revitalization. Way outside of that. 1129

And, one last item here, as – my time is expired. They can also go where an urban hub is. The 1130

Staff report indicates it's located at an urban hub. There's an urban hub at Charleston and 1131

Rampart. There's not one at Rampart and Alta. That's where high density goes, per the plan.  1132

 1133 

MAYOR GOODMAN1134

Thank you.1135

001358

5551



CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 2, 2017 

COMBINED VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT – ITEM 8 EXCERPT AND ITEMS 53 AND 31 

Page 42 of 155 

DOUG RANKIN1136

It is not consistent with the general plan, and, therefore, it cannot be approved.1137

 1138 

MAYOR GOODMAN1139

Thank you. 1140

 1141 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1142

Your Honor, may I ask a question? 1143

 1144 

MAYOR GOODMAN1145

Yes.1146

 1147 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1148

Can we suspend any time limits for a matter, but leave it up to you with the gavel, if people start 1149

to repeat themselves too much? I mean, that's kind of where we need to be. We've got two 1150

members that have never heard this testimony, ever. They've heard arguments. They've met with 1151

lawyers and our staff. They've never heard the testimony. 1152

 1153 

MAYOR GOODMAN1154

But Councilman Seroka said that he is totally up to speed on all of this, and I believe that  – 1155

 1156 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1157

Well, you're gonna find out that you don't know everything you know. 1158

 1159 

MAYOR GOODMAN1160

Well, no, but, I mean, that's what we've heard. And so, knowing the issues that Councilman Fiore 1161

has just brought up where her looks are, I think what we're trying to do is see today is (sic) 1162

there's any movement for anything further, or is this finished and dead. So the issue is so many 1163

times we keep hearing it's a matter of making a record. Mr. Rankin certainly knows the City 1164
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very, very well and believe your reports are accurate with the proper information. And those 1165

charts, I don't think we've seen before. Maybe Mr. Jerbic or Mr. Perrigo have. But the reality is 1166

the record that's been made over the past two years does speak to issues of where density can be.  1167

1168

COUNCILMAN SEROKA1169

Madame Mayor? 1170

 1171 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1172

Your Honor –, if I can just engage you one more time. 1173

 1174 

MAYOR GOODMAN 1175

Who is there? Oh, sorry. 1176

 1177 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA1178

I was just going to ask that I'd be comfortable hearing their testimony at whatever length that is 1179

needed. It would be – wonderful to hear that as well. 1180

 1181 

MAYOR GOODMAN1182

You would prefer to have that? 1183

 1184 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA1185

Sure. Yes, Ma'am.  1186

 1187 

MAYOR GOODMAN1188

All right. 1189

 1190 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA1191

And I think it would be good for Councilwoman Fiore as well.1192
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MAYOR GOODMAN1193

All right. So what –1194

1195

DOUG RANKIN1196

So  – as I truncated my presentation, and it won't be very long, Mayor, trust me, consistency is 1197

defined by your Zoning Code. Consistency, with the General Plan means not only consistency 1198

with the plan's land use and density designations, but also consistency with all policies and 1199

programs of the General Plan. It's defined by the Zoning Code what consistency is, PR-OS does 1200

not allow that density.1201

And, finally, as I said, we – worked to be brief. The application is deficient. The development 1202

agreement requires plans for traffic to access Rampart through the Las Vegas Valley Water 1203

District. There is no agreement with the Las Vegas Valley Water District to have that easement. 1204

 1205 

MAYOR GOODMAN1206

No, I think we know that. We know that. We have letters from them denying that. 1207

 1208 

DOUG RANKIN1209

Pursuant to your Zoning Code, a development agreement or any development application must 1210

include all parties that are privy to that application.1211

 1212 

MAYOR GOODMAN1213

Yes, we do know that. 1214

 1215 

DOUG RANKIN1216

They must sign and acknowledge the application before you. 1217

 1218 

MAYOR GOODMAN1219

Right –.1220
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DOUG RANKIN1221

They have not done so. The application is deficient and defective. It cannot be acted upon. 1222

 1223 

MAYOR GOODMAN1224

Thank you. 1225

 1226 

DOUG RANKIN1227

And that concludes my presentation. I have – 1228

 1229 

MAYOR GOODMAN1230

Give those to the Clerk. If you would (inaudible) – 1231

 1232 

DOUG RANKIN1233

– items for the Clerk for the record. 1234

 1235 

MAYOR GOODMAN1236

Thank you very much, Mr. Rankin. 1237

 1238 

GEORGE GARCIA1239

Thank you, Mayor, Council. George Garcia, 1055 Whitney Ranch Drive, Suite 10. And, 1240

certainly, welcome Councilwoman Fiore and Councilman Seroka as new members to the City 1241

Council. Pleasure to be before you. 1242

Mayor, maybe I think it would help as you, after I'm done, I'm gonna get into my presentation, 1243

but – since this question has arisen about the 30-day continuance, perhaps, that you may discuss, 1244

if you – do go for it, I think it would be clear, because the discussions I heard yesterday and, you 1245

know, we had these discussions with you and Brad, one of the premises that I heard was that it 1246

would start with there's up to 2100 units where the discussion would begin.  1247

And I would think, and I know talking with my client, that if there – was ever going to be a 1248

discussion, it doesn't start with determining what the outcome is and saying, okay, you get to 1249
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discuss how you get there. I think the – discussion should start, as I think Councilman Coffin 1250

suggested, starting with where do the residents come from. You can't start at 2100, where the 1251

developer may want to end up, and then figure out how to get there. I think you have to have a 1252

discussion, and there's a process of steps and a framework where you might get there.  1253

But with that being said, this particular development agreement’s, as we know, goes back to, 1254

first off, it has to be consistent, as Mr. Rankin just told you, with the PR-OS. And that PR-OS, 1255

the parks, recreational, and open space goes back and is consistent with the Peccole Ranch 1256

Master Plan. And we discussed this over the last two years, and all those documents and things 1257

associated with all the elements associated with the Peccole Ranch modifications and the 1258

Badlands applications all should be brought into the record yet once again. 1259

But referring to, this was right out, and I know you've seen this many times, but it's – critical, 1260

because it is – an important part of the record, which is, this is part of the Peccole Ranch Master 1261

Plan from 1990, when this was officially commenced and started. Two applications, one was the 1262

Master Plan, one was the zoning application.1263

In the Master Plan, there’s (sic) some specific documents and exhibits that I've pulled out here, 1264

but they're all fully in the records we've provided before. But in that is, again, the open space and 1265

drainage is clearly identified here, golf course drainage, and it refers to a golf course open space 1266

and drainage in the text as well.1267

And was always clearly articulated that what was then initially about 212 acres allowed for 1268

absolutely no net units. In this column here, net units, and there's none. All of those net units are 1269

either single-family or multi-family in those two rows, and in this final column the net units. So 1270

there was never, ever contemplated to be residential allowed in there, let alone certainly the – 1271

hotel and commercial.  1272

That absence is basically why the City, in its General Plan Amendment in '92 said, consistent 1273

with what we've already approved in the Master Plan and in – the zoning, consistent with that, 1274

we're going to make the land PR-OS. And that has existed, and that is the history that everybody 1275

has relied on in purchasing and buying and selling property and building their homes since then. 1276

The Peccole Ranch Master Plan, this is out of the 2020 Master Plan Land Use element, this is 1277

about major modifications, and you do not have a general plan amendment to change the PR-OS, 1278
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and you do not have a major modification. But it specifically says in the southwest sector, 1279

Peccole Ranch, in this red box I identified here, is a master development plan area located within 1280

the southwest sector. And it calls it out on the map.  1281

And then it goes on to say that in order to have major modifications of master development 1282

plans, we just heard Peccole Ranch is a master development plan, so modifications of master 1283

development plan and development standards, it basically says that if you're going to modify that 1284

plan, you have to do a major modification. So not only do you need the general plan, you need 1285

the major modification. And this all goes on then further in excerpts out of the Master Plan to 1286

talk about what you need to do and how you need to do it.1287

So while this one chart here on this other portion, where it talks about major modifications in 1288

these other special areas, Peccole Ranch is still a master development plan that requires a major 1289

modification. Even though it's not in this group category, it is in the other master development 1290

category. So, either way, it does require a major mod.  1291

The zoning – that coincides with that plan that was done in 1990 is Z-1790. And Z-1790 has a 1292

specific condition of approval. That's what we see here. This is the City's letter, City letterhead. 1293

It specifically says a maximum of 4,247 dwelling units be allowed in – this Peccole Ranch Phase 1294

II, which we call Queensridge, and Badlands is all a part of.1295

You have an application before you already at this point that numerically, given the units that 1296

have been built in single-family and multi-family alone, already exceeds the multi-family 1297

designation allowance that was considered on that chart I just showed you and is contemplated 1298

here in this condition of approval for 4247 units. You can't alter this condition of approval 1299

without going back and changing that which was originally done. This has never been altered. 1300

That chart, the Master Plan, or this document, these are the guiding documents.  1301

And if we look at what we see today, essentially there’s, what I've just showed you is the net 1302

units available under multi-family is already in the hole about 152 units. You have, pending 1303

before you, another application on the southeast corner of – Rampart and Alta, where Calida 1304

wants to be a portion, get a portion of property that, developed for multi-family. That will put 1305

you an additional 360 units in the hole for bringing up the –, basically, deficit in the multi-family 1306

category, exceeding the multi-family allowance that was in this chart by now over 500 units.  1307
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Critical to any – development agreement, let alone a project of major – regional significance, and 1308

this was contemplated by the state and by, as well as by the local ordinances, projects of 1309

significant impact, and this qualifies as a project of significant impact, it would be anything that 1310

has 500 or more dwelling units. Well, we're clearly way over 500 units.  1311

And I don't know how you can say that this is not required. There is not development impact 1312

notice and assessment. And they basically, that is absolutely required when any contemplation of 1313

development in excess of 500 units. And clearly, if we're talking whether it's 2,000, 2100 or 1314

whatever that number turns out to be, it's well over the 500 on The Two Hundred (sic) Fifty. 1315

That is still absent today and again creates that defective application.1316

So it, and just simply in conclusion, that if you're going to ultimately get to a development 1317

agreement, this one we believe is flawed both in substance for all the reasons that are going to be 1318

discussed after I'm done, but the substance of it is flawed. But, procedurally, more important 1319

right now, I don't believe you could even consider it.  1320

So your 30 days is probably not going to be enough, because you need to get a general plan 1321

amendment, a major mod as part of the outcome of whatever, so if you don’t, so whether it goes 1322

forward and gets continued or whether it's denied, and you can always restart a development 1323

agreement. There's no without prejudice necessary or with prejudice. It doesn't make any 1324

difference. It could be restarted. If you denied it today, it could be restarted tomorrow and 1325

brought back before you in short order. So, while the negotiations are going, you could certainly 1326

restart an ordinance development agreement once that's ready. Nothing would be lost. Thank 1327

you, Mayor.1328

 1329 

MAYOR GOODMAN1330

Thank you, Mr. Garcia.1331

 1332 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN 1333

(inaudible)1334
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FRANK SCHRECK1335

Mayor, member (sic) of the City Council, Frank Schreck, 9824 Winter Palace. I'm one of those 1336

attorneys that you have accused of somehow making roadblocks and creating havoc in this. I 1337

personally take offense, Mayor. That's a hard way to start a speech when I'm trying to convince 1338

you of something. But I've worked hundreds and hundreds of thousands of billable hours without 1339

being paid. I've done this because I believe in my community. I believe that the City Council and 1340

the City of Las Vegas, as well as the State, is (sic) a society of laws. 1341

 1342 

MAYOR GOODMAN1343

Yes, it is. 1344

 1345 

FRANK SCHRECK1346

We're bound by laws. 1347

 1348 

MAYOR GOODMAN1349

Yes, we are. 1350

 1351 

FRANK SCHRECK1352

And my job is to point out those laws. And if, in fact, the City Council is violating those laws, 1353

we have a responsibility to tell you that. 1354

 1355 

MAYOR GOODMAN1356

Absolutely.1357

 1358 

FRANK SCHRECK1359

This City Council is violating the laws. You know one right now that's been, and I'll touch on it. 1360

And that is that the state statute specifically states, where does this thing show up? Here?1361
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COUNCILMAN BARLOW 1362

Yeah, right in the middle. 1363

 1364 

MAYOR GOODMAN1365

Yeah. But you have to move the microphone so everybody can see. 1366

1367

FRANK SCHRECK1368

If you take a look at this statute, it's unequivocal. It says the governing body may, if it finds that 1369

the provisions of the agreement, that's the development agreement, are consistent with the 1370

Master Plan, it may approve the agreement by ordinance. It has to be consistent with the General 1371

Plan. It's been shown it clearly isn't consistent with the General Plan. The General Plan has the 1372

golf course at PR-OS, has had for 25 years. And it has no residential. Now, it's proposed to put 1373

2100 residents, plus a hotel, plus commercial. That's inconsistent with the General Plan, and until 1374

you amend that General Plan to allow that type of zoning, you can't go forward with this 1375

application.1376

 1377 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1378

Your Honor –? 1379

 1380 

FRANK SCHRECK 1381

Now –1382

1383

COUNCILMAN COFFIN 1384

Excuse me, Frank – 1385

 1386 

MAYOR GOODMAN1387

Please.1388

 1389 

FRANK SCHRECK 1390
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Yes – 1391

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1392

Hi, Mr. Schreck. Thank you so much for beginning so strongly. However, as a new City 1393

Councilwoman, what you're telling me is my staff is not advising me correctly. 1394

 1395 

FRANK SCHRECK1396

That's exactly what I'm telling you. 1397

 1398 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1399

Okay. So, with you saying that, do you find it not okay for me to ask for 30 more days of 1400

clarification?1401

 1402 

FRANK SCHRECK1403

If the 30 days of clarification is anything like we heard came in out of the meetings yesterday, 1404

and I think it's already been mentioned that the idea is we start from 2100 and start from a hotel 1405

and we start from commercial and that's where we start negotiating from. Where this should go 1406

back is square one, where the City helps, but doesn't interfere, and the developer and the 1407

residents get together and try to work something out. None of us believe that development can't 1408

occur. There's a process you have to go through, a major modification and a general plan to put 1409

residential on there. We all believe that something needs to take place, because we need 1410

something he has. 1411

 1412 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1413

So was there any plans prior to this plan, like let's say back in the late 2000s, '08, '09 to develop 1414

this property? 1415

 1416 

FRANK SCHRECK1417

The only –1418
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COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1419

On the record. 1420

 1421 

FRANK SCHRECK1422

The only plans that existed, are you talking about just the golf course? 1423

 1424 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1425

I'm just talking about building anywhere on that golf course, anywhere.  1426

 1427 

FRANK SCHRECK1428

No, absolutely not. It's prohibited. In fact, to show you what the original developer thought, he 1429

had a 50-year lease with the Senior Tours with ten 4-year extensions. So 90 years that would be 1430

a golf course.1431

 1432 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1433

Okay. And so – 1434

 1435 

FRANK SCHRECK1436

There was never any idea that it would be anything other than a golf course, and he specifically 1437

asked the City in 1990 to take 211 of those acres, make it golf course/drainage, no residential.  1438

Five or six years later, he said: You know what? You gave me 401 acres of R-PD7, which I can 1439

build homes on. I want to take 30 or 40 acres out of that, and I want to build another nine holes. 1440

And – the City said: Fine. That is a use under the R-PD7, and it can go on there without any 1441

residential.1442

 1443 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1444

But what I've seen, in – the short time that I have been in office, is I have seen Badlands, which 1445

is the residence of Who's Who in Las Vegas, by the way, I have seen Badlands go down the 1446

drain because we're looking at desert. And in order to fix that and bring those property values up, 1447
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we need a plan, and we need to fix the – development. So, is it unfair to ask for our Planning and 1448

our folks, whom I have a lot of faith in and whom (sic) have been really working hard with me 1449

day and night on this particular issue, for more time? 1450

 1451 

FRANK SCHRECK1452

If – we start from square one, if we're not starting from – the point of which he has 2100 units 1453

and he has an, a hotel and he has 15,000 square feet of commercial with a tavern and stuff in a 1454

residential community that's been master planned for 25 years, that’ll be fine.  1455

But if you think we have a lot of confidence and faith in your staff, and I'm not talking about the 1456

staff that wrote the Staff Reports for the first application in January of 2016 or the staff that 1457

wrote the Staff Report for the applications in July of 2016. Those were professional. They were 1458

thorough. They were detailed, and they all said the same thing. There is no residential that can be 1459

built on the golf course, unless you do a major modification first of our Master Plan and then a 1460

general plan amendment.  1461

Guess what happened? After that period of time, that staff got compromised or pushed out of the 1462

way.1463

And let me show you what the final result is. If you want to know why we get angry, okay, at 1464

staff, and don't think that Mr. Jer’, Mr. Perrigo should be involved in these conversations 1465

anymore, I'll say first of all, three or four days after this Council met on the 21st of June, 1466

Mr. Jerbic met with – Elaine Roesener and Jack Binion and brought to them a plan, a plot of 1467

showing the golf course that was prepared by the developer, that showed 1900 houses crammed 1468

into it and basically said: Look it, he has a right to build 2100, and if you guys kind of don't get 1469

on – board with this and do this, this is what can happen to you. And then they asked: Well, how 1470

did you get to 20 – 1471

 1472 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1473

So listen, I've just gotta interrupt you, because I can see you're long-winded, so, and that's okay.1474
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FRANK SCHRECK1475

No, but I gotta try to answer your question, why we have no faith. 1476

 1477 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1478

No. So this is my only concern is if we are not cautious and diligent in this vote and the 1479

developer walks away, which I do not want, I want these property values to go up, and in order 1480

to do that, we have to fix the golf course. Is all is I'm asking you is, as you guys continue 1481

fighting, and we can stay here all night and do this, too, I just think that if we look at, and by the 1482

way, for the record, I have a lot of faith in my staff, in my new staff. I'm the newbie. So their 1483

legal concerns and what they've brought to me and everyone's suing the City. So I have a lot of 1484

faith in my staff, and I trust my staff. And so, as the new Councilwoman, I'm basically saying I 1485

think we need 30 days. We can fight with this all night long, but at the end of the thing, I'm not 1486

gonna let the developer walk away today.1487

 1488 

FRANK SCHRECK1489

Well, let me – say something. I mean, this is – like, the developer – is like the teenager that 1490

murders his parents and then comes back and asks mercy before the court, because I'm an 1491

orphan. He shut the water off. He turned our golf course into a desert. He turned the blight. And 1492

now he's saying because it's blighted and you're saying because it's desert and blighted, he should 1493

now be allowed to build, because he's going to save ours. There's, most of the people that I know 1494

say, leave it alone. We will deal with the dirt rather than have graders, dump trucks, on all of this 1495

stuff. The first thing he will do is grade the golf course, so we're going to have dirt anyway, 1496

Councilwoman.  1497

 1498 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1499

That's not what your residents have told me. That's not what your residents have told me. 1500

 1501 

FRANK SCHRECK1502

That's what the residents that we've talked to have. 1503
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COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1504

That's not what they've told me. They said they want it fixed. 1505

 1506 

FRANK SCHRECK1507

We want it fixed, but it's not going to be fixed by immediately grading and scraping the golf 1508

course away. There is – no obligation in that development agreement for this developer to build 1509

one single thing in a 20-year period, not an obligation to build anything, but he will go grade it. 1510

And so we'll not only have, we won't the dirt. I mean, we won't have the grass there. We'll have 1511

dirt. And we'll have graders, and we'll have dump trucks and stuff. That’s, we'd rather have none 1512

of that than – just go ahead and allow this to be approved the way it is. 1513

But just tell, let me just show you why it is that we are, get frustrated and are concerned. You 1514

have a Staff Report –, Mayor, on this application right now, okay, which does not provide for a 1515

general plan amendment, which every single application that has been filed by the developer 1516

with every single one, there's seven or eight or nine all required, and all had applications for a 1517

general plan amendment and most of them with modifications. 1518

Now, they said that there's not one needed. And you look at what the Staff Report says. Here it 1519

is. I want you to, can you see this? Because I think it –, it's important for you to look. My 1520

understanding is that the staff, in doing a staff report, is to provide you with accurate information 1521

so you can make a reasoned judgment, based upon facts. That's the way I understand the system 1522

to work. 1523

Here's what they say as to basically why there is no general plan amendment in this. Now, we all 1524

know why there's no general plan amendment, because when it was determined that very 1525

possibly Councilman Beers may not win his election, they wanted to get this on the June 21st 1526

agenda, and you couldn't do that because it took 90 days to get a general plan amendment on 1527

that, would have kicked it into July. So it was coming on in June, and you know it was forced on 1528

into June. It was the only item on the Planning Commission agenda in June that was put on the 1529

following week, nothing else, just ours. 1530

But here's what this says. And this is why, if I was, used to be a Nevada Gaming Commissioner. 1531

And if I received this, I would be extremely angry. Here's what it says: Nevada Revised Statues, 1532
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NRS 478, and it's really 343, states that where the zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the 1533

master plan, the zoning ordinance takes precedence. Okay? That's not what that statute says. The 1534

statute talks about if there's any preexisting ordinance, a preexisting ordinance, and then there is 1535

a subsequent master plan that's adopted that takes away the rights of the guy that had the 1536

preexisting zoning, and that's what the Casinelli (sic) Case says. There's no question you can't 1537

take those property rights away. Nobody would argue that you can. But that's not our case. 1538

There's no preexisting zoning.  1539

The Peccole Ranch Master Plan in 1990 was approved by ordinance, all the zoning categories by 1540

ordinance, and it says in the minutes of the City, consistent with the Master Plan of the City of 1541

Las Vegas that existed. So the Peccole Ranch Master Plan was planned. It was – adopted by the 1542

City in 1990. All the zoning and the use of the golf course was all consistent with the Master 1543

Plan that existed at that time.  1544

So there is no subsequent master plan that came in and took any property rights away. In fact, 1545

this developer asked to have the golf course done this way. He asked to have the other nine holes 1546

done. When the PRO was put on in '92, he was happy to have it put on in '96. So it isn't where 1547

somebody has gotten rights taken away. This is what they asked for. So this is not even 1548

applicable, plus it's misleading and deceptive. 1549

The second sentence, now, I want you to, Mayor, I'm gonna ask you this question: Can you read 1550

the second sentence? And you tell me what it means? 1551

 1552 

MAYOR GOODMAN1553

I cannot because it's too tiny, and I don't have the right bifocals. 1554

 1555 

FRANK SCHRECK1556

Let me – read it for you and then tell me if you understand what this says. Okay. And this is – 1557

really an important sentence.  1558

 1559 

MAYOR GOODMAN1560

And point to where you are. 1561
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FRANK SCHRECK1562

The middle, the second sentence right here. 1563

 1564 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN 1565

Can you expand on that a little bit. 1566

 1567 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN 1568

(inaudible)1569

 1570 

MAYOR GOODMAN1571

Okay. And, Mr. Lowenstein, is this yours, or do we go back on staff reporting to back to Tom? 1572

 1573 

FRANK SCHRECK1574

Oh, I'm sorry. 1575

 1576 

MAYOR GOODMAN1577

Responding to this. Yes. 1578

 1579 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN 1580

Yeah. Oh, now he’s got it. 1581

 1582 

MAYOR GOODMAN 1583

Okay. Yes.1584

 1585 

FRANK SCHRECK1586

Could you read the second sentence and tell me if you understand what that means? And this is 1587

supposed to communicate to you the information –1588
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MAYOR GOODMAN1589

All right. The parties to this agreement acknowledge that the extant, spelled — 1590

 1591 

FRANK SCHRECK1592

No, it means extant. 1593

 1594 

MAYOR GOODMAN1595

It means something. Okay. 1596

 1597 

FRANK SCHRECK1598

Because Mr. Lowenstein uses that a lot. 1599

 1600 

MAYOR GOODMAN1601

Oh, see how smart. We hire very smart people. Approved zoning and land use designations for 1602

this site do not match. The City may request that — 1603

 1604 

FRANK SCHRECK1605

No –, just that sentence. 1606

 1607 

MAYOR GOODMAN1608

Okay.1609

 1610 

FRANK SCHRECK1611

What does that mean? 1612

 1613 

MAYOR GOODMAN1614

That they're at odds. That they're –1615
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FRANK SCHRECK1616

Can you tell me? Can anybody tell me? I can tell you what that sentence is supposed to mean. It's 1617

not even a complete sentence – 1618

 1619 

MAYOR GOODMAN1620

They don't match. 1621

 1622 

FRANK SCHRECK1623

What that sentence means, what it should say, if the Planning Department members that wrote 1624

the planning staff reports in January and July of 2016 wrote that, this is what it would have said: 1625

The development agreement is not consistent with the General Plan, which then violates the state 1626

law. So they couldn't say that, but they wanted to say something in there so they could point to 1627

the record that, oh, we didn't not tell you that. And so they put something in that you don't 1628

understand.1629

And then you look at the last sentence, it says, the parties of this, the City may request a general 1630

plan amendment at a future date. The statute says that you have to find it in compliance with the 1631

General Plan, which means at this very time, that if you voted on the development agreement, 1632

you had to find that the development agreement was now consistent with the General Plan, not 1633

some other time.  1634

And so, it, that's just one of the things. This is the most recent. So all three of those, the first two 1635

are misleading. The second one is just inapprop, incorrect advice. And, that's why attorneys 1636

sometimes get involved. I happen to be a resident there, so I take a personal interest, and that 1637

was the home I was going to die in. Now, the way it's being treated and we're being treated, I 1638

don't know if that's where I want to be. 1639

 1640 

MAYOR GOODMAN1641

Well, and of course, too, you may not have this developer, and it will just lie fallow. And you'll 1642

have somebody else come in and do other things. So the issue that we're trying to do is get this 1643

continuing to move forward and get a positive resolution instead of continuing more and more 1644
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and more of this, because were I the developer, I would have packed up my marbles a long time 1645

ago and said: Here's the land. I purchased it. I'm going to go sell it. I've had it. 1646

 1647 

FRANK SCHRECK1648

You know what, Mayor? You know what my response, ‘cause I've had this question asked a lot, 1649

and a lot of my neighbors that we've said — 1650

 1651 

MAYOR GOODMAN1652

And what's the end? They want to know what's the end.  1653

 1654 

FRANK SCHRECK1655

The answer – is real simple. They don't want 2100 units of density. They don't want a hotel. 1656

They don't want 15,000 square feet of residential. We don't know if these other sites will ever be 1657

built, the 65. There are seven sites left right now that have been there for 10 years or more that 1658

aren't developed. So we don't know. And especially with the competition that's now The Ridges 1659

and the other places. So – 1660

 1661 

MAYOR GOODMAN1662

And what's happening to golf courses everywhere is they are moving on to other types of 1663

development. I'm concerned, were I a resident, what's coming. At least we've been working so 1664

hard to try to bring this about so it does satisfy, and I do hear from our Councilwoman and tend 1665

to agree with that – 1666

 1667 

FRANK SCHRECK 1668

We – (inaudible) agree with that – 1669

1670

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1671

Mayor, you know what? I know that you're in charge of the time, but I've heard enough. I get it.1672
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FRANK SCHRECK1673

But we started at his numbers.  1674

 1675 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1676

I get it.1677

 1678 

MAYOR GOODMAN1679

Okay. Excuse me one second. 1680

 1681 

FRANK SCHRECK1682

We started at his numbers. That's the problem.  1683

 1684 

MAYOR GOODMAN1685

Okay.1686

 1687 

FRANK SCHRECK1688

We started at his numbers, and we've never been able, it was, look, I was told it was a done deal. 1689

It’s – 3,000 – 1690

 1691 

MAYOR GOODMAN1692

It's all right. We get it. You're opposed to it. We understand. 1693

 1694 

FRANK SCHRECK1695

No, but I'm giving you the reasons why. 1696

 1697 

MAYOR GOODMAN1698

And this is new information, and I don't know if that's something our staff wants to respond to. It 1699

was, if you would, Mr. Lowenstein or Mr. –1700
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FRANK SCHRECK1701

Another thing I'd like to just at least mention.  1702

 1703 

MAYOR GOODMAN1704

Well, let me give them an opportunity to the comments.  1705

 1706 

FRANK SCHRECK1707

Okay. Yeah, good, ‘cause I'd like to respond if I can. 1708

 1709 

MAYOR GOODMAN1710

If you would on the report, if you wouldn't mind, from Mr. Summerfield or Mr. Lowenstein, 1711

whomever.  1712

 1713 

ROBERT SUMMERFIELD1714

Your Honor, related to – the language that was up there that you're asking about, the language is 1715

to make it clear that the parties, in this case the developer and the City, because this is a 1716

development agreement application, do acknowledge, essentially, that there is an inconsistency. 1717

However, it's very clear that there is existing, invested zoning that is appropriate at this location, 1718

and that is what that particular line is making clear. 1719

 1720 

MAYOR GOODMAN1721

So that's the directive to us, that it is – 1722

 1723 

FRANK SCHRECK1724

Well, that, you know, the existing zoning has no relevance to the fact of whether or not you need 1725

a, you need an amendment to the General Plan. If – they had the legitimate right to build seven 1726

per acre, okay, let's say I agreed with that, they still have to go get a major modification general 1727

plan amendment. 1728
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MAYOR GOODMAN1729

But the, we can fight this until we're blue in the face – 1730

 1731 

FRANK SCHRECK1732

Okay, but this is the – 1733

 1734 

MAYOR GOODMAN1735

But the issue is what's to come when there's nothing more with this developer, what is to happen 1736

to all that and all these people who have all their money sunk in their home and want a beautiful, 1737

I am, oh, there you are. I just thought her comments – 1738

 1739 

FRANK SCHRECK1740

But do you think – 1741

 1742 

MAYOR GOODMAN1743

I thought Councilman Fiore's comments really synopsize, if there is such a word, the essence, 1744

from the top of the mountain, what this has become about. And so, my sense was, because we've 1745

heard and documented so much information over these two years, I feel what we have is, it's 1746

either going to be an up or a down, or we're going to have the 30 days to go ahead make it work. 1747

Or it's the land is going to be out there, you'll have somebody new come in, whether it's DH (sic) 1748

Horton or Lewis Homes, or nobody. It could be nobody for two decades, and you sit and you 1749

look at this.1750

To me, as a representative of Las Vegas, or just as a resident, were I living there, I would say for 1751

heaven (sic) sakes, this is my home. I love it. I want it beautiful. Let's work through this. And if 1752

the only way we can do it, if you have made every point and if Brad Jerbic, as our advisor, legal 1753

advisor, hasn't already advised us and staff as to what's permissible and what isn't and feels that 1754

there is an opportunity to move this to some kind of resolve, that's why we have been listening 1755

for two years.1756
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You are telling us the whole thing’s flawed and get rid of them, and so that's your opinion. And 1757

it may end up with that, which means all the residences, who knows what you're going to have in 1758

5 years, 10 years, 20 years, 30 years; it may just sit like that because of all the lawsuits that sit on 1759

the property. And if I were a developer, I can assure you, it would not be the piece I want to 1760

come in and develop. So, I'm just speaking to you from that perspective, which is why I begged 1761

for legal to stand back one month and let us try.  1762

 1763 

FRANK SCHRECK1764

I'm talking about – it being a homeowner. I don't mind development. It has to be reasonable 1765

development that works within that community. Twenty-one hundred – 1766

 1767 

MAYOR GOODMAN1768

But that's for the next step. 1769

 1770 

FRANK SCHRECK1771

Well – 1772

 1773 

MAYOR GOODMAN1774

That's the next step. If he's gone, start again, and you find the developer that's going to do it your 1775

way. Do it. I'm all for it. 1776

 1777 

FRANK SCHRECK1778

But what, if we're gonna have these discussions in the 30 days, do we start at 2100? Is that what 1779

we do, that's the minimum?  1780

 1781 

MAYOR GOODMAN1782

What I'm saying is there’s (sic) two ways to go about it, which I think Councilwoman was kind 1783

enough to articulate. We were saying you, both sides, continue to work, knowing what the future 1784

will hold, what's Christmas future here, or take the best, and I'm not saying it won't be flawed, 1785
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from what Tom Perrigo and Brad Jerbic have assessed from all of this and bring us back 1786

something – 1787

 1788 

FRANK SCHRECK1789

Let me just – put these in the record.  1790

 1791 

MAYOR GOODMAN1792

– that you all can look at, or find another developer for the future, that's all I'm saying, that will 1793

do your bidding and what you see. But I don't know how you explain it to all the homeowners 1794

that are there and people who have property.1795

This now is finished. This is what could be. This is finished. You know the water is off. We have 1796

all these issues. It's horrible. And now you have nothing. And you're going to have to find a new 1797

developer. You're going to have to find somebody that's going to want to come in with the liens 1798

on the property and the lawsuits that are there and then come in with a plan that's going to fit 1799

whatever all these pieces are, which we know that our Planning has been researching with our 1800

legal staff and advising all of us as to what we can be doing.1801

I am concerned, and I think our Councilwoman Fiore said it in a nutshell, it's right there. She is 1802

concerned about the quality of life and property values out at Queensridge. And the day that this 1803

developer walks away, your values are gone, ‘cause nobody’s going to come in and buy that 1804

property, unless you all want to get to and buy the property yourselves and develop it. That's my 1805

concern.1806

 1807 

FRANK SCHRECK 1808

(inaudible)1809

 1810 

MAYOR GOODMAN 1811

Looking at the realities, we can have, hear all this all over again; we've heard it so many times. 1812

So far, I'm not hearing anything new. There are answers. But the question is: Do you want a nice 1813

place to live or not? Is it not this developer, well then who's going to come in? Somebody give us 1814
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a developer to come in and meet all the marks that we're hearing about have to be met, or look at 1815

what you've got.  1816

I mean, this isn't rocket science to me. And it is not all legal mumbo jumbo and laws and 1817

everything. That's what we have staff for. They are to advise and make sure that what we're 1818

doing is legal. We can't be lawyers, and we can't be engineers, and we can't be all things to all 1819

people. All we can do is rely on the people who are professionals to give us the good information 1820

and then try to work in the best interest of the whole, not party politics, but to work in the best 1821

interest of the whole.1822

 1823 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1824

Your Honor? 1825

 1826 

MAYOR GOODMAN1827

And, what I see, were I there, no –,not now, Councilman Coffin, at this point, what I see is, no –, 1828

what the reality is you made a suggestion. It didn't go anywhere with the developer. You had 1829

your opportunity. We're all trying to make it work. But the reality is, take the developer away, 1830

what have you got? And what's going to be there? And who's going to want that property?  1831

And so you're going to sit looking at it, and it's going to get even worse. So, again, I say, 1832

succinctly stated by Councilwoman Fiore. She made a commitment to try to preserve property 1833

values in the City of Las Vegas for everybody. It's not going to happen this way. And all I ask 1834

for is get the lawyers out of the way and let us give it one full try more and have them step back 1835

and just step away and let's not hear any more and give us that month. And if that fails at that 1836

time, it's an up or a down. You look at it. You can pick it up to death. We will have our legal 1837

staff in on this and everything. And if you can't, in the best interest of your clients, and, on the 1838

other side of the coin, the best interest of your client, say, we're okay, we are going to step away 1839

from this, let the process continue for 30 days, no more legal litigation, anything. We are willing, 1840

we’ve put in two whole years, all of us together, to try and resolve this.1841

And so I don't know who's going to take the leadership, and maybe it's not. But if in fact, and 1842

listening to – Brad Jerbic, if you guys aren't going to step back, this is dead. This is dead. It's 1843
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finished. And then you have, what are you going to do with the land? Everybody, look to the 1844

future. Who's going to want that piece of land? 1845

 1846 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1847

Your Honor, can I be heard for a moment? 1848

 1849 

MAYOR GOODMAN1850

If you keep it brief, ‘cause you've already had your five minutes. 1851

 1852 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1853

I will. Out of respect for you, and if you don't show your sign for at least a couple of minutes, 1854

have you got it there? We have to be careful, I think, as a Council, to be – careful not to tell 1855

people they cannot have legal representation. Let me step back and say that again. We have to be 1856

really careful not to, as a Council, speaking from the chair here, say that people should not have 1857

legal representation, because that's in essence what it boils down to.  1858

 1859 

MAYOR GOODMAN1860

No. I'm not saying that. 1861

 1862 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1863

Well, that's what happens. 1864

 1865 

MAYOR GOODMAN1866

I am saying take a breather for 30 days. Nothing is going to move. If I were a resident, they're 1867

always my lawyers, and I'm always going to go to them. 1868

 1869 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1870

Well, we'd always like to kill all the lawyers, except for the ones that we trust.1871
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MAYOR GOODMAN1872

No. Don't misunderstand it, Councilman. 1873

 1874 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1875

Well, but here's the thing. You hire lawyers to speak for you because you can't speak for 1876

yourself. It is extremely complex. It's difficult. They are paid to articulate the law and also say 1877

what they wish in their best days they could say to us and they can't. And I think that's why – 1878

 1879 

MAYOR GOODMAN1880

Yes, they have said it.1881

 1882 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1883

So it's the people – 1884

 1885 

MAYOR GOODMAN1886

The lawyers have said it again and again and again. 1887

 1888 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1889

The people are speaking through their lawyers.1890

 1891 

MAYOR GOODMAN1892

Yes, and they have been, for two years.1893

 1894 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN1895

Just as Oscar did for many years. 1896

 1897 

MAYOR GOODMAN1898

No –. For two years, both sides, legal staff have been telling us all the legal points. We 1899

understand them. I know Councilwoman would love some more time, because maybe she doesn't 1900
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have the amount of information that Councilman Seroka has. But the reality is everybody's 1901

entitled to legal advice and should have it, but the reality is we're asking for a breather right now, 1902

no more need for money, no more using money. Let's concentrate on this. And at the end of 30 1903

days, if we haven't got there, then goodbye and you're left with your vacant piece of land and 1904

wait for a developer to come. And thank you for your comments, Councilwoman.  1905

 1906 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1907

Thank you. 1908

 1909 

MAYOR GOODMAN 1910

Okay.1911

 1912 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1913

And I just, in that 30 days, I look forward to our brilliant, quote, brilliant staff, Planning, helping 1914

make both sides happy.  1915

 1916 

MAYOR GOODMAN1917

Microphone, please, and name.  1918

 1919 

TODD BICE1920

Todd Bice, representing several of the homeowners, including Mr. Binion and others. Here are 1921

some items that Mr. Schreck wanted to put into the record just so that we would have them in. 1922

Thank you. 1923

 1924 

MAYOR GOODMAN1925

Thank you. 1926

 1927 

TODD BICE1928

Mayor, I'm – obviously one of those meddlesome lawyers – 1929
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MAYOR GOODMAN1930

Yes, you are. 1931

1932

TODD BICE1933

– in this process. So, because I've not had the opportunity to speak to Councilwoman Fiore about 1934

this or – to Councilman Seroka, Mayor, your proposal for 30 days in isolation is not an 1935

unreasonable request, just like Councilwoman Fiore's request for about 30 days in isolation is not 1936

in any way unreasonable. Let me tell you part of the problem, though, because things aren't in 1937

isolation. That's not the way that the world really works.  1938

We have existing litigation in this case. We actually have the developer, because the developer 1939

has been unsuccessful in trying to get some of that litigation dismissed, the developer’s pushing 1940

for trial dates, while at the same time, and I'm not trying to cast any dispersions on anyone, we 1941

have a lot of discovery that hasn't been done and that hasn't been complied with, in my view. The 1942

developer wants a trial date in September, but at the same time, the developer hasn't, we're going 1943

to be having some issues about discovery.  1944

So asking us to stand down for 30 days while the developer is trying to take advantage of the 1945

schedule in the court system is, will not work. It is unacceptable to us. We are prejudiced by that. 1946

So if the developer is saying, the developer is saying, listen, the trial date doesn't matter to me 1947

now, and I don't know what 30 days gets you, myself. I mean, it seems to me if you're really 1948

looking for time, you have to be looking for more, something like 60 to 90 – 1949

 1950 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1951

Your Honor, may I address that? 1952

 1953 

TODD BICE1954

But what I'm telling you is from a litigation standpoint, and I think Brad, you know, the City 1955

Attorney is knowledgeable about this process, there simply is no time for a 30-day, even a 30-1956

day delay.1957
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MAYOR GOODMAN1958

Okay –, Mr. Bice. Thank you. I mean that's really strong information that I couldn't possibly, and 1959

I don't know anybody else who's a lawyer here, we would have to ask for Mr. Jerbic's input there 1960

as a point of clarification for us, and then Councilwoman wanted to make a comment. If you 1961

would (inaudible) – 1962

 1963 

BRAD JERBIC1964

The comment, Mr. Bice is right, if there is a trial date set and the discovery that hasn't been 1965

conducted directly relates to that trial, then it seems that the trial would have to be moved, too, 1966

for that 30 days to work. 1967

 1968 

TODD BICE1969

It absolutely would. And – I have no idea about the court schedule. And, again, there's a lot of 1970

work to be done between now and what the developer wants as a trial date at the end of 1971

September. I don't even know that that's going to work in light of some recent disclosures. But, 1972

all I can tell you is it's certainly not going to work if – the Mayor asking us or Councilwoman 1973

Fiore asking us to stand down and sit on our hands for 30 days. That will not work. 1974

 1975 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1976

That’s, okay. So can I do the comment now, Your Honor? 1977

 1978 

MAYOR GOODMAN1979

Yes, certainly.1980

 1981 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1982

So isolation is not what my Mayor said, first off. Second off, we're asking for 30 days so our 1983

Planning folks and our staff can work on a better agreement and come up with a better 1984

development plan to make everyone happy. I personally don't know about the – contractor's 1985

court schedule or your court schedule. That has nothing to do with it.1986
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What I am concerned with is keeping those value (sic) in property up and making sure that the 1987

contractor doesn't walk away so we just have dead grass and dead animals.  1988

 1989 

TODD BICE1990

Well, I think — 1991

 1992 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE1993

So no isolation was said by my Mayor, number one. And number two, we're asking for 30 days 1994

so we can work together with the developer and the residents a little bit more, because I'm 1995

getting mixed – signals from our residents.  1996

 1997 

TODD BICE1998

Councilwoman –, I think I might have been, yeah, I either wasn't articulate. We were actually 1999

asked by, before the meeting started, I wasn’t, I didn't speak to the Mayor personally, I spoke to 2000

the City Attorney, who asked me to agree to hold the litigation in abeyance for at least 30 days. 2001

 2002 

MAYOR GOODMAN2003

Correct.2004

 2005 

TODD BICE2006

And that was a request that came to me from Mr. Jerbic, through the, or from the Mayor, through 2007

Mr. Jerbic, to me. 2008

 2009 

MAYOR GOODMAN2010

Correct.2011
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TODD BICE2012

So when I say, in isolation, that 30 days, I'm – not trying to be disrespectful to anyone. I'm just 2013

informing, and I don't think the Mayor even knew that about the court schedule. So that's the 2014

reason why we're – here saying, Madame Mayor, I can't accommodate her request.  2015

I would normally, I have a great deal of respect for the Mayor, as I do for all of these Council 2016

members, and the City Attorney and I have known each other for 20, plus, years, that type of a 2017

request would ordinarily be granted by me at the drop of a hat, because, I, and I even said that to 2018

– the City Attorney. But it can't be on these circumstances because of the schedule and the 2019

developer's insistence upon a particular trial date. It's just — 2020

 2021 

MAYOR GOODMAN2022

Mr. Bice, could I ask you, I mean I should know this answer, but I don't. 2023

 2024 

TODD BICE2025

Yes, Madame Mayor. 2026

 2027 

MAYOR GOODMAN2028

In asking for a – change of date on that, on the hearing, or whatever the piece is, who does, who 2029

makes that decision, just the judge themselves? 2030

 2031 

TODD BICE2032

No.2033

 2034 

MAYOR GOODMAN2035

Or does it have to go through a process? I mean, if in fact you were in a position that you wanted 2036

to, is it possible to pick up the phone, call the judge and say: We have an issue here. Can we 2037

delay all of this an additional month? Is that a possibility or no?2038
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TODD BICE2039

I – have every expectation, I'd leave this to Mr. Jerbic to address it on behalf of the City. I have 2040

every expectation that Judge Allf would do, essentially, if the parties stipulated that the trial date 2041

would not happen before a certain date so that there could be a stand-down period, I – feel with 2042

90, plus, degree confidence that Judge Allf would be happy to approve that, because, like you 2043

Mayor, I'm sure a decision-maker, they’re always happy to see a resolution, so that they don't 2044

have to make a decision. It's just – the nature of the beast. All right. Judges are no different than 2045

City Council members in that respect. 2046

 2047 

MAYOR GOODMAN2048

So, my, thank you. In moving this, if it's possible, Mr. Jerbic, I mean is this, who would make a, 2049

such, the phone call? Would it be Mr. Bice? Or – make this request of – 2050

 2051 

BRAD JERBIC2052

First of all, let me say everything Mr. Bice said is correct. The –  2053

 2054 

MAYOR GOODMAN 2055

Thank you. 2056

 2057 

BRAD JERBIC2058

Because, if – the trial is affected by the discovery, he is exactly correct, the trial would have to 2059

be moved, too. I know that the City would agree to that. I believe Mr. Bice would agree with 2060

that. What we would typically do is just a stipulation written, submit it to the court, ask that the 2061

trial date be moved. But there’s, that's – two of the three players here. The third player is sitting 2062

in the audience, and, so, I didn't mean to put anybody on the spot. That’s, it’s gonna require all 2063

three parties to agree to that, Your Honor. 2064

 2065 

TODD BICE2066

So, I had other things to say, Mayor, but I know you have heard them.  2067
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MAYOR GOODMAN2068

Thank you. Bless you. 2069

 2070 

TODD BICE2071

And I'll – leave it to others, including Mr. Buckley, to address some of the other points. 2072

 2073 

MAYOR GOODMAN2074

Thank you. 2075

 2076 

TODD BICE2077

So, unless you have further questions for me – 2078

 2079 

MAYOR GOODMAN 2080

Well, the only question I would have – 2081

 2082 

TODD BICE2083

Yes, Ma'am. 2084

 2085 

MAYOR GOODMAN 2086

You know, give me an inch, and I want five inches, and then I want more than that. Now that 2087

that little possibility is out there to move the date, who do we need to ask if they would be in 2088

agreement to that?  2089

 2090 

BRAD JERBIC2091

The Applicant.2092

 2093 

MAYOR GOODMAN2094

The applicant.2095
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TODD BICE 2096

Yes, Ma’am. 2097

 2098 

MAYOR GOODMAN2099

Does the applicant , you would agree, you and your – 2100

 2101 

TODD BICE2102

Let me just confer, but —  2103

 2104 

MAYOR GOODMAN2105

Okay. And then would you come back and let us know if you would agree. 2106

 2107 

TODD BICE2108

I would. 2109

 2110 

MAYOR GOODMAN2111

And then. Yes, Sir. Your name, please. You've been very patient. Thank you. 2112

 2113 

DINO REYNOSA2114

Madame Mayor, Council members, first of all, I want to say, I'm not a lawyer. 2115

 2116 

MAYOR GOODMAN2117

Thank God –. We're surrounded by them. And your name, Sir, please.  2118

 2119 

DINO REYNOSA2120

My name is Dino Reynosa. I represent Seven Maksin. He is the CEO of Moonbeam Capital 2121

Investments. We own 14 million square feet of commercial, retail, and luxury properties across 2122

the U.S. We're also the indoor largest malls (sic).2123
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MAYOR GOODMAN2124

You want to invest downtown? 2125

 2126 

DINO REYNOSA2127

We're trying, for the right price. 2128

 2129 

MAYOR GOODMAN2130

Okay. Where is Bill Arent? 2131

 2132 

DINO REYNOSA2133

Mr. Maksin is a – resident of Queens, One Queensridge Place. We own two suites there. We own 2134

a suite on Tower Two, and we also own the penthouse at the very top, which is called The 2135

Crown Jewel. It's the biggest one there. And so with that being said, we can honestly say that we 2136

have a bird's eye view of the entire dried, dead golf course.  2137

And, honestly, when you walk out to that terrace, that's one of the first things we see. So, it's – an 2138

eyesore. You know, it's a very (sic) concern for us. And being one of the bigger owners of that 2139

tower, I'm here today to let you know that we fully stand by 100 percent for this developer, 2140

because us being developers ourselves, I'm also involved in developments across the U.S., and 2141

we know the process.2142

So, anything to beautify, to enhance, to increase, to – enhance that – community and that 2143

particular property is going to enhance us and our property value. I want to thank Councilwoman 2144

Fiore for looking out for us, because I feel like you're talking to us. You know, we’re, it's a big 2145

concern to us. So, I just want to let you know that we're here to stand by 100 percent for this 2146

developer and hope that you guys will consider approving this, and looking forward to what's 2147

going to happen in that property. Thank you.2148

 2149 

MAYOR GOODMAN2150

Thank you. Will you be sure to call the Mayor's office and come see me about downtown 2151

development?2152
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DINO REYNOSA2153

I will. I definitely will.  2154

 2155 

MAYOR GOODMAN2156

Thank you.2157

 2158 

DINO REYNOSA2159

Thank you.2160

 2161 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2162

Good afternoon, Mayor and Council people. My name is Michael Buckley, 300 South 4th Street.2163

I have some documents that I want to put in the record, some analysis. One also is a copy of the 2164

Regional Open Space Plan that was approved by the Southern Nevada Regional Planning 2165

Commission in July 2006, which addresses washes, natural washes. And also, I – found this, 2166

which I thought was interesting. Down in Naples, Florida, there was a concern because of this is 2167

happening to other golf courses. And, as you know, this is not just the Badlands, this is other 2168

places in Las Vegas and – Henderson as well.2169

In – Naples, the Board of County Commissioners put a six-month moratorium on any 2170

conversions until they studied it, and they actually came up with a separate ordinance to deal 2171

with golf course conversion. So there's just an article about this, and there was an actual 2172

ordinance adopted in Collier County.2173

Let me, my points are a couple things. Number one is I don't think 30 days gets you anywhere, 2174

because you still need a general plan amendment. And this City Council, you will remember, 2175

actually the developer withdrew their General Plan Amendment last November without 2176

prejudice, and the City Council also denied a general plan amendment back in June for the 166 2177

acres. So, actually, under the City Code, you can't come back for another general plan 2178

amendment for another year after a denial.  2179

But, anyway, I think the 30 days without a –, an acknowledgement that you need a general plan 2180

amendment, it doesn't – work. Mr. Kaempfer mentioned comparable and compatibility, but you, 2181
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that's really irrelevant, unless you have the general plan amendment. This – property is PR-OS, 2182

as – it’s been said.2183

And, I think, one of the things, the City Council, the staff says, well, this is compliant because it 2184

is a walkable community. What that really, I mean, walkable is something that can be created. 2185

What this proposed Development Agreement is doing is wiping out a natural wash area. It is a, 2186

an arroyo. There are policies in the City Master Plan. The – actual, the design of Queensridge, 2187

according to the Master Plan, the design of the golf course has been instrumental in preserving 2188

the natural character of the land and controlling drainage through the property. 2189

In the Conservation Element of the City Master Plan, the City should continue to work with 2190

CCRFCD developers and other entities to ensure that natural washes are preserved and that 2191

drainage facilities are utilized as recreational and/or conservation areas where feasible. None of 2192

that is in this. This doesn't even acknowledge the fact that this is a natural drainage area. 2193

And not only does the Development Agreement permit, authorize 2,000 residential units within 2194

this area, that has been there since, as Councilman Coffin said, one of our first meetings since 2195

before Columbus, the development agreement actually permits the developer to pull grub and 2196

clearing permits and demolition permits right now, as soon as this is done, before there is 2197

approval of the master traffic study, before approval of the master sewer study, before approval 2198

of the master drainage study. This not only violates the Master Plan, but that's dangerous in a 2199

flood zone. 2200

I think the other thing that, one that I, being a lawyer, had to go back and look at this again, 2201

because one of the things that was, has been threatened, realistically, is that this is an R-PD7 2202

zone, and, therefore, they can build what, they can build seven and a half units per acre. 2203

According to the Univer’, the Development Code, the City's Development Code, new 2204

development under the R-PD District is not favored and will not be available under this Code. 2205

That's the current code. So, if they – want to develop under R-PD7, according to the Code, that's 2206

not possible.2207

A couple things on the, another thing, I wanted to mention –2208
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MAYOR GOODMAN2209

If I might, I'm gonna ask Mr. Summerfield to respond to that statement, please, while it's still 2210

hot.2211

 2212 

ROBERT SUMMERFIELD2213

Your Honor, just to be clear, in – 2011, when we adopted the Unified Development Code, we did 2214

retire the R-PD as a new Zoning District. Any existing R-PDs maintain their entitlements and 2215

their rights to whatever development they were approved at when they were originally zoned. So 2216

that – change in 2011 does not affect the zoning on this particular location.2217

 2218 

MAYOR GOODMAN2219

Thank you. 2220

 2221 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2222

Well, and of course, the other provision you may want to address as well, and that is, under the 2223

same – part of the Development Code, it says that single-family and multi-family residential and 2224

supporting uses are permitted in the R-PD District to the extent they are determined by the 2225

director to be consistent with the density approved for the District and are compatible. So they, 2226

that has to go, that goes back to the 4,297 units, and that, again, is in the R-PD area. 2227

Another thing I feel a need to point out is that this will not sit for 5 or 10 years. There are lenders 2228

who have loans against this property. We've all seen how that works. Sometimes a lender comes 2229

along, forecloses on property, and sells this to a new developer, and that developer can do 2230

something with the property. We saw that with the JW Marriott. The, okay. 2231

 2232 

MAYOR GOODMAN2233

That is exactly my point, and that is very disturbing to me. 2234
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MICHAEL BUCKLEY2235

But they don't sit around and wait. They're not going to wait 5 or 10 years for this property. 2236

They're gonna do something, because they've got actual money in there. 2237

 2238 

MAYOR GOODMAN2239

I would hope from your mouth to God's ears, but I am very, very concerned that this is gonna sit 2240

because of all the issues that are involved in this at this point. So, I mean, that is my worry. And 2241

I think, again, to Councilwoman Fiore, she nailed it with talking about preserving the interests of 2242

the residents and the property values as this, as the developer walks away. You're not gonna get a 2243

line of people coming in here. 2244

 2245 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2246

Well, lenders are also interested in preserving the value, too. 2247

 2248 

MAYOR GOODMAN2249

Well, they would be, but they wanna get their money out of it and get out of it, which leaves you 2250

the land as it is. It's very, very, very, very disturbing.  2251

 2252 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2253

One of the things that I – wanna go through a little bit is some of the provisions of the 2254

Development Agreement itself. First of all, I think George Garcia mentioned about the DINA. 2255

The Skye Canyon Development Agreement actually has the DINA attached to the Development 2256

Agreement. This does not. It's not referenced at all. 2257

 2258 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN2259

What does DINA mean?2260
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MICHAEL BUCKLEY2261

That's the, where's George? It's the – document that you have to file when you are developing 2262

500 units or more. It's a requirement, it’s a statutory requirement. Sorry. 2263

 2264 

DOUG RANKIN2265

Yeah, it's – a Development Impact Needs Assessment. Those are required on any, certain 2266

developments. It allows other entities to be noticed, like the School District and the Water 2267

District and the Health District, so that they can comment on large developments of projects of 2268

regional significance required by state law. 2269

 2270 

MAYOR GOODMAN2271

And as, what I understand, we've had School District input and the Water District. We've had 2272

those. But the developer, going along with certain other pieces, still has to resolve those. 2273

 2274 

DOUG RANKIN2275

But it also goes to Clark County. It goes to 17 –, I believe, 17 other entities get to comment, 2276

including the Flood Control District, which is important here. They haven't had a chance to look 2277

at this yet. That's what a Development Impact Notification Assessment does. 2278

 2279 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2280

Thanks. The, one of the things that I commented at – an earlier meeting was the discretion of the 2281

developer. And certainly the Development Agreement, like Skye Canyon, the discretion of the 2282

developer to build the actual development, but as in Skye Canyon, there's actually milestones for 2283

what the City is getting out of it. 2284

 2285 

MAYOR GOODMAN2286

But Skye Canyon is 1800, new acreage with; this is infill.2287

001399

5592



CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 2, 2017 

COMBINED VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT – ITEM 8 EXCERPT AND ITEMS 53 AND 31 

Page 83 of 155 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2288

They have, Skye Canyon has less discretion under their development agreement than this 2289

developer does. 2290

 2291 

MAYOR GOODMAN2292

But it's all new area up in the northwest and a whole new project, and this is infill in area that is 2293

already surrounded by everything. 2294

 2295 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2296

Well, I think you would find people to disagree with the term infill, because this is actually a 2297

developed, piece of property. It wouldn't really be called infill. But — 2298

 2299 

MAYOR GOODMAN2300

Okay. I mean, pardon the term. There has to be a real estate term that I'm unfamiliar with. The 2301

reality, I go back to the same thing, the developer walks, whata (sic) you got?  2302

 2303 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2304

Well, I think — 2305

 2306 

MAYOR GOODMAN2307

That's all I care about. this is just, we're on the cusp of hopefully trying to get this to pull out and 2308

get it moving forward and create something wonderful if, in fact, the facts are real. And, 2309

otherwise, I am very concerned. There's not a person that lives out in that, what was a beautiful 2310

area that can sit and hold their breaths for the next developer to come in there. And so, all the 2311

things, if you've said you've submitted them, they are a matter of record, Mr. Buckley, and we 2312

appreciate it.2313
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MICHAEL BUCKLEY2314

The, one of the things, Your Honor, the, that is not even addressed in the Development 2315

Agreement is the vacation of the easement. That is something, and – it seems to me that the 2316

easement, which is down the middle of the golf course, which is public easement recorded when 2317

this was built, the Queensridge folks are beneficiaries of that easement. That's not addressed at 2318

all in this.2319

The, but, I think –, you know, I think, one of the things that jumps out at you in this development 2320

agreement is a developer comes in and says: I'm – going to get this for 20 years. I'm going to 2321

have the right to develop this. I'm entitled for 20 years. 2322

What the tradeoff usually is, is the City says: Well, I want X, Y and Z. There's no X, Y and Z 2323

here. There are access roads to this community, but there is nothing really that the City is getting 2324

out of this –, as somebody’s mentioned. 2325

 2326 

MAYOR GOODMAN2327

Well, and I do think a lot of that has to do with the fact we're trying to get the two sides together, 2328

and then that would be part of that movement. But the reality is that if, in fact, we could get the 2329

sides together, then hopefully with the give and take, the residents will get behind we want to 2330

move this forward, where are the areas that we can help on easements, on different things, so it 2331

becomes one unified vision for the entire property, maintaining the property value of the owners 2332

of the properties that live out there in Queensridge. And if, in fact, it doesn't work, it doesn't 2333

work, and that's what I am hearing loud and clear. It's not gonna work, and so the developer is 2334

gone. And – then whata (sic) you have?  2335

2336

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2337

I think, just to conclude, Your Honor, I think, I –, from what I hear, there isn't this thing that it's 2338

not gonna work. What I hear is that it has to be the right process, and so far there has not been 2339

the right process. There needs to be a general plan amendment and a major modification, and 2340

there are processes for that to work. And -2341
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MAYOR GOODMAN2342

That's good.  2343

 2344 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2345

– I'll conclude with that. Thank you. 2346

 2347 

MAYOR GOODMAN2348

No, but that was wonderful, because those are the pieces, gently said, without all fire and 2349

passion, and things, that those are the pieces. How do we deal with that, to have it move forward, 2350

if we ever get these 30 days of peace and quiet to try and get one last hurrah going here before it 2351

becomes an immovable object, and it's just left as is? 2352

 2353 

MICHAEL BUCKLEY2354

But unless the process is right, you're still gonna have that objection. 2355

 2356 

MAYOR GOODMAN2357

That was very nice. So, please tell Mr. Jerbic, there. Thank you. 2358

 2359 

PETER LOWENSTEIN2360

Madame Mayor, just for a point of clarification. The Unified Development – 2361

 2362 

MAYOR GOODMAN2363

And you are? 2364

 2365 

PETER LOWENSTEIN2366

This is Peter Lowenstein, the Planning Department. The Unified Development Code has a 2367

general provision in its Application sections, which address the Development Impact Needs 2368

Assessment as well as projects of regional significance. They are distinctly different. One is 2369

governed by NRS and has certain thresholds, which this does not meet, and the other one is a 2370
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project of regional significance, which then defers to the Definition section of our Code, which 2371

also is wrapped up with the language of unless a general plan amendment rezoning or mapping 2372

action would exceed the unit threshold, the Development Agreement is neither of those 2373

applications.2374

 2375 

MAYOR GOODMAN2376

Thank you. Important information.  2377

 2378 

SHAUNA HUGHES2379

Hi, Mayor, members of the Council, Shauna Hughes, 1210 South Valley View, Suite 208. I 2380

represent the Queensridge HOA and have a very few (sic) brief comments. I appreciate what 2381

you're trying to do, I do. And as you know, as I've stated it before, I believe there is a deal to be 2382

made. I have always believed there's a deal to be made. And – although I am an extraordinarily 2383

patient woman, normally, I'm kind of out at this point with patience, because I have gone to 2384

meeting after meeting after meeting at your direction, actually, and no progress was made. 2385

 2386 

MAYOR GOODMAN2387

And we do thank you. We do thank you. 2388

 2389 

SHAUNA HUGHES2390

And no progress was made. And I had hope of, had high hopes, actually, that progress would get 2391

made, but it didn't. So, I'm never gonna say never. I would never walk away from a negotiation, 2392

but it's been a frustrating experience to this point. And – there's one key factor here that we 2393

almost gloss over, and I wanna focus back on it, and that issue is density. 2394

I'm gonna give you just a couple of numbers to put into – perspective my issue on density. The 2395

Orchestra Village, which is the project you approved not too long ago, adds 435 multi-family 2396

units on 17.49 acres, for a density of 24.87. Queensridge Tower, the new, the one that's not built 2397

yet, has an entitlement to 385 units on 19.7 acres for a zoning designation of 19.54. Tivoli has 2398
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apartments, 300 approved on 28.43 acres, which is a density of 10.55. Calida just recently got 2399

approved across the street for 360 multi-family units on 15 acres, for a density of 23.08. 2400

What this developer is asking for just, and I'm trying not to bore everybody to sleep here, but 2401

there's some context I think that's necessary, they're asking for 1,684 additional multi-family 2402

units on 47.58 acres, for a density of 35.39. That is not compatible or even close to the next 2403

lowest density down at 24; 35.39 multi-family units per acre is what is being asked for. That has 2404

been the problem from day one. That continues to be the problem today, and it is the problem 2405

that was not addressed in any of the negotiations that I personally attended when the unit count 2406

was that, basically, just not open for discussion.2407

And I know from my conversations with Brad that he has attempted to push the limit on 2408

lowering the multi-family unit count and, to no success. Actually, just the answer is no. Well, 2409

what kind of a negotiation is that? This is our concern and this is why. Not, we're not concerned 2410

out of the blue; we're concerned because it doesn't go with anything in this area at all.  2411

Plus, right now, you've got 1,480 multi-family units in that area approved. Adding 1684 leaves 2412

us with 3,164 additional multi-family units in a very, very small area of property. That is a 2413

ridiculously large number of multi-family units for, not only for this area, honestly, for any area.  2414

And – as much as I would love to keep working on this for 30 days, and I will from the beach, 2415

however, we've got, we can't, I just can't, I can’t continue charging my clients to go to a meeting 2416

where I say, again, the multi-family unit count is excessive, to be told, too bad, we have to have 2417

it. This is not my idea, I don't think anybody's idea of good faith negotiations. And I'm not 2418

accusing anybody of not acting in good faith, I'm just trying to put out my frustration about what 2419

has not occurred to date.2420

There are portions of the proposal that people do like, that people could embrace. There are 2421

portions that, with some more detail, might be embraceable. These numbers are never 2422

embraceable. They're impossible to embrace at this level. It’ll change the entire character and 2423

community of that neighborhood, and the surrounding neighborhood, for that matter. To say 2424

nothing of what it will do to the schools. The traffic will be a nightmare. And I know the going 2425

theory is throw some money at it, we can fix the streets. But there's no money to throw, and the 2426

money that needs to be thrown is not being required of the developer who's creating the need.  2427

001404

5597



CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 2, 2017 

COMBINED VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT – ITEM 8 EXCERPT AND ITEMS 53 AND 31 

Page 88 of 155 

This business of not getting the Water District easement and that having been known for a year 2428

and without it your own traffic people say this Development Area 2 and 3 can't be built, what has 2429

this been about? What kind of game has that been? It feels very, very, it feels very problematic to 2430

me. And I'm not gonna, even though I'm a lawyer, I hate to admit it at this particular meeting, 2431

but, I'm not gonna go over the procedural details, which are legend, honestly. 2432

 2433 

MAYOR GOODMAN2434

Thank you. 2435

 2436 

SHAUNA HUGHES2437

But I'm telling you — 2438

 2439 

MAYOR GOODMAN2440

We do thank you for working, and I know you've done it genuinely and selflessly of time too, 2441

and we're very grateful for that. 2442

 2443 

SHAUNA HUGHES2444

Well, only because I really thought, and I continue to think, there is a wonderful opportunity 2445

here. But throwing 1684 apartments into this existing Queensridge is not the answer, and it's 2446

never gonna be the answer. So, if there isn't a legitimate basis upon which to discuss that, I don't 2447

know where we go. 2448

 2449 

MAYOR GOODMAN2450

Thank you. There's a point of clarification. Councilwoman Fiore. 2451

 2452 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE2453

Yes. So, as we go back and forth and as I hear the attorneys talk about how our staff doesn't 2454

know what they're talking about, I also am hearing that the flood, I want the point of clarification 2455

on the flood zoning, because, as people watch the City of Las Vegas City Council and they're 2456
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thinking, oh my God, this contractor is gonna build in a flood zone. Can you clarify that last 2457

statement? Because I believe they have to go through a big process and get approved. 2458

 2459 

BART ANDERSON2460

Yes, Mayor, through you, Bart Anderson, Public Works. No construction can occur in a FEMA 2461

flood zone without first applying to FEMA for what's called a letter of map revision to have that 2462

area removed from the flood zone.  2463

Beyond that, any drainage easement, whether it's FEMA or not, if the City owns a drainage 2464

easement, you can't put any structures, any habitable structures of any kind in it without first 2465

vacating that easement, and in order to do that, you have to have a drainage study showing where 2466

the water is going and what you're gonna do with it.  2467

We do have requirements in the Development Agreement that they do those things before any 2468

construction activities can happen. So, I guess I'm a little bit at issue with what was said, that 2469

they could go and build in a – drainage easement. They can't. 2470

 2471 

MAYOR GOODMAN2472

Cannot. Thank you. 2473

 2474 

SHAUNA HUGHES2475

Thank you, Mayor. 2476

 2477 

MAYOR GOODMAN2478

Thank you so much. 2479

2480

FRANK PANKRATZ2481

Mayor, Frank Pankratz, 9103, Number 801, Alta Drive. It's really hard to sit here. The staff had 2482

worked for two and a half years, meeting with us weekly to come up with the agreement. The 2483

neighbors didn't like it. We got their input. Mr. Jerbic, Mr. Perrigo met with the neighbors. They 2484

came back. We made changes, changes, changes. We went through Mr. Buckley's 40, plus 41 2485
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comments, after Mr. Jerbic and his team went through them. And, the ones that needed to be 2486

changed that were appropriate, we changed the Development Agreement. And the ones that 2487

weren't appropriate, there were some that were in there that were irrelevant, things like we hear 2488

the numbers that Shauna Hughes just mentioned. They're wrong. And we've corrected her in the 2489

past, and I've sent her sheets. I tabulated and I showed her what the densities are and aren't. Here, 2490

today, she stands before you and gives you incorrect information.  2491

We hear the traffic study hasn't been approved. We have an approved traffic study. The City 2492

worked really hard at it. It wasn't just the professional engineers, the G.C. Wallace Engineering, 2493

that licenses were on the line when they prepared the traffic study. It – was turned over to the 2494

City. The City gave it to Parsons Brinckerhoff, who had done, in 2006, the Rampart Corridor 2495

Traffic Study, and Parsons Brinckerhoff were satisfied with it. Then, the City staff, with their 2496

profession on the line, reviewed the traffic study and approved it when we were at 3,080 units. 2497

Today, we're at – much less. So, if it worked for 3,080, we know we've got some work left to do. 2498

But, here's why we're in the problem. We keep, repeatedly, in front of you and the Planning 2499

Commission and staff, all these incorrect pieces of information when we've previously pointed it 2500

out and pointed it out to these folks, and, it's just not right, and it's not fair. Thank you. 2501

 2502 

MAYOR GOODMAN2503

Thank you so much. You've been waiting patiently. Please do say your name for the record, and 2504

welcome back. 2505

 2506 

RAYMOND FLETCHER2507

Good afternoon, Mayor, members of the Council. Mayor Goodman, your passion –  2508

 2509 

MAYOR GOODMAN2510

Your name. 2511

001407

5600



CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
AUGUST 2, 2017 

COMBINED VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT – ITEM 8 EXCERPT AND ITEMS 53 AND 31 

Page 91 of 155 

RAYMOND FLETCHER2512

I'm sorry. I'm used to you all knowing me. Raymond Fletcher, for the record. How you doing, 2513

Councilman? 2514

 2515 

MAYOR GOODMAN2516

He's been teaching. Yes, Sir. 2517

 2518 

RAYMOND FLETCHER2519

Your passion, I was sittin’ in the back, just chilling. Councilman Anthony caught me playing 2520

golf earlier. But your passion is what caused me to come up here, your – drive to get something 2521

done. And Yes, Sir.it reminds me of why I got involved in politics, why I got my degree. Now, 2522

I'm gonna go in a different direction here than everybody else that's been coming up. 2523

From what I've ascertained, is you need some kind of amendment to a plan that exists. So, you, 2524

what I've also heard is people claiming, I don't know if it's factual or not, but staff has been 2525

providing you and the Council members inaccurate or false information. If that is correct, and it's 2526

causing us to go into litigation, as a taxpayer, I don't want my tax money paying for another 2527

lawsuit. We have enough of those already today. What my suggestion would be is this. If we 2528

truly need to get some kind of amendment going from a City 2020 Plan, let's start there. That’d 2529

be my first step.  2530

Secondly, who turned the water off? Why does it look like a desert? Maybe you need to cast 2531

blame there. 2532

Thirdly, who, what do the residents of this community want? Ma'am, can I come into your home 2533

and tell you what to do with your living room? Absolutely not. 2534

 2535 

MAYOR GOODMAN2536

I would hate it. 2537

 2538 

RAYMOND FLETCHER2539

And I would never disrespect you as such. 2540
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MAYOR GOODMAN2541

Thank you. 2542

 2543 

RAYMOND FLETCHER2544

Much like we shouldn't have somebody coming into our neighborhood, our community dictating 2545

what these people have, what they want.2546

And, finally, if I disparaged you or anybody on the Council, calling them an anti-Semite, or 2547

anything like that, I, as a human being, could not in clear conscience work with someone like 2548

that. Because if I disagree with you and you're gonna start calling me names, what happens when 2549

Councilwoman Fiore disagrees with me? What happens when Councilman Barlow disagrees 2550

with me? What happens when Mayor Pro Tem Tarkanian disagrees with me?  2551

Are we gonna start calling each other names? Are we two years old? We're adults for crying out 2552

loud. And to have people like this in our community, setting the example like this for our kids? 2553

So these are grown adults. These are planners. These are people that come develop our 2554

community, and they're gonna call our elected officials names. They're gonna start smear 2555

campaigns, because they're gonna not agree with the position, because you may have changed 2556

what you said today from what you said last week. 2557

Now, I – am –, sincerely, I am a common-sense guy, and, with all these lawyers, with everything 2558

going on, the two years, the water being shut off, the people being forced to take something they 2559

don't want, and I know you're not gonna like this because it's been two years, but why not start 2560

on page one?  2561

Get the plan in place that you need. Get your guidelines in place that you need. Get your 2562

ordinances in place that need to be in place prior to, and then let's not go into a community and 2563

dictate what they need. Let's ask them: What would you like? This is our city, Ma'am. We need 2564

to work together. We need to do a better job of working together. We need adults to come to the 2565

table. We need people, as Councilwoman Fiore said, to get their egos out (sic) the way.  2566

Look, I’m a – guy, I'm only one of 150 people in the entire world. I could roll around angry as all 2567

can be with the ignorant comments I get told every day, with the ignorant stares I get at the bus 2568

stop, rolling up the street, whatever. I don't, I try to take that negativity, and okay, that person 2569
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just doesn't understand what it's like to be me. That person just doesn't understand the challenges 2570

I'm going through. Okay, so maybe these people behind me don't know what the community 2571

wants. Maybe they should ask them, instead of dictating what they want.  2572

There's my suggestion to you, Madame Mayor. I know you want to move forward on this. And 2573

like I said, I thank you for your passion. 2574

 2575 

MAYOR GOODMAN2576

Thank you – as always.2577

 2578 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2579

Madame Mayor? 2580

 2581 

MAYOR GOODMAN2582

Yes, please, Mayor Pro Tem? 2583

 2584 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2585

Could I just, you know, what he said just brought to my mind what I've been thinking up here, 2586

and that is why did you pull the work you were doing on the GPA? Was the GPA needed, Mr. 2587

Jerbic? 2588

 2589 

BRAD JERBIC2590

The Code requires that at some point in time there be an application to synchronize the zoning 2591

with the General Plan. And they don't have to be necessarily simultaneous. But if you want them 2592

to be, it could be. All we're saying is that I don't know, I can't remember why it was pulled in 2593

November. The one that was denied in January, or whenever the 61 were denied, it could come 2594

back, because it wouldn't be that same GPA. You could bring a GPA for the whole project back 2595

anytime you wanted to.2596
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COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2597

Well, this is what I'm wondering. It takes 90 days we were told today for a GPA, and I'm 2598

thinking 90 days? How quickly we could have gone through that. And yet, this is really the key 2599

point of one side of this issue. They don't have a GPA, so it wasn't started right, so it's not right, 2600

and this goes over and over and over again. Why didn't they get the GPA? 2601

 2602 

BRAD JERBIC2603

Let me turn to Mr. Perrigo as well. Please, Tom.  2604

 2605 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2606

I'm sorry, Sir. I just had that in my head. 2607

 2608 

TOM PERRIGO2609

No. Thank you, Madame Mayor. So just, maybe a little bit of background. The Master Plan, 2610

really is, has a few jobs. It establishes the vision for the future development of the City. It 2611

establishes goals and objectives for how that vision will be carried out and the – community will 2612

be developed. And it establishes land use designations, which set density. And that's really what 2613

the Master Plan does.2614

So, as the Code requires and as staff and Council always ask, that the zoning and land use be 2615

consistent. In this case, the zoning district includes the density. The application was consistent 2616

with the zoning and the density that's contained within – the zoning. 2617

So, this, and – overall in – this area, the original Master Plan, back in 1985, showed a residential 2618

neighborhood development and service and general commercial. The zoning came along in 2619

1990. In 1992, the plan was amended, and it showed open space that roughly followed where the 2620

golf course was anticipated to be. And then in 2005, it was changed again to reflect where the 2621

golf course is, and it was given PR-OS. 2622

So, with all that, sort of as background, the way that staff evaluated this, and I'll ask 2623

Mr. Summerfield or Mr. Lowenstein to add to this as well, is that given the densities embedded 2624

in the zoning, and given that the zoning has existed for a number of years, 27 years with that 2625
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density, that although, yes, as the Staff Report reflects, a general plan amendment is – something 2626

that would be requested and that should come along to make the two consistent, as Mr. Jerbic 2627

stated and as has been said repeatedly, the opinion of staff is that the applicant has a right to 2628

come forward and request development under – the zoning. 2629

 2630 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2631

See, the question I have is that I've been hearing this GPA thing for months. For months. If 2632

that’s, if they brought that up, if this one side brought up the GPA situation early on, why didn't 2633

the other side get the GPA thing? And why didn't we say, hey, you've got to get it eventually? So 2634

why wouldn't they have gotten it early on? Am I missing something here? 2635

 2636 

BRAD JERBIC2637

Yeah.2638

 2639 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2640

Okay.2641

 2642 

BRAD JERBIC2643

I will tell you what I think is missing here. There are, obviously, different opinions that you've 2644

heard. And – the real question is, I'm going to be really blunt. Do you trust your staff or not? The 2645

Staff here has literally read the Code, gone through the Code, has literally interpreted it, I think, 2646

right down the line. I think there are areas of the Code that are less than clear sometimes and 2647

areas of the Code that I think Tom is exactly right. The zoning had been in place here for 27 2648

years, so the Development Agreement goes forward. It's a desirable thing, a very desirable thing 2649

to have the Master Plan, the General Plan, same thing, synchronized with the zoning, and they're 2650

not in sync right now. And at some point in time, an application will come forward to 2651

synchronize them. And you'll vote for it or you won't. But the fact is, if you didn't even have a 2652

general plan amendment that synchronized the General Plan with the zoning, the zoning is still in 2653

place, and it doesn't change a thing.  2654
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I think, to me, and this is my personal opinion, Councilwoman, this is a red-herring argument. I 2655

do not think that this is dispositive of anything that's relevant to this Council, because I think 2656

you're being asked, quite honestly, to be lawyers or judges and look at a legal case instead of a 2657

development agreement.  2658

And I think the real question before you is: Is this development agreement something you think 2659

is compatible with this neighborhood and is it good? And the rest of the stuff, when it comes to 2660

the law and when it comes to planning, there, it will either be faith that staff has done their job or 2661

not.2662

But I think the real question for the Council is not to sit here as judges when it comes to the legal 2663

issues. I think the real question here is to say: Did we get it right? Are the numbers right? Is the 2664

density right? Are the setbacks right? If they're not, then don't vote for it.  2665

 2666 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2667

And, Mr. Jerbic, I'm not a lawyer, so I didn't take that as a legal issue so much. I'm – involved 2668

with GPAs all the time, and we all are on this Council. So, I don't consider that in, necessarily 2669

just with legal. I – it might be a legal thing, but it's where we make judgments and we make 2670

recommendations. Are you telling me then the zoning for where the golf course is, that PD, what 2671

is it? 2672

 2673 

BRAD JERBIC2674

R-PD7.2675

 2676 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2677

R-PD7, is, it's consistent with the number of units they would be having throughout? And I'm not 2678

just talking in the area of the flood plains. I'm talking in the other. 2679

 2680 

BRAD JERBIC2681

That's a planning issue, so I'm gonna let Tom answer that.2682
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TOM PERRIGO2683

The answer is, yes. 2684

2685

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2686

So, it would be. That's the strangest thing, because, you know, as, and that's why I probably need 2687

additional time in this. But as I read some of this, I – read that they were supposed to have a – 2688

view, not necessarily what the law says you, you know, the vision, you have to have your, but, 2689

it’s what do you call it, space. And that's why I'm not quite understanding this. But I'll – be quiet 2690

and try to learn. 2691

 2692 

BRAD JERBIC2693

I’ll add one final comment, and I think Mr. Bice will agree with this too – 2694

 2695 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2696

I'll just keep trying to learn, that's all. 2697

 2698 

BRAD JERBIC2699

Don’t, I wouldn't, in this discussion, say because lawyers say this or lawyers say this, even 2700

myself, that doesn't mean that your discretion isn't involved in looking at whether or not this is a 2701

good deal. That's ultimately what you're here for. If we did our job right as lawyers, it doesn't 2702

mean it's a deal that you should approve. 2703

It means it's a deal that's up for your consideration because it meets legal requirements, and it 2704

may meet also planning requirements. But there's nothing in any of my suggestions about general 2705

plan amendments or anything else that says that controls your decision making, and you should 2706

do it. If, that, it’s, totally within your discretion. That's what you're here for.  2707

 2708 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2709

I also wanna say that I trust our staff, but I also disagree with them sometimes, because when 2710

you talk about comparable and compatible, you know, issues come up. Even in my little ward 2711
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that doesn't have these grand things, we have things where that happens, where maybe certain 2712

things don't go in certain places. So, those are things I think you have to consider. 2713

 2714 

BRAD JERBIC2715

Yeah, and we agree, too. And I – will say I agree with Shauna and everybody else that has said 2716

it, that's up to you to decide, not me, whether 2100 units is compatible with Queensridge.  2717

 2718 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN2719

Right. Again, Mayor, if I just might add, please, that that's another reason why I – agree with 2720

Councilwoman Fiore and the Mayor on needing additional time. Today is August 1st, 2nd; isn't 2721

it? August 1st is when I finally – got something that gave me information that I knew was out 2722

there someplace on the traffic problem, on the additional gateway in, and things along that line. 2723

Plus, I got the large amount from Yohan's group. The Navy SEAL. I got, I couldn't read it all. It 2724

was very finely done, and I was trying to read it. So that's why I agreed in the delay too. And I'm 2725

done now, Mayor. And I apologize.2726

 2727 

MAYOR GOODMAN2728

No, thank you. I mean, we do have someone who has been a Navy SEAL. So kudos to you for 2729

surviving that. Yes, please, your name? 2730

 2731 

RICK KOST2732

My name is Rick Kost, 9813 Queen Charlotte. I live on the golf course. I've lived on it for 17 2733

years. I have a view of three holes. It's brown now, but I still have my view. My property values 2734

are more with a problem because somebody might live behind me, not because it's brown. My 2735

view is excellent, pretty. It can stay brown. That’s, and a lot of residents think that way. 2736

 2737 

MAYOR GOODMAN2738

Good.2739
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RICK KOST2740

Because my view is maintained. The uncertainty on property values is, I'm gonna have a bunch 2741

of homes living behind, and they don't know how many. That seems to be the question that 2742

people ask, not because the water is turned off. Even though it's unsightly, on/off.  2743

But Mayor, I want to hold you to one thing you said a long time ago. When this meeting and this 2744

all comes together that the HOA or the people living there get to vote on it, and you wanted a 2745

high consensus, I remember 80, 85 percent coming off your list, I hold you to that. No matter 2746

what we have, that the residents get to vote and give you, the people that live there, not the 2747

different wards, not the different areas, but the people that live in Queensridge get to vote on 2748

this, get their opinion.2749

All of you have great opinions and weigh in, are concerned of property values and taxes, and 2750

that, but the residents should vote. This is a development inside a development with its own 2751

HOA. It's a strange bird that everybody's at odds with.2752

 2753 

MAYOR GOODMAN 2754

Yes, (inaudible) –2755

2756

RICK KOST2757

But you said and everybody's trying to speak for us. I'm not a lawyer. I'm a resident that's been 2758

there a long time. And I assure you there's a lot of different opinions. We're as diverse as this 2759

Council is.2760

But the one thing is true. I still have my view, and I'd like to keep that view as best I can or 2761

minimize it, or at least have the opportunity to put a vote down as one person out of a thousand 2762

and give my opinion, because that's really what I think you want in a final analysis, the people 2763

that have to live with this development, not the ones building it, the ones that have to live there. 2764

 2765 

MAYOR GOODMAN2766

Well, my hope is that with Councilman Seroka, that he would know your feelings, and that's 2767

what we've all been inundated with emails, phone calls, visits. And so my sense is, but I keep 2768
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going back to the same issue, that you may not even have a significant vote, because the 2769

developer may walk away. And then what you're left with, that is what's bothering me, and to go 2770

again one more time, that's what I'm worried about. I mean, the ideal thing is to get everybody to 2771

give the 15 percent and, but it doesn't sound like it's going to happen. 2772

 2773 

RICK KOST2774

Right, and – I'd agree with you –   2775

 2776 

MAYOR GOODMAN2777

It doesn't sound like it. 2778

 2779 

RICK KOST2780

And – we appreciate your concern. It appears, we don't have that same concern. 2781

 2782 

MAYOR GOODMAN2783

Well, I mean, I think it would be wonderful if we could get consensus from all the residents. I 2784

don't know if there ever has been a survey, because we have found, and this is just through 2785

conversation with either Mr. Perrigo or Mr. Jerbic, how often are you having a meeting that you 2786

have new people continuing to come in, or somebody will come to one meeting, then miss the 2787

next four and need to come back up to speed, have missed everything.  2788

And so, to me, to go ahead, I mean, you might be able to come up with different scenarios and 2789

get that master list of residents and say: Do you wanna leave it as is? What if the developer 2790

walks away from this? Is there a consensus among us that we can know that we will all pull 2791

together for 85 percent of us? Because I don't think you have it. I don't think you have it on 2792

anything. If you have a 50 percent consensus on something, I'd be shocked. So, but thank you –  2793

Okay. You have the answer, Mr. Bice.2794
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TODD BICE2795

I do –, Mayor. So, in respect of your request and Councilwoman Fiore's request, here's what I 2796

could agree to. And, unfortunately, Brad, the City Attorney isn't present right now. But, I – could 2797

stipulate to the 30-day, I don't know what 30 days gets you, but if it, I could stipulate to a 30-day 2798

stay of all litigation. I won't take anybody's depositions. I won't do anything. Okay? I could 2799

stipulate to that, but the – trial, obviously all the deadlines would have to be pushed off, and the 2800

trial date could not happen. Here's – the City Attorney. 2801

 2802 

MAYOR GOODMAN2803

Okay. Could you, I'm sorry to ask you to repeat it.  2804

 2805 

TODD BICE2806

Brad, what I, I've gone back to look at the schedule. What I could agree to is a 30-day, if that's 2807

all you wanted, if you want more than that, we can certainly work that out, I could agree to a 30-2808

day stay, no discovery, no briefing, no nothing. In other words, just complete stay of all the 2809

cases. The trial date, though, in the first filed action would have to be some time after December 2810

1 then, because in order to, you know, we're already in August, that would get us to September 2811

1st. To finish up the discovery, etc., it would have to be sometime after December 1. I, obviously, 2812

do not know what the court's schedule is. So I could agree – 2813

 2814 

BRAD JERBIC 2815

(inaudible)2816

2817

MAYOR GOODMAN2818

Microphone on.2819

 2820 

BRAD JERBIC2821

Sorry. I would say, on behalf of the City, as party defendants, we would agree to that if that's 2822

what the Council wanted. So we have no problem with that.2823
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TODD BICE2824

Yeah, so we can agree to that. Oh, I’m sorry – 2825

 2826 

FRANK PANKRATZ2827

Mr. Bice, could I make a suggestion? How about, because your clients have sued the City and us 2828

as the applicant, why, could you suggest just drop the lawsuits rather than just abey them? 2829

 2830 

TODD BICE2831

Mr. Pankratz, I – can understand why you would want that, but that cannot happen. That cannot 2832

happen under the law.2833

 2834 

MAYOR GOODMAN2835

Thank you, Mr. Bice. I don't know where we go. Mr. Jerbic, where does this go, then? 2836

 2837 

BRAD JERBIC2838

At this point in time, it's probably necessary to hear from the applicant whether or not they 2839

would agree to that, and if they wouldn't, it takes all three to make that happen. Let me put it this 2840

way. We're just removing an obstacle to that being an option for you. If – the applicant doesn't 2841

agree to it, they only have two parties agreeing to a continuance. You don't have three, then 2842

we're kind of back to the observation I made at the beginning. I don't know that I would put a lot 2843

of hope in that – continuance. If you expected an agreement, I wouldn't expect that would be 2844

productive.2845

 2846 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN2847

Your Honor, there's a fourth party.  2848

 2849 

MAYOR GOODMAN2850

Thank you. Well, Mr. Bice, thank you. I mean, we have, I see part of the team, the 2851

developer/applicant team, but one just went out the door. 2852
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COUNCILMAN COFFIN2853

Judges – have a party here too. They are a party. They have calendars. They may not want to 2854

change their calendar. It may not fit with all the other cases they've gotta handle. There's a good 2855

chance that we might talk all about it here, and it doesn't do any good.  2856

 2857 

RONALD IVERSEN2858

Hi.2859

 2860 

MAYOR GOODMAN2861

Hi there. 2862

 2863 

RONALD IVERSEN2864

Mayor Goodman and City Council members. My name is Ron Iversen, 9324 Verlaine Court in 2865

Queensridge. I'm the Treasurer on our Association's Board of Directors. And I have several 2866

comments from our – Board. 2867

First, we would ask for a denial of the current Development Agreement, or, at the very least, 2868

continuance of the development agreement crafting process. As outlined by our lawyer, the 2869

Development Agreement still contains real concerns of the Queensridge community and is not 2870

mature enough yet to represent a comprehensive agreement to last for the next 20 years. 2871

Second, the Board has met with the developer and Brad Jerbic on several occasions and believes 2872

it is the best conduit of information to and from the entire Queensridge community in this 2873

development agreement process. We have several resident groups that have met with Brad Jerbic 2874

to voice their concerns, discuss viable options. We only see the concerns of Tudor Park partially 2875

addressed in the current Development Agreement, not Ravel Court or Fairway Pointe or others. 2876

Third, and this is hopefully something that will be nice to, for you to hear. Third, we have 2877

developed a community survey, ready to release this week, that would address the key concerns 2878

of our community, and we would like time to – receive quantitative information and community 2879

input to provide to the City to aid the development agreement process.  2880
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These concerns include total density cap, density distribution, development in Development 2881

Area 3, perimeter landscaping before development construction, maintenance of the golf course 2882

during development construction, and if I may add, please get the water turned back on, it looks 2883

horrendous, development of site security because the developer still doesn't have a security 2884

concern in place, use of Queensridge entrances and land and roads, and then flood plain impact. 2885

We are very aware of the importance of the Development Agreement to our property values and 2886

our future in Queensridge. It's disconcerting that, to date, we've not been able to craft an 2887

agreement that addresses our, we believe, very reasonable and realistic concerns. We urge you to 2888

continue or deny the current agreement process as insufficient and continue writing an 2889

agreement that makes sense for all of us and is consistent with every development agreement in 2890

the value, in the Valley that's been approved so far. So thank you.  2891

 2892 

MAYOR GOODMAN2893

Thank you. Would you give that list to our City Clerk? Is it legible? 2894

 2895 

RONALD IVERSEN2896

Sure. I'd be very happy to. 2897

 2898 

MAYOR GOODMAN2899

Thank you. And that's Mr. Iversen, Staff, Ronald Iversen. Thank you –.  2900

 2901 

GORDON CULP2902

Councilmen and Mayor, thank you for this opportunity. My name’s Gordon Culp. I'm not a 2903

lawyer. I'm a professional engineer. I've been in the consulting business for 50 years, plus, and a 2904

Queensridge resident for the last 19 years. And I promise I won't repeat anything that I've 2905

presented in any past meetings.  2906

You know, on June 21st, the action that this Council took on the Development Agreement was to 2907

abey it for six weeks. We assumed that one of the purposes was for further discussions and 2908

negotiations and a revised Development Agreement issued with time for careful review by the 2909
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public. Well, this didn't happen. In fact, the Development Agreement has been undergoing 2910

constant change in the last week. 2911

Now we've been paying particular attention to the Ravel Court issues, because that's where we 2912

live, and we worked with our neighbors, sort of leading that group in addressing our concerns. 2913

And in the course of the last week, we've seen several versions of the Development Agreement 2914

posted by the City. One, there would be a 75-foot no-build zone and a 75-foot transition zone 2915

behind our houses. Or, two, there'd be a no-build zone of 105 feet. Or, three, there's going to be 2916

one 2-acre lot.2917

And based on what the presentation was today, we assume, although the City has posted all three 2918

options, the developer is proceeding with the one two-acre lot approach. And that's why I'd like 2919

to spend just a couple minutes reviewing what that means to us as residents.  2920

These are the current views from the five homes that are in question. And what the developer 2921

originally proposed in one of the proposal’s exhibits posted this week online, here are the – 2922

homes on Ravel Court that are the subject of the discussion, was multi-story condos that would 2923

be, loom 35 foot (sic) above the floor slab elevations of these homes.  2924

 2925 

MAYOR GOODMAN2926

Excuse me. Where are the – Ravel Court homes? 2927

 2928 

GORDON CULP2929

Right here, these homes.  2930

 2931 

MAYOR GOODMAN2932

Okay. Thank you.2933

 2934 

GORDON CULP2935

You can see that they would be looking at a solid wall of condos. There's a slight break in 2936

between these two. And, these are about 50 feet in total height and about 35 feet above the slab 2937
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of the homes. It's a pretty imposing view. In fact, we've attempted to represent that in this 2938

picture.2939

And let me just explain briefly how the picture was made before anybody gets concerned about 2940

the representation here. We took some photos of some existing condos that are higher than 35 2941

feet. So we cut a section out of the middle and we used the height of the windows, which are 60 2942

inches to get us the vertical scale. So this represents 35 feet above the ground elevation at the 2943

home. This is a view of 70, that condo complex 75 feet away. Compare that to the current view, 2944

and you tell me that's compatible and complementary. It's devastating.  2945

The two-acre proposal that is apparently before us, is shown here. Here are the five homes on 2946

Ravel. One's actually on Pont Chartrain. These are the five homes, right at the corner. Originally, 2947

there was a 75-foot build, no building zone and a 75-foot transition zone. The one acre, one 2-2948

acre lot happens to correspond exactly to the dimensions of those two zones or within a few feet. 2949

So, there’s really, it didn't provide us much relief over what we had to start with.  2950

This is what the condos would look like. At that distance, they're still pretty imposing. Now, 2951

there would be vegetation between here and there, and there would be a development, one estate 2952

lot developed between here and there. But behind us, or, the complex that has 1669 rental units. 2953

So planting the trees, it’s a little bit like putting the lipstick on a pig. The big problem is behind 2954

there. We got 1669 renters suddenly in the middle of our backyard.  2955

We approached the developer. We sort of liked the two-acre concept. They'd give us two 2-acre 2956

lots, so we'd actually get some relief from the condos. That was immediately and adamantly 2957

rejected. So, if we had that, it would make a big difference, because that would put the condos 2958

about 300 feet away, which now becomes a little less overwhelming. We'd rather have them 500 2959

feet away so that Development Area 3 was just open behind our houses, but we did agree that we 2960

would accept the two 2-acre lots.2961

And that, that's the last we heard. Since June 21, we've had no contact from the City, no contact 2962

from the developer, and we got a development agreement in front us, which we don't even know 2963

which one it is. We've got three of them in front of us and posted this week. So we would urge 2964

that this current Development Agreement be denied.2965
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MAYOR GOODMAN2966

Thank you –, Mr. Culp.2967

 2968 

ANNE SMITH2969

I'm Anne Smith, also of Ravel Court, and I appreciate the opportunity to talk here. Ravel Court 2970

has worked so hard in good faith over the last 18 months. We've been at every meeting, and I'm 2971

sure you're sick of seeing our faces, but we've been here, and we've worked with Brad to create 2972

reasonable options. The reason we're back today is because the developer has rejected each and 2973

every one of them, as Gordon mentioned, and that includes that two-acre lot. 2974

Multi-stories (sic) condos behind our lots, there's nowhere else in Development Area 4 that that 2975

occurs. We don't understand, really, why there’s a, when we heard today that the lack of 2976

consensus is being blamed on all the attorneys. There's (sic) no attorneys been telling Ravel 2977

Court what they can and can't do. And from experience with this negotiation, we've learned very 2978

quickly that the decision maker is Yohan Lowie. It's not the attorneys. So, the attorneys are not 2979

influencing what's happening in terms of negotiations on Ravel Court.  2980

The issue is really that the developer took a calculated risk on this property and now demands 2981

this high density to make his desired numbers pencil out. The City Council should be dictating 2982

the density, that's compatible and complementary, as we, everybody's been talking about. Putting 2983

over 1600 units, rental units at that, on Development Areas 2 and 3 adjacent to Ravel, Tudor 2984

Park, and Fairway Pointe in a, it's neither compatible nor complementary.  2985

But, in general, we're just really so tired and we’re, of all of this. We've lost faith and belief in 2986

the process and the fact that we could even, over the next 30 days even come to something on 2987

this fatally flawed agreement. I don't see how it can be modified enough to work with this high-2988

density that they're demanding.  2989

And so we are urging, and I am –, we're pleading – here to deny it today, because, even with the 2990

30 days, it's starting point is with the same high-density, and that's not worked under (sic) the last 2991

weeks. It's not worked over the last 18 months. And I can't see the developer moving enough to 2992

make it worth it. So we're asking you to deny it today and start over and not abey it any further. 2993

Thank you very much.2994
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MAYOR GOODMAN2995

And if that happens, they may be gone, and then you need a new developer to come in to start all 2996

over.2997

 2998 

ANNE SMITH2999

And, you know, each developer is a different kind of personality – 3000

 3001 

MAYOR GOODMAN3002

Without question. 3003

 3004 

ANNE SMITH3005

– and not perhaps as rigid as this one. 3006

 3007 

MAYOR GOODMAN3008

Well, and that may be where you end up.  3009

 3010 

ANNE SMITH3011

It may be. And it couldn't get much worse. 3012

 3013 

MAYOR GOODMAN3014

Okay. Thank you  – for coming by. 3015

 3016 

ELISE CANONICO3017

Good afternoon, Mayor, and City Councilmen. I am Elise Canonico. I reside at 9153 Tudor Park 3018

Place. I'm speaking as Vice President of the Board for Queensridge on behalf of Tudor Park 3019

residents and as a homeowner.  3020

For the record, the spectacular view that we have enjoyed for the past 10 years is what kept us 3021

extremely happy in Queensridge. I lived for this view. Needless to say, that happiness was 3022

stripped from us when the developer purchased the golf course and threatened to shut the water 3023
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off. The homeowner living on the golf course, the homeowners living on the golf course in 3024

Tudor Park Place paid a lot premium of $100,000. Now, in exchange for our once spectacular 3025

views and open space, the developer is opening, offering us 20 feet of land, which is the best of 3026

the worst case scenario. 3027

We all believe Phase III of this Development Agreement should be eliminated as this is way too 3028

much high-density for our community and all our surrounding neighbors. This is actually 3029

unheard of, for one person to be able to put 3,000 plus residents through the torment that he has 3030

put us all through for the last two years.3031

Please say no to the high density behind Tudor Park, behind the homes of Ravel Court and 3032

Fairway Pointe. Please say no to the 2,000, plus, units that are not compatible to the Queensridge 3033

community.  3034

 3035 

MAYOR GOODMAN3036

Thank you. 3037

 3038 

ELISE CANONICO3039

Thank you.3040

 3041 

BOB PECCOLE3042

I'm Bob Peccole, 9740 Verlaine Court. I am an attorney. I have two cases against the applicant 3043

sitting in the Nevada Supreme Court, and one in district court. And I am not going to get 3044

involved with a 30-day moratorium, because I have no control over that. 3045

 3046 

MAYOR GOODMAN3047

Thank you. 3048

 3049 

BOB PECCOLE3050

I'd like to point out a couple things. Councilman (sic) Fiore had mentioned some concern about 3051

the flood drainage control system. I would like to point out to the City Council that the flood 3052
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drainage control for Queensridge is represented in three different recorded documents. One is an 3053

onsite drainage agreement that was entered into on June 12th, 1995. What it did is it granted an 3054

80-foot wide easement, which was for flood drainage control, all the way through the first 18 3055

holes of the Badlands Golf Course. That is a recorded document, and I have the book number 3056

and the instrument number cited, which I will give to you. 3057

There is a separate 80-foot wide City of Las Vegas drainage easement recorded on the 18-hole 3058

golf course, and, it was built and designed on what they call lot five, and – a the Badlands Golf 3059

Course has been designated lot five. That's how they broke it down. On March 30th, 1998, a map 3060

was recorded showing a flood drainage easement that was granted on the entire added nine holes. 3061

So that entire nine holes is subject to a recorded flood drainage easement. 3062

Now, when you were talking to your City Attorney about meeting and trying to – work these 3063

things out, one of the questions that entered my mind right away is: Will he follow the law in this 3064

meeting, and will it be discussed? Because, in the master covenants and conditions for the 3065

Queensridge homes, the CC&Rs, do not allow the storm drain system to be changed.  3066

And I'm citing from paragraph 5.2.4 of the 1996 CC&Rs. It says there shall be no interference 3067

with the rain gutters, downspouts, or drainage or storm drain systems originally installed by 3068

declarant. Now, declarant was Peccole Nevada. That's my family. And what they said went on – 3069

or any other interference with the established drainage pattern over any portion of the property.3070

And then in the last paragraph of that particular section, it says, there shall be no violation of the 3071

drainage requirements of the City, County, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, or State of Nevada 3072

Division of Environmental Protection, notwithstanding any such approval of declarant or the 3073

Design Review Committee. What this is saying is you could not change it. 3074

Now, if you take a look at the Development Agreement that is proposed, if you look at Page (sic) 3075

15, 36 and 37, it's giving the applicant the – authority to go ahead and change, which they cannot 3076

do. So if you practice law, and if you don't want to be bound by – law, of course, as an attorney, 3077

I would have to go into court and try to straighten it out. And that is – something you should be 3078

addressing now before you get too far into this. 3079

Another thing I'd like to discuss is the fact that Councilman (sic) Fiore and the Mayor's statement 3080

with regard to what would happen if the developer happened to walk away is faulty, for the 3081
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reason you both said, well, you'll get another developer. That's not true. You won't get another 3082

developer. They won't touch it, because if you deny this, why would they come in?  3083

What you will get is somebody that builds golf courses and runs golf courses. I know you, 3084

you’ve all said several times, you know, that the golf courses aren't making money and that. This 3085

golf course, when Mr. Lowie bought the – stock to the LLC, was making $264,000 a year for the 3086

owner, and he didn't have to turn a hand. He just picked up his check out of the mailbox.  3087

Now, if you can have buyers come in and buy, you know, the two golf courses here as part of a 3088

packaged deal for $1.1 billion, tell me what's happening with golf. Golf is coming back. It's a 3089

cyclical thing. And just because Mr. Lowie says, well, I can't make it as a golf course; he never 3090

intended to make it as a golf course. He bought that piece of property for $7 million. He stands to 3091

make close to $1 billion if he ever gets the entitlement. And – how does he do it? He rides in on 3092

the back of the people that own the property where he decides he's going to destroy the beauty. 3093

I – wrote down a comment that was made by Stephanie when she was talking, and it just kind of 3094

stuck with me. She said: Adopt our – view. Make this into something special. 3095

Listen, Queensridge is something special right now. It does not have to be destroyed to make it 3096

something that will never be what it is now. And as far as letting it go to desert, let it go to 3097

desert. His money’s up, supposedly, but he borrowed it all. Let's see what the lenders do with 3098

that.3099

 3100 

ROBERT EGLET3101

Good afternoon, Mayor, members of the Council. My name is Robert Eglet, and I am a lawyer. I 3102

hope you don't hold that against me. But I'm not here in the capacity as a lawyer. And I think I 3103

bring a little bit different perspective to the homeowners of Queensridge, in that I have not lived 3104

in Queensridge for 10 to 15 to 20 years, like many of the people who have spoken.  3105

I own the lot, which I purchased in 2012, at 9404 Kings Gate Court, which is just next door to 3106

Mr. Fertitta's lot, just west of him. And as I told you, Mayor, when I met with you three weeks 3107

ago, I've been under construction now for 16 months, with about another 9 months to go. And 3108

you – kind of chuckled at me and said: Are you crazy? What are you doing? Why would you 3109

start construction under these circumstances?  3110
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Because almost two years ago, I was, started getting pulled in different directions by the parties 3111

involved to get involved in this case and because I've lived here almost my entire life and I've 3112

known many of the residents of Queensridge for 30, plus, years, there are some of them in there I 3113

went to high school with here. And I know different residents have taken different positions on 3114

this, and the last thing I wanted to do was get in the middle of this fight and alienate any of my 3115

neighbors. And so I have stayed out of it and tried to stay neutral for as long as possible. 3116

Over the last couple of months, with the golf course turning brown, I've become very, very 3117

concerned, however, and not so much with the golf course turning brown, but with the front gate 3118

entrance to, from the Charleston exit, which leads to my property, with that hole being brown, 3119

the grass dying, and the horrible way it looks as you come into the property.  3120

I'm not a land-use lawyer, so I don't know about this stuff. But I, just generally, I don't believe 3121

you can force somebody who owns the property that a golf course was on to water the golf 3122

course. I don't think you can force them to do that under the law, and I understand that. I don't 3123

believe this golf course is gonna come back. I don't believe that some other developer is gonna 3124

come in there and build another golf course. 3125

So, my position on this is, what is our best option? What is our best option for this property? 3126

What is going to increase the values of these properties? And it's – difficult for me to get up here 3127

and say this, because I know I may lose some friends that I've had for a long time over this in 3128

this neighborhood. But I've spent the last month or so looking at all of these issues and trying to 3129

figure out what would be the best for the entire community. I know there's (sic) individuals with, 3130

in this neighborhood with various individual problems. But what would be better for the – 3131

benefit of the entire community? 3132

And I look at what is proposed by this developer in what's called Area 4, I guess, the two- to 3133

five-acre lots, and that greens up the area where the golf course is. And I think that doesn't, and 3134

it's below all, at least where my lot is, I think most of the lots on the golf course. It's below where 3135

our lots are. It's going to be below us. And I think that that would, my opinion is that would 3136

increase the value of our lots.3137
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I have watched, I bought this – lot in 2012, and I've seen the property diminish in the way it 3138

looks, and particularly by – the front entrance on the – Charleston side where that golf hole used 3139

to be and now it is dead.3140

I'm not, I think the, I know all the lawyers on both sides of this case; I have great respect for all 3141

of them. I'm not gonna pick on any of the lawyers, and I think they're just doing their jobs. But I, 3142

none of them represent me, and I don't think the lawyers that do represent some of the 3143

homeowners on the other side represent most of the homeowners. I think most of the 3144

homeowners are unrepresented in this case, and unfortunately they're not all here to speak, or 3145

maybe fortunately for you. But I agree that there's probably differing opinions. I know some of 3146

my good friends in that neighborhood disagree with what I'm saying.  3147

But this whole project, as a whole, I think increases the value of the neighborhood, increases the 3148

area even where the – high-density areas is (sic). I know that shopping center on the corner of 3149

Charleston and Rampart, I can, the name of it escapes me now, has struggled for years with 3150

getting tenants in there. They have many shops that are closed.  3151

I believe with this high density you're talking about, that's going to increase the value of that 3152

shopping center. They're gonna have more traffic, foot traffic, people in there, and I think it's 3153

gonna help the whole area. And I believe that if the commercial area around that is bettered and 3154

is increased in value, that's going to increase the value of our properties as well.  3155

Now, that said, I didn't purchase this lot and I didn't build this house as an investment. I built this 3156

house to live in, and I plan on living in this house, hopefully, for the rest of my life. And, if my 3157

grown children will get their acts together, maybe they'll provide me some grandchildren to 3158

enjoy it with. 3159

But, I just wanna say, with the – risk of alienating a lot of my neighbors, when you look – at the 3160

overall project and the benefit that it will provide to the vast majority of the residents, the 3161

homeowners, I think this is a good project. And I think, what I am very, very concerned about is 3162

what, Your Honor, Mayor said, is, what's gonna happen if this doesn’t, isn't developed?  3163

And I know one of the – homeowners said they're not concerned about the brown golf course; 3164

they still have their views. I happen to disagree with that. I mean, I, when I look at, out of the 3165
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back of my lot now and see just dead desert, dead, it's not what I purchased. And I would like to 3166

see this developed.3167

I have no opinion on the continuance, whether that will do any good. I haven't been involved in 3168

any of the negotiations. I have talked to a few of you this – week to express my concerns and 3169

what I think about this. And I'm just one homeowner. I'm not speaking for anyone else here. I'm 3170

just speaking for myself. But in my view, I think this development, if you look at what – are the 3171

alternatives, this is the best alternative we have. Other than a golf course, which I don't think is 3172

gonna happen, this is the best alternative we have.3173

So, for me, I would encourage, if there's not going to be a continuance and continue to try to 3174

work on this – deal, to get it resolved, I – would encourage the Council to vote in favor of this 3175

project. Thank you. 3176

 3177 

MAYOR GOODMAN3178

Thank you very much.  3179

 3180 

ALICE COBB3181

Good afternoon. Madame Mayor and Council, welcome new members. My name is Alice Cobb, 3182

and I'm the Board President for One Queensridge Place. But as a homeowner, I have just a 3183

couple of things to say. It seems that we got a lot of people who have worked very hard and are 3184

exhausted around this issue, and that includes the development team. It includes the 3185

homeowners, the boards involved, and everybody is trying to find a way to either mathematically 3186

or psychologically get to the right answer for them.  3187

And I would only say that we should continue. I think that my homeowners would agree that we 3188

would like to continue and Brad, more actively, I think, in the next 30 days or however long it 3189

takes, to get a conclusion on this, because I think where we are right now is very fragmented. 3190

Even the Council is fragmented on it. So we – do need to take care of it, one way or another.  3191

And one other thing that the brown golf course is now causing is it is so dry, and this has never 3192

happened before, but we've got rats. And if we've got rats, everybody else has them too. So if 3193

there's any way we could prudently put some water to the golf course, it doesn't have to be 3194
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watered like a golf course, but we need some water there, or otherwise rats turn into a health 3195

problem. So, if we can do anything about that, we'd appreciate it. 3196

 3197 

MAYOR GOODMAN3198

Thank you. 3199

 3200 

ALICE COBB3201

Thank you.3202

 3203 

EVA THOMAS3204

Hi, Mayor, Councilmen and Councilwomen. 3205

 3206 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3207

May I interrupt just one second, Your Honor – 3208

 3209 

EVA THOMAS3210

My name’s Eva Thomas –  3211

 3212 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3213

Could I ask for your time for just a minute? 3214

 3215 

EVA THOMAS3216

Yeah. Sure. 3217

 3218 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3219

Mayor, may I ask a question of Legal? I've been asked a lot of times the last few weeks about 3220

this water problem and the critters dying and the grass dying. And the last representative, I think, 3221

made a good case for sporadic watering on the golf course, one hole, maybe have one or two 3222

sprinklers and another one here and there and – maybe a couple of collections of water for some 3223
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of these critters to drink, because if rats are coming, then they bring other scum. And we know 3224

lots of small, adorable little critters have died, but there's probably still some alive. My point is 3225

that it's unfair on the homeowners to drive the animals, the wildlife, up onto the homes. Why 3226

can't we just tell the developer to maintain some water, not for a golf course, but for public 3227

safety? 3228

 3229 

BRAD JERBIC3230

The public safety issue doesn't really exist here in the form of turning back on the water. When it 3231

came to Silverstone, we were able to force them to turn back on the water because grass was a 3232

necessary part of the drainage system. And so, the drainage doesn't work without it, and that's 3233

how you got to a public safety issue. 3234

Here, you still have a public safety issue, and it's very unfortunate, but you save the public safety 3235

issue here by eventually chopping down the trees and making sure the weeds aren't high enough 3236

to catch fire. But there is no way, legally, that we can compel the owner of the golf course to turn 3237

on the water without his consent.3238

I do want to say what I said earlier at the podium. Part of the disappointment of – this deal is that 3239

I asked for that to be in this deal, that the water be turned back on at least for critical areas of the 3240

course, and it's not there. And in fact, the part of the deal that was there before, the requirement 3241

that the developer use his best efforts to keep the water on, which was at least something, that's 3242

not even in the deal any more. 3243

 3244 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3245

Well, shame on them. Thank you. 3246

 3247 

MAYOR GOODMAN3248

Yes, Ma'am.3249
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EVA THOMAS3250

Well, that’s, I'm Eva Thomas, 652 Ravel Court. I am the person that the animal wilderness 3251

people came out to the, my house and the Review Journal wrote the paper on. I have, I'm on the 3252

driving range, kind of looking at south. So, when it got brown, all the animals started coming in, 3253

I have like a half-acre backyard, and eating the grass. I don't have a problem with it. But then the 3254

rats and the bunnies are dying and falling in the pools.3255

So we started putting, my granddaughter and I, we put 25 huge bowls of water out every 3256

morning and every evening, and there's up to 150 bunnies that come. It's like a –, the homeless 3257

animals' food chain. They just come in and drink, and they leave. The quails, I don't know how 3258

many quails are left anymore. Yes? Are you waving to me? No. Okay. 3259

 3260 

MAYOR GOODMAN3261

We just saw Congresswoman Dina Titus. Bless, you. Keep up the fight. You're doing great. 3262

Thank you. Sorry.3263

 3264 

EVA THOMAS3265

That's okay. And chipmunks and – 3266

 3267 

MAYOR GOODMAN3268

And you know bunnies multiply.  3269

 3270 

EVA THOMAS 3271

Yeah. And –, well, they’re –3272

 3273 

MAYOR GOODMAN3274

So call Animal Control, get them taken in and fixed.3275
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EVA THOMAS3276

Well, I – don't know what's going to happen. But when Mr. Kaempfer said it's so nice to see the 3277

black, you know, the turkey buzzards flying up above, well, they're flying up above because 3278

there's (sic) dead bunnies everywhere. They're eating them left and right. That's why they're 3279

flying up above. 3280

 3281 

MAYOR GOODMAN3282

But, Ms. Thomas, I, you know, what you're saying, I mean, taking it to a different position at this 3283

moment, really and truly, I mean Rancho Circle was inundated with rabbits  – 3284

 3285 

EVA THOMAS3286

Yeah –. Right. 3287

 3288 

MAYOR GOODMAN3289

– to the point the people moved out of Rancho Circle. 3290

 3291 

EVA THOMAS3292

Right.3293

 3294 

MAYOR GOODMAN3295

You know, and I know I've spoken with Animal Control, because bunnies are bunnies. That's 3296

what they do. And so, I'm not sure and if you would inquire with, I'm not sure.  3297

 3298 

EVA THOMAS3299

Well, it's not just bunnies. We've got chipmunks and tons of birds.3300
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MAYOR GOODMAN3301

Well, but the reproduction. But could you have Animal Control at least pick up the bunnies? 3302

Because I've been told by Animal Control and by the Lied Center that they would spay each 3303

bunny.3304

 3305 

EVA THOMAS3306

Well, somebody has to do something, because that's a bowl we live in. It's not like all the 3307

bunnies say, hey, listen, there's no water here. We can take off and go up to the Red Rock 3308

Mountains. They – can't go anywhere.  3309

 3310 

MAYOR GOODMAN3311

Right.3312

 3313 

EVA THOMAS3314

The ponds, they can't drink out of the ponds. So they're dying.  3315

So, if – you can't turn the water back on, my issue is I've got them all coming to my house, and 3316

it's fine. I have no grass anymore, but they come to drink water every night. And it's all of them, 3317

the chipmunks, the birds, the coyote, the bunnies, all of them are there. So, that’s, I would just 3318

like to say that if he – doesn't financially have the money to turn the water back on, how is he 3319

financially going to have enough money to build this project of his? 3320

 3321 

MAYOR GOODMAN3322

Well, I appreciate it. But I really do hope you'll call the City Animal Control to come pick up 3323

animals so they're not reproducing. And you have 100 bunnies, you are going to 500 bunnies 3324

within months.  3325

 3326 

EVA THOMAS3327

Well, they’re, that's a big development.3328
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MAYOR GOODMAN3329

Right.3330

 3331 

EVA THOMAS3332

I'm sure everybody has the same thing going on. 3333

 3334 

MAYOR GOODMAN3335

But please call Animal Control for some help.  3336

 3337 

EVA THOMAS3338

Okay.3339

 3340 

MAYOR GOODMAN3341

Thank you –.3342

 3343 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3344

Madame Mayor, if I could just go through you, please. I wanted to just say that, my 3345

understanding was that the applicant kept the water on for over a year, and I was told at the cost 3346

of $80,000 a month, if my information is accurate. And I don't know if anybody came up from 3347

your group to maybe help out a little bit in that, because $80,000 a month is a lot of money to 3348

spend on water when he wasn't getting any place on his development.  3349

That's – the only thing I was going to say, except two people back, there was a lady who was on 3350

the HOA board. I don't know where she's sitting. I want you to know I tried hard to get in there 3351

to visit the other day. They wouldn't let me in. I said: Wait a minute, I'm going to make a vote on 3352

this in a day and a half. I, and, so maybe, you might leave some instruction sometimes with him. 3353

And, then, what I was told was that he called three board members, and then I was told that I 3354

could make an appointment and see if then I could get in. So I just wanted –3355
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ALICE COBB3356

I – apologize. They told me after the fact. But, next time just tell them to call HOA, and they'll 3357

let you in.3358

 3359 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3360

Except, they did. 3361

 3362 

ALICE COBB3363

We have a good security team, and they don't let anybody in. 3364

 3365 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3366

Well, I told him he was great –. And I don't mean to take up the time here, but I, and I agree on 3367

the water issue very, very much, and I agree with Mr. Coffin on losing those animals. The thing I 3368

would like to say is, though, are those ponds, I was told there were ponds still there that the 3369

animals could use. Is there something wrong? Has anybody had the water tested? 3370

 3371 

ALICE COBB3372

Not to my knowledge.  3373

 3374 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3375

But, okay, I just wanted to know that. And I want you to also know that our lawyer here told us 3376

that those vultures, or whatever they were, stayed in the tree. Is that true, or are they circling 3377

dead animals? That's what I would like to know. I'm just joking. Okay. Just thought a little joke 3378

(inaudible). If they're circling, then that's not good at all. 3379

 3380 

ALICE COBB3381

Just give me a call, and I'll be glad to give you a tour.3382
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COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3383

Thank you very, very much.  3384

 3385 

DEBRA KANER3386

Good afternoon. Debra Kaner, 660 Ravel. Mayor Pro Tem, Tarkanian, you are invited to my 3387

home anytime, and I would be thrilled to show you the backyard. 3388

 3389 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3390

Well, maybe in the next 30 days. And I thank you. 3391

 3392 

DEBRA KANER3393

My pleasure. 3394

 3395 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3396

I didn't mean to take up your time.  3397

 3398 

DEBRA KANER3399

I have two things I'd like to comment on. First, Councilman Coffin, when you started speaking 3400

this afternoon, you touched my heart. I was aghast at the attacks on you as anti-Semitic. I am a 3401

Jewish woman. He does not talk for our community. He talked for himself. The similar attack 3402

was on Christine Roush, when she was running for election. It's embarrassing. That was the first 3403

thing.3404

Along those lines, that leads me to the psychology of negotiating with him. It's too difficult. The 3405

only success we had was when attorney, City Attorney Jerbic stepped in. We made zero progress 3406

with him until then. If, Mayor, you decide to wait 30 days, our only hope is if we have 3407

mediation. We – will see nothing, as residents, without it. I abut to high density.3408
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MAYOR GOODMAN3409

I think one of your neighbors, because three of you from Ravel Court, and there are only five, 3410

you've all spoken, and he has shown, Mr. Culp, I think it was, that showed us what an additional 3411

two and a half acres would do in a setback. 3412

 3413 

DEBRA KANER3414

Correct.3415

 3416 

MAYOR GOODMAN3417

So, these are all pieces I know that have been in discussion.3418

 3419 

DEBRA KANER3420

Exactly.3421

 3422 

MAYOR GOODMAN3423

And so, absolutely. I mean – 3424

 3425 

DEBRA KANER3426

And we have hope. 3427

 3428 

MAYOR GOODMAN3429

I think where we are, that if the 30 days amounts to anything, if it isn't, there's no point in going 3430

forward, because the reality is why should the developer do anything more if, in fact, there's so 3431

much disagreement anyway and it can't move, and just let it be what it is. And then the residents 3432

and homeowners will just deal with the next person that comes along or group of people, and it 3433

just may sit and be nothing for years and years and years with the, it will be, you know – 3434

 3435 

DEBRA KANER3436

Exactly –. It will revert back to the original Badlands.3437
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MAYOR GOODMAN3438

A bird in hand –, though, is worth two in the bush. I was told that as a little girl. And so, I think 3439

we've, over these two years, have really made some unbelievable movement, and I felt, from 3440

what I heard from Brad Jerbic, we were really close before the June 21st meeting, and it was 3441

hopeful at that time. So, you know, where there's hope, there's always a way, and that is my 3442

hope. And I thought if there were a time that we could just put everything else on hold and see 3443

over the next 30 days something can happen. But through the common and beautiful presentation 3444

you've made, that's the way. 3445

 3446 

DEBRA KANER3447

Exactly.3448

 3449 

MAYOR GOODMAN3450

And only two of your neighbors didn't come speak, unless they're on line. 3451

 3452 

DEBRA KANER3453

Well, interesting, to talk on that topic before I stop, the two neighbors who didn't come, actually, 3454

are Asian, and they have already proposed they could bring in buyers like that. So, it's not like 3455

it’ll sit for 20 years. 3456

 3457 

MAYOR GOODMAN3458

Well, you don't know. You have no idea. 3459

 3460 

DEBRA KANER3461

Correct.3462

 3463 

MAYOR GOODMAN3464

You know? So, I just, a bird in hand, just keep that in mind. 3465
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DEBRA KANER3466

Thank you. 3467

 3468 

MAYOR GOODMAN3469

Thank you very much for coming forward again.  3470

 3471 

TERRY HOLDEN3472

My name’s Terry Holden. I live at 9101 Alta Drive. For the past two years, I feel like I've been 3473

camped out here. I've – attended just about every Planning Commission, City Council meeting, 3474

and, from the start, I have not been against development. It’s all about the right development. I 3475

get a little antsy tonight, when the Mayor is talking about this bird in the hand, got to do the deal, 3476

got to do the deal. I would love to play poker with you. You have all your cards face up. I – think 3477

I'll take that one. 3478

 3479 

MAYOR GOODMAN3480

I helped to support him in college through poker. Sorry, Osc’. 3481

 3482 

TERRY HOLDEN3483

Well, I worked – my way through college playing cards. But anyway, if the developer walks, he 3484

walks. I've negotiated my whole life. I can't control the other side. I would like to see a deal 3485

done. I really would like to see a deal done, but I'm willing to walk away in a heartbeat.  3486

And the problem that I have, and I've heard it over and over today, Shauna Hughes stated it very 3487

well, it's density. We are talking about 2100 units. And I think Councilman Coffin touched on it. 3488

We're talking about 2100 units on the proposed development on the 70-acre parcel right now. 3489

And, again, that's 30, plus, units per the acre. The first part was at 24, and that doesn't even 3490

include the retail space and the hotel.3491

I look at the whole property. There was 250 acres. And I'm kind of a simple guy, and realistically 3492

they bought a very, very difficult piece of property to develop, with the flood plain, the wash; all 3493

of the ground is very difficult. The reality is no one could possibly even build 500 homes in there 3494
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if they were doing single-family, two to an acre, two times 500. Let's say they got on quarter-3495

acre. They had a thousand. They started off wanting 3200. They're up about 2,000. Realistically, 3496

in the spirit of trying to get a deal done, I would say, on that 70 acres, we should be looking at 3497

1400 units.3498

I've talked to people at the developer's office, and they say, well, we – can't make enough money 3499

if we do that. Are we talking about developer greed or in the spirit of getting a deal done? And I 3500

think if you can't make money when you only pay $7 million for the property, and I say only, but 3501

for the number of units, that is a token amount. They should be, if they can't make it with 1400 3502

units, they're never gonna make a dime. And in the spirit of a deal, we need to get that density 3503

down into simple terms and give them a target of 1400 units. Thank you.  3504

 3505 

MAYOR GOODMAN3506

Thank you very much.  3507

 3508 

LARRY SADOFF3509

Good – afternoon. My name is Larry Sadoff, and I live at 9101 Alta Drive. And I have been a 3510

resident of Las Vegas the last four and a half years, and I hope to make it my final residence. 3511

Like Councilman Seroka, I was career military. He was an aviator. I was a ground pounder. But 3512

as going through there, I've lived in 12 different states. I've lived in three places in Europe and 3513

Southeast Asia. So I've seen a whole bunch of different environments.  3514

And when I came here, and I live in the Towers, I came to live in a suburban environment. I've 3515

lived in urban and suburban. We've talked about density an awful lot. What you’re doing, what 3516

we are doing if we approve this, when you take this development, with Calida across the street, 3517

you're making it higher density than any other place in Las Vegas. And I've asked several times 3518

to staff if there's any place more, and there's not. And you're making a suburban area an urban 3519

area.3520

I've seen a lot of you up there ask detailed questions if someone wants to put a house here or this 3521

there, how is that going to affect a neighbor? How is it going to affect the neighborhood? 3522
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Making this an urban area will have a dramatic effect on the neighborhood. You're changing the 3523

culture and the fabric, and it's not compatible to the neighborhood.  3524

And I would – like to say you heard a lot of numbers there. Someone said Shauna Hughes' 3525

numbers were incorrect. We could do a fact check. Her numbers were correct. If you add these 3526

high rises or mid rises, whatever you call them, it's 36 units per acre. So I'd ask you to take a 3527

look at that.3528

I'd also, I just, for fact check, we saw a chart in the beginning when a very good presentation by 3529

the developer, how he had gone down from 3,000 to 2,000 units. The area was never authorized 3530

3,000 units. If you take 7.49 to 250 acres, it's about 2,000 units. So basically, that's what was 3531

authorized if you were – to do that. So I would take a look at that.3532

And, the last thing I would say, to paraphrase or to add on to what Terry Holden said. You know, 3533

we do want to make this a win-win situation. We do want development. But frankly, listening to 3534

you folks up there, I hear about, you know, we don't want to lose this developer –. If you look in 3535

the Development Agreement, there are (sic) page after page after page where he can sell any part 3536

of it piecemeal or whole to anybody he wants at any time.  3537

Now, he is a businessman at the end of the day, and he's going to make the right business 3538

decisions as you'd expect. So, if it's profitable to somebody, somebody will come there. So I 3539

think, yes, we should try in good conscience, in good face (sic) to negotiate something. But I 3540

don't think we should be held hostage that if we lose the developer, all is lost. Thank you very 3541

much, and I appreciate your time. 3542

 3543 

MAYOR GOODMAN3544

Thank you for coming forward. Thanks for your service.  3545

 3546 

LARRY SADOFF3547

Go Army. 3548

3549
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DALE ROESENER3550

Good afternoon, Mayor Goodman and Councilwomen and men. My name is Dale Roesener, 3551

9811 Orient Express Court. And I just have a couple comments. One is just general about the 3552

density, and I – think it needs to be considered in totality, like everybody said, about the, you 3553

know, the potential condominiums across the street, any other entitlements, plus what's being 3554

asked for, because that's gonna, I – can only imagine what that's gonna be like if everything gets 3555

built down there. And – there's not even room to expand the roads. Tivoli’s right up to the road, 3556

and –, unless there's a way to put a jog in there, I don't think you can – widen it.  3557

But in any event, and then I recall there was a survey done in Queensridge community, and I 3558

think 80 percent of the people that voted were concerned about the density. So I just think that, 3559

please, be sensitive to the density, if you would.3560

And then, as far as the agreement, I spent quite a bit of time reading it. And, from a pragmatic 3561

standpoint, I – like some of the – features, you know, the two-acre lots and some of the plans if 3562

the density can be dealt with. But then, more importantly, the agreement, I felt if you try to think 3563

through it and how – is it gonna be functional and how – is the result going to be actualized, it 3564

seemed like it had a lot of open-ended areas that were subject to interpretation or incomplete.  3565

And the thing that has us here today is (sic) the – agreements that we thought we had when we 3566

bought from the Peccoles, they – were subject to interpretation. And I think, to remove all doubt, 3567

I think that agreement needs to be really, really well thought out, please, and – have all the 3568

proper language in it so that when – you , if, when you vote on it and if you approve it, that it's 3569

what everybody thinks it's gonna be. Thank you.  3570

 3571 

MAYOR GOODMAN3572

Thank you –.3573

 3574 

GEORGE WEST3575

Good afternoon, Mayor, City Council. George West, 9516 Chalgrove Village Avenue.  3576

I was on the Board of Directors at Queensridge HOA for about a year, from August15 to August 3577

–, 2015, to August 2016. So, I have kind of a little personal, firsthand knowledge. I've lived in 3578
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Queensridge for 16 years. I can unequivocally tell you we've heard a lot about what the 3579

community thinks. Councilman Stavros indicated in a couple meetings, I've watched everyone 3580

on TV, first one I've been down on, 80 percent of the community is against this. Eighty percent 3581

of the people who responded to the survey was (sic) against it.3582

Let me tell you about that survey and the survey that's probably going out now. I was on the 3583

Board of Directors during that time. And I can tell you unequivocally, they have the survey, and 3584

they'll show it to you. We sent out a survey, to SurveyMonkey to 850 emails. There are 1,000 3585

people in the community. Many got bounced back.  3586

Out of the 850 that responded, only 243, let me repeat that, 243 people responded to that survey. 3587

Seventy-five percent, approximately, of the 243, less than twenty-five percent of the entire 3588

community came from the group of homeowners that all live on the golf course and have a view. 3589

That is a not a coincidence. Every single person that has come up here today, pretty much, who 3590

lives on Queensridge proper, not the Towers, but in the 180, that's what I'm calling, 95 percent of 3591

those people who have been here every single time opposing this project, I know exactly what 3592

the streets they live on. Eighty, ninety-five percent of them have, all have their golf course 3593

views.3594

We talk about the density down at the Towers; they killed the density. We can't have 3,000 units. 3595

So Mr. Lowie goes below 3,000 units. This has to pencil out as Your Honor said. So if they want 3596

1400 units, then the density is gonna get shifted up to Queensridge proper. That's the only way it 3597

pencils out. So when the density was then switched over from the high density, when that got 3598

lowered and Mr. Lowie wanted to put 61 up on Outlaw North, my God, we heard, it was bloody 3599

murder. We can't have 61 houses. Well, you reduced, the people that were against it, reduced the 3600

density down at the Towers. You can't have it both ways. 3601

Finally, I'd like to impart on all of you, and I think Councilman (sic) Fiore, who had been in the 3602

legislature a long time, I think of you kind of as –, our great senator from the State of Arizona, as 3603

a maverick, and to that extent, she hit it on. But what I didn't hear was this. What is killing this 3604

community is not necessarily the dead golf course. The people that are getting hurt the most are 3605

the people with those golf course views, who understandably are upset, but unfortunately the law 3606

is not always about fairness. And in all fairness, I am one of the pesky lawyers, but I'm here 3607
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tonight as a homeowner. What's killing our community is the uncertainty of what is going to 3608

happen on that course. That is killing us.3609

Shauna Hughes, our lawyer, who's not here, but she said it, and I asked her at the last meeting 3610

that we had, I said: Shauna, as the City Attorney of Henderson, when everything went south, you 3611

have personal knowledge about this, Lake Las Vegas, have you ever known a golf course 3612

community that was enveloped within a golf course or surrounded by a golf course, have you 3613

ever known a community like that, where the golf course closed, went dead, and it increased 3614

property values? Obviously, the answer was no.  3615

And then I asked her the second question: Would you agree that the uncertainty with respect to 3616

the development plan and the uncertainty with respect to this community, as to what that golf 3617

course is going to be, is really being, having the impact on our community? She said, yes. 3618

It is the uncertainty that is killing us. And while I don't live on the course, I'm joined at the hip 3619

with every single one of these other people that are. And my property values are tanking. I'm not 3620

going anywhere soon. Queensridge is my home.  3621

But I will tell you this. Frank Schreck comes up here and says, well, I'm here because of the 3622

community, and I live here and I love my community. Frank Schreck purchased a two-acre lot 3623

up in the Summit in April of this year. It's on public record. He's gone. Don't be misled as to 3624

what's going on. Don't allow these surveys that they're talking about to mislead you, because the 3625

certainty – of those surveys are in question. I'm here to tell you that. If you live on the course, 3626

you're gonna be against it. And 80 percent of the people that did respond, those were the people 3627

on the course, and they were against it.3628

Do not allow, as politicians as well, you know as well that people that don't get involved with the 3629

process does not mean they're against it. There is much apathy in Queensridge in the B Section, 3630

which I'm in. We are 600 units strong. We support that community with our dues as well. 3631

Without us, that doesn’t, that community does not thrive. They are apathetic. They are afraid. 3632

They were my constituents at one point in time.  3633

And I applaud Councilman (sic) Fiore, Councilwoman Fiore to say, and put it right on. The 3634

uncertainty is what's killing us. And you guys need to make a decision, up or down, so that we 3635

can either move forward. The developer needs to do what he needs to do to do his remedies. And 3636
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finally, Councilman Coffin, about four, maybe three or four meetings ago, when you were 3637

making that comment, with respect to it, and you voted no, you said, quote, there is zero chance 3638

that this golf course is not gonna be developed into some sort of residential development. That 3639

was right out of your mouth. I agree with you. 3640

 3641 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3642

But you know what? I don't think I said that. So, you know, we'll have to look at that.  3643

 3644 

GEORGE WEST3645

Please look at the record. 3646

 3647 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3648

So don't quote me if you're not sure. 3649

 3650 

GEORGE WEST3651

I – am absolutely sure. Look at the record, please. Thank you for your time.  3652

 3653 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3654

Well, I'm not. 3655

 3656 

MAYOR GOODMAN3657

Thank you. And now, I'm going to ask, and hopefully this is new information. Councilman 3658

Barlow has to leave at 5:00. So if this is going to go for a vote, that is 25 minutes out, and I 3659

haven't had the chance to turn this over to Councilman Seroka for his comments, his input and 3660

some motion. So I am very concerned. If you can keep your comments very, very brief so I can 3661

do that, and we can get some resolution here, please. And if anything's been said before, don't 3662

add and repeat it again.3663
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ROBERT LEPIERE3664

Yes, Mayor. And I’ll, good evening. I'll be as brief as I can be. My name’s Robert Lepiere. I'm at 3665

9617 Camden Hills. I can tell you, as a former sheriff, the prospect of this golf course staying the 3666

way it is, is a nightmare. We are wide open on three sides, easy access to anybody that wants to 3667

walk in. The developer's plan not only addresses this security aspect. It eliminates it. So, for that 3668

issue, I urge at least moving forward on it.  3669

And the second thing I just, and second thing, and last thing is, as a past president of 3670

Queensridge, I had the opportunity to work with Mr. Lowie. We – know the quality of his work. 3671

That's very obvious. I also had the ability, well, the opportunity, I was president during the 3672

recession. I had the opportunity to talk to many of our surrounding neighbors.  3673

One thing I found out was that when Queensridge Towers got hit hard, they opened right before 3674

the recession really hit, Mr. Lowie stepped in and literally paid for the – empty units that were 3675

not there, you know, were not sold at the time. So all I'm saying is we know the quality that this 3676

development would be, and we know that Mr. Lowie and EHB will stand behind their product. 3677

So I urge you to move the community forward. And it's in the best interest to move this forward. 3678

Thank you. 3679

 3680 

MAYOR GOODMAN3681

Thank you very much. And, too, Sir, if you'll be very brief. We're now 20 minutes of. 3682

 3683 

TODD KOREN3684

Hi, my name is Todd Koren. I live at 9220 Worsley Park Place, which is in Tudor Park. I don't 3685

live on the golf course. I live backed up to Alta. I think a lot of what you do hear is from people 3686

who live on the golf course, and they're being affected by their views, losing their views. My 3687

concern is simply supply and demand. If we add a few thousand more homes to that area, what's 3688

it going to do to prices?  3689

I was the original owner of my home. I bought it in 2005, top of the market. Still not worth today 3690

what I paid. And I look at this and say, I'm not the only one in the neighborhood who didn't walk 3691
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away or short sell, and I think a lot of us are gonna continue to be adversely affected by adding a 3692

few thousand more homes to that neighborhood. Thank you.  3693

 3694 

STEVE CARIA3695

Steve Caria, 9101 Alta Drive, Unit 202. I'd like to congratulate, first of all, Steve Seroka for his 3696

terrific victory and the new Councilwoman, Michelle Fiore. A couple items I'd like to mention 3697

here is, and I, I'm befuddled sometimes, because I really feel, Mayor, with all due respect, that 3698

you have some prejudice towards this developer, because let me tell you some of the things that 3699

he's done. He's told the people of our residence and our community that it's a done deal, meaning 3700

the deal is done. We have no word in it. That's the first thing. So you want to know if he upset 3701

people, that's what he did. 3702

The second thing is is that there were threats, and it's on film to the Council members, that he 3703

met with each of you, met in your private councils and you agreed to his proposal. That was a 3704

threat. Also, that he was a threat to one of the Planning Commissioners that belonged to Lois 3705

Tarkanian.3706

 3707 

MAYOR GOODMAN3708

And he never met with me. He never met with me alone. He never made a threat. 3709

 3710 

STEVE CARIA3711

That's what he said. 3712

 3713 

MAYOR GOODMAN3714

It doesn't make any difference. I am telling you on fact on the record, Yohan Lowie never met in 3715

my office with me alone, nor did he make an offer and I said anything.3716
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STEVE CARIA3717

That's great –. But he did say that, and it's on film. I, in addition to that, there's been an attack on 3718

an individual Council member. And I think that we all have to understand that we're not dealing 3719

with someone that's reasonable or fair or that people in the community want to live with. 3720

Now, the last thing I want to, because there's (sic) a lot of things I could add to this list, but I've 3721

heard Councilwoman Fiore make a statement. And I want to tell you, the statement I don't 3722

necessarily agree with. I think the values in our community have already been devastated. 3723

You've heard that over and over again. You've heard a couple of people try to give reasons. But I 3724

can tell you trucks backed up for 10 years, for 20 years, rock crushers, development, all that 3725

activity taking place in our backyard will cause more destruction and more loss of value than 3726

anything we're talking about.  3727

And in addition to that, the entire vote to – unseat Councilman Beers was centered around one 3728

primary issue, and the primary issue was to get rid of this development. That was the number one 3729

issue in Ward Number 2. And Mr. Seroka is our representative, and I don't know why it hasn't 3730

been referred to him earlier to speak on this subject, because he's the one that's talked to 3731

thousands of people, knocked on thousands of doors, and we look to him for support. Thank you. 3732

 3733 

MAYOR GOODMAN3734

And that is where we've been trying to get to since one o’clock. 3735

 3736 

STEVE CARIA3737

I agree with you, Mayor. Thank you so much. 3738

 3739 

MAYOR GOODMAN3740

So, if we hadn't had so many repetitive comments, we'd be there, to Mr. Seroka, but he is the 3741

end.3742
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STEVE CARIA3743

Well, I agree. And repetitive comments have come from both directions. And thank you so 3744

much. 3745

 3746 

MAYOR GOODMAN3747

One presentation only and that was it. Thank you. 3748

 3749 

JAMES JIMMERSON3750

Good afternoon. Jim Jimmerson. My address is 9101 Alta Drive. And I'm a resident of 3751

Queensridge Towers. And congratulations to both Chairperson (sic) Fiore and Chairperson (sic) 3752

Seroka; welcome aboard. And, a difficult issue to begin your – tenure, and I – wish you much 3753

success and much good fortune. 3754

I am the lawyer for the developer in the litigation, and our firm is the Jimmerson Law Firm. My 3755

address is 415 South 6th Street, Las Vegas, and I'm a native of Las Vegas, and I've lived in 3756

Queensridge long ago, since 2001. 3757

I will take in 10 minutes to try to respond to three and a half hours of response. You did allow 3758

two of the plaintiffs to testify for about an hour. But I will be brief. But if you'll give me just a 3759

few minutes, I'd be appreciative.  3760

You didn't get here by accident. And you heard the comment two or three speakers ago about the 3761

homeowner is being held hostage. The reality is the only person that's being held hostage is the 3762

developer, if you'll bear with me.  3763

If you read the Staff Report, you will see that the staff recommends approval of the Developer 3764

(sic) Agreement. And, at Page Two of the staff's response, it has an analysis, and it provides the 3765

reasons for its recommendation for the execution and approval of the Developer (sic) 3766

Agreement. And towards the end, it provides a series of findings that are important, that read, 3767

beginning, I'll not read them all, the proposed development agreement conforms to the 3768

requirements of NRS 278 regarding the content of development agreements.  3769

The proposed density and intensity of development conforms to the existing zoning district 3770

requirements for each specified development area. Through addition, development, and design 3771
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controls, the proposal, proposed development demonstrates sensitivity to and compatibility with 3772

existing single-family uses or the adjacent parcels, and it goes on.  3773

So there was a question I was asked by your City Attorney, a very gifted attorney, who said why 3774

it's a matter of whether or not you trust your staff. If all of the positions that have been 3775

articulated to you by the many homeowners who have testified here this afternoon were truthful 3776

or accurate, this would be an easy case. You wouldn't have staff making its approval, or its 3777

recommendation for approval. You wouldn't have the City Attorney answering the questions in 3778

response to the questions by Chairperson, Councilwoman Tarkanian or Councilwoman Fiore in 3779

the manner that he does. 3780

And the answer is because our client bought a piece of property in March of 2015, sought to 3781

develop it through three of the entities, three companies, the three different companies, started 3782

with a small project of 17 acres, and it was the City who asked us to bring all of the 250 acres 3783

and all of the complexities of that together in one setting in August and September of 2015. 3784

The developer has faced the remarks of the plaintiffs in their litigation, and Mr. Schreck, in 3785

particular, in which Mr. Schreck tells us that the whole purpose for this whole presentation today 3786

and for the presentations before him has to do with trying to facilitate delay. And that is what 3787

this is all about.3788

The email sent by Mr. Schreck to the many homeowners was – stated as follows, November 2 of 3789

2016: We knew from the beginning, quoting from his email, that the Mayor, Beers, and Perrigo 3790

had the deck stacked against us. That is why we have always said we will win this in court. 3791

However, we have done a pretty good job of prolonging the developer's agony from September 3792

2015 to now. We now look forward to the deposition of Perrigo and Lowenstein, which (sic) 3793

have been noticed for this month. End of quote. 3794

And, that has been the protester's whole point, and that is delay. In the cursory fashion and 3795

superficial fashion that you hear, that they want to negotiate something, they want to reach some 3796

sort of accord, that – is just lip service without any substance. Because as you have been reported 3797

to by your own staff, which, of course, I've not been privy to, you know who has negotiated in 3798

good faith, you know who has made concessions. And contrary to the Councilman, it's not just a 3799
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natural amount of giving when you have demands of 300 feet behind homes, football fields of 3800

ground in exchange for some sort of accord. 3801

The law supports this development. The law was found, as you, as I reported to you in the past, 3802

through a District Court decisions (sic). They find that this developer has the right to develop 3803

and, as Councilperson Seroka has learned, by virtue of his study, and Councilperson Fiore the 3804

same, has a right to develop their property up to 7.49 dwelling units per acre.  3805

And the question asked by Chair, by Councilwoman Tarkanian, with regard to the PR-OS has 3806

also been answered conclusively by your City Attorney and by your Planning head of 3807

department, now Assistant City Manager, in that NRS 278.0349 states that where the zoning 3808

ordinance is inconsistent with the master plan, the zoning ordinance takes precedence.  3809

The parties to this agreement acknowledge that the extant approved zoning and land use for the 3810

site do not match. The City may request a general plan amendment as a future date, at a future 3811

date to make the land-use and zoning designations consistent. 3812

And the Councilperson asked the question: Well, what does that exactly mean? And the answer 3813

is just what it says. This property started with hard zoning, in 1990, R-PD7. In later years, the 3814

City, in an effort to, as – referenced to by Mr. Lowenstein, to provide guidance and goals for 3815

future use placed a land use designation of PR-OS in the 2005 time period.  3816

But the land use designation PR-OS gives way to the more fundamental right of entitlement of 3817

7.49 dwelling units, and that's why it is not a barrier here. And that's why a general plan 3818

amendment will come at a later date with the approval of this development agreement. And that 3819

responded to that. So it's not only the right to develop that we've established, but there's also the 3820

indication that the GPA must give way to the superior rights of land use rights and development 3821

under our zoning ordinance, which was also confirmed by a 2001 City ordinance in 2001 3822

Citywide, approving all this property for 7.49 use.3823

And intelligent use of this property, as recommended by your staff, is to shift the density from 3824

portions of the 180 acres down to the 70 acres to the east. It makes sense, because you have 3825

adjoining use with the Towers at twenty-five and a half units per acre. It makes sense because of 3826

the location of the ground. It makes sense because of how it would react well with adjoining 3827
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properties. And that's why your City staff recommends the approval of the Development 3828

Agreement.  3829

And it also protects the property to the west with regard to minimum use of two acres or more 3830

per house, which is an extraordinary compromise, an extraordinary project, which began this 3831

project, and for which a different company, 180 Land Company would propose be implemented 3832

at the appropriate time.  3833

So when you look at these different points, you see that there has historically been a recognition 3834

that this is the appropriate site for this appropriate use, which is why your staff recommends it 3835

and which is why we request you to approve the Development Agreement. 3836

I did want to put into the record a, comments on the Development Agreement. You heard of, one 3837

of the, two or three of the lawyers, Mr. Buckley being one and others, questioning the 3838

development agreement. We have placed, and Ms. Holmes, if you would, we have responded in 3839

writing long before today our answers to the questions that have been raised by the lawyers for 3840

some of the homeowners, and we would like to mark that in this record as the developer's 3841

response to questions that have been posed by some of the papers by that representative for one 3842

or two of the homeowners that was spoken to today. 3843

We also, providing, too, a statement of law and rights to a final decision that the developer is 3844

entitled to with regard to both his rights to develop this property and to do so in a compatible and 3845

consistent manner as they've been spoken to by my colleague, Mr. Kaempfer. And we also 3846

provided to you an economic impact of the projects that my clients have had the privilege of 3847

representing and providing and presenting here in Las Vegas and throughout the Valley for your 3848

edification.3849

But finally, I brought to you the case law from the District Court of Nevada, Judge Smith, which 3850

has found in favor of the developer and against these homeowners, particularly a particular 3851

homeowner, Mr. Peccole, who has, who had filed a lawsuit and had his matter dismissed. And it 3852

also presented – to you the words of your City Attorney with regard to the right to build, as well 3853

as the right to have this particular project approved.3854
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Also, the remarks of your Planning Commissioner, excuse me, your Assistant City Manager, 3855

Mr. Perrigo, who, when he was Planning Commissioner (sic), had indicated why this, zoning 3856

rights appertain and why there's a right to development.  3857

Now, with the right to develop, it does not give a blank check, by any means. It means that there 3858

would be development that would be appropriate and consistent, and certainly the project that is 3859

here does that. It will increase property values. It will increase use and – enjoyment of the 3860

location, and it will ensure that there's appropriate use of the property for the benefit of all, 3861

including those who are skeptical about the development.  3862

But when you look at the right to develop and you look at the completion of the needs, of the 3863

demands of the City and the satisfaction by the developer of the demands of the City, you have 3864

the public's interest being protected. And I – would just indicate that even your Councilman, 3865

Mr. Coffin, recognizes that there should be development there. It's a matter of what is the best 3866

type of development and what would be appropriate. 3867

I do want to speak to the words with regard to the 30-days continuance, because that was an 3868

important issue that took some up time today. We were sued by certain homeowners, 6 3869

homeowners, now expanded to, I think, about 20. We were sued in December of 2015. The 3870

intended purpose, as I read to you, to prolong and delay the agony of the developer, not to ever 3871

reach a resolution.3872

The City of Las Vegas was sued in December of 2015, claiming that it had acted unlawfully. The 3873

City was sued in July of 2016, as was the developer in a separate lawsuit, again making 3874

outrageous claims against both the City of Las Vegas and the developer. And that case was 3875

dismissed by January of 2017. And this case that has been brought in December of '15 is set for 3876

trial or will be set for trial, we anticipate, the third week of September of 2017.  3877

So, Madame Mayor, what I'm suggesting is this. Because of the trial date that we've been aiming 3878

towards in the third week of September, it's not possible to delay the trial. I would be willing, 3879

unlike the plaintiff's counsel, to, if we had to adjust certain depositions, to do that. But there's no 3880

reason why opposing counsel and I and counsel for the City of Las Vegas, working with 3881

Mr. Jerbic, could not continue our work towards a trial date while we still, the lawyers, stay out 3882
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of the mix of 30 days that you've requested. I don't see them as mutually exclusive. Quite the 3883

contrary, I see them as in parallel and something that makes good sense.  3884

The developer has been put upon by some homeowners regarding a suit that we believe is 3885

frivolous. We have the opportunity to rid ourselves of this lawsuit in a month's time. We have 3886

already rid ourselves successfully defending a lawsuit in January of this year, and we do support 3887

a resolution of this matter.  3888

The – harm and damage to my client caused by some of these homeowners and caused by the – 3889

mischief of some of them has certainly been well documented and certainly hurtful to my client. 3890

And the preoccupation, that just – gnaws at anyone who listens to this record, about how much 3891

money is this developer going to make? How much profit is he going to make? Is he going to 3892

make a billion dollars? We heard one person today.  3893

Instead of understanding that somebody has made a reasonable investment, has the right to 3894

develop his property and seek City approval and input and the input of friends and neighbors. 3895

This developer developed 42 homes in this neighborhood, built the Towers, built Tivoli across 3896

the street, solved all of the drainage issues that could be possibly complained about, receiving 3897

FEMA approval. They are a neighbor. They are our neighbor, and they build a quality project. 3898

So, Madame Mayor, we would agree, with the cooperation of opposing counsel, to the 30 days. 3899

We would personally stay out of your negotiations and discussions. We do need to proceed to 3900

trial, but there's no reason why we cannot continue these negotiations with you.  3901

That being said, if that's their appetite on the part of the parties to do so, then, please, approve 3902

this Development Agreement today and allow us to go forward with our project. 3903

 3904 

MAYOR GOODMAN3905

Thank you. 3906

 3907 

JAMES JIMMERSON3908

But we need you to keep our trial date. In the same breath, we want to commit our continued 3909

cooperation with you. 3910
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And, Mr., Councilman Coffin, respectfully, I don't know anything about this claim of anti-3911

Semitism. I do know that you stated on the record that you could not be objective with regard to 3912

this application. And that's the reason I know for the request for recusal. There's nothing personal 3913

here, as far as I know, from both my clients, certainly, not anyone here representing my clients. 3914

But your comments today certainly do not give us much comfort that you can look at our client's 3915

application impartially. 3916

Thank you so much, every one of you. 3917

 3918 

MAYOR GOODMAN3919

Thank you, Mr. Jimmerson. And, hopefully, this last comment — 3920

 3921 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3922

Your Honor, I – will have to just take this liberty to say something about that, that Jimmy 3923

brought up. It's, this Development Agreement I don't like. I proposed one. If you want to call 3924

what I did on a blackboard or a whiteboard at Lowie's office a development agreement proposal, 3925

I made one. And, as you had mentioned, or somebody did, you did it, Jimmy. 3926

 3927 

JAMES JIMMERSON 3928

I didn't, but yes. 3929

 3930 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3931

You know –, that I told in a meeting here a few months ago, before the June 21 meeting, that not 3932

everything I believe would make this side happy, because I believed that there were some rights 3933

involved here that would allow — 3934

 3935 

MAYOR GOODMAN3936

Councilman, I'm going to have to interrupt you.3937
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COUNCILMAN COFFIN3938

I'm trying to correct the record, Mary (sic) –   3939

 3940 

MAYOR GOODMAN3941

No. It doesn't make any difference.  3942

 3943 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3944

Mary, Mayor – 3945

 3946 

MAYOR GOODMAN3947

Excuse me, no – 3948

 3949 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3950

Mary, no, (inaudible) –3951

 3952 

MAYOR GOODMAN3953

I am going to assume of the prerogative of the chair. You can have your conversation later. 3954

 3955 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN3956

I – still have an open mind on development agreements. 3957

 3958 

MAYOR GOODMAN3959

Yes, ma'am, if you'll please go ahead so we can conclude the public comment and turn this to 3960

Mr. Seroka, who can come back to you, Councilman Coffin. You've already had 10 minutes. 3961

Please, go ahead.3962
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LOUISE FRANCOEUR3963

And thank you very much for letting me speak. This will be very short. And it would have been 3964

very nice for the residents to have been implicated from the get-go, when the plans were first 3965

being developed, as opposed to everything being now retroactive constantly. But — 3966

 3967 

MAYOR GOODMAN3968

What? Oh, I'm sorry. Your name, please? 3969

 3970 

LOUISE FRANCOEUR3971

Louise Francoeur from 9217 Tudor Park Place. What I did want to ask is I just want one 3972

example. I agree with everything Councilwoman Fiore said about what we're looking for in the 3973

community, but I want one example where in which in a developed neighborhood, such as 3974

Queensridge, one example where 1600 multi-family apartments were introduced that actually 3975

raised property values.3976

 3977 

MAYOR GOODMAN3978

Okay. I think that – 3979

 3980 

LOUISE FRANCOUER3981

I just want one example.  3982

 3983 

MAYOR GOODMAN3984

Okay. And, it, that was already addressed earlier. So thank you.3985

At this point, I'm going to close the public hearing, and, Councilman Seroka, you're in.  3986

Now, Councilman Barlow’s going to be able to stay another half hour, at which point, hopefully, 3987

we will be moving towards a vote. Councilwoman has to leave, but you have the number to be 3988

able to call in.3989
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COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN3990

Yes. I'll stay as long as I can.  3991

 3992 

MAYOR GOODMAN3993

Okay. Thank you. Okay. Councilman Seroka. 3994

 3995 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA3996

Thank you, Mayor. As mentioned, this is quite a softball you've tossed me for my first major 3997

effort here, 14 days in from being sworn in, and I greatly appreciate this opportunity. So, thank 3998

you.3999

You know, I live in the ward. I have – walked on the land, and I have met with, and I know most 4000

everybody that testified today on both sides. And I think it's important today that we understand 4001

what we're actually voting on as a Council. And I'll get to that in a minute. But, I just want to 4002

share that I have gone to school on this. I got swore in, sworn in 14 days ago, and I have, from 4003

morning till late at night, every day of the week, except my anniversary, studied this topic, and 4004

I've worked extremely hard to understand what's before us today.  4005

And I wanna clarify, I’m not here to do anyone's bidding. Those of you that have met with me on 4006

all sides know that I have made that explicitly clear. I am here to represent what is the greater 4007

good of our residents of Ward 2 and the surrounding areas. And what's before us today will have 4008

regional impact. And we are being watched.  4009

Unlike in other parts of the state and nation, this is the first time in the City of Las Vegas where 4010

we have seen an actual plan to redevelop a golf course. There is no precedent. And the action we 4011

take today will be the precedent for the future and impact the lives of our citizens for decades to 4012

come. 4013

This agreement will have impact far beyond the Queensridge community. Adding over 2,000 4014

apartments and other commercial uses to a corner, which has already over 1400 multi-family 4015

units built or entitled would make this, as we've heard, the single most dense corner in the City 4016

of Las Vegas. You know, that sounds something more appropriate in Symphony Park or 4017

Downtown than in a suburban Summerlin.  4018
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I know we've had discussion on this, but an average of 35 units per acre is proposed in 4019

Development Area 3, which is adjacent to single-family homes. That doesn't seem to be 4020

harmonious and compatible.  4021

In this document, we, and what we are voting on today, it will affect everything from traffic to 4022

flood control to education, fire and police services, and they will all be impacted by this 4023

agreement. And I think it's critical that every member of this Council to have been able to read, 4024

understand, and agree with every single word in the document before any of us could even 4025

consider approving it. The implication of every should versus may, and versus or, or comments 4026

such as, at the sole discretion of the developer, must be understood because an interpretation can 4027

completely change an implementation.  4028

If we approve this, we will then approve an ordinance, which becomes our law. This agreement 4029

will carve in stone forever the future of not only Queensridge but the entire community. And 4030

because of this, I cannot take this lightly.4031

I know that reviewing this document has been difficult for all of us. And I've heard it today, both 4032

of those residents and those of us on the dais, because among other things, we've seen at least 4033

three different versions in the last seven days. Exhibits appear to have been added, changed, 4034

removed, duplicated, and in meetings with staff, we found ourselves reading from different 4035

versions.4036

Because of the changes, the confusion, no one seems to have had sufficient time to review 4037

whatever actual document it is that we are approving to the level of detail required to make a 4038

sound decision. Our residents deserve an opportunity to review, digest, and comment on such an 4039

all-encompassing and permanent agreement. They deserve better than what we have given them 4040

to date. I've consulted with a large number of experts. They include Mr. Ngai Pindell, a Harvard 4041

Law School graduate, which (sic) many of you know, a highly respected professor of law at 4042

UNLV. I've consulted with planners, other attorneys, developers, and experts in the fields of 4043

traffic, flood control, general development related fields. My understanding is that state law 4044

requires a determination whether the development agreement is in conformance with the Master 4045

Plan. If it is not, then it would require a major modification, a general plan amendment, and then 4046

it’d be followed by a development agreement, which is what's before us today.  4047
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Because we've skipped steps, we have some major issues to get through, issues that would 4048

normally have been fully analyzed through the major modification and general plan amendment 4049

process. Instead, we skipped it all and have gone right to the Development Agreement. It appears 4050

we've kind of put the cart before the horse and made our work more difficult.  4051

At the same time, I've learned in my discussions that it’s customary practice for a developer to 4052

obtain entitlements before closing on a property. It is very atypical to have a case like this, where 4053

the developer chooses to move forward with a purchase without having the desired entitlements 4054

in place. I don't think it's the City's responsibility to match entitlements to financial requirements. 4055

It's the City's responsibility to ensure the proposed development is harmonious and compatible 4056

with the surrounding area.4057

What we're talking about today is bigger than Queensridge. This action will set a precedent for 4058

every potential golf course conversion in the City of Las Vegas and possibly all of Southern 4059

Nevada. Quality of life issues, such as availability of open space, parks, little league fields, 4060

soccer fields in Wards 2 and 4, which are adjacent to each other, will all be impacted in, by 4061

adding in excess of over 3200 multi-family units and more than 7,000 future residents in just 4062

these four corners.4063

At this time, I would like to highlight just a few example (sic) of concerns from this agreement. 4064

The Development Agreement provides no schedule or timeline and permits development at the 4065

developer's sole discretion. This allows for many risks for the City, including leaving the door 4066

open for potential transfer of interest to anyone at any time. 4067

Regarding flood control, which is a life safety issue, we know the potential resolution and 4068

engineering solutions are not yet complete or approved. And this is a large-scale effort. We are 4069

dealing with flow rates of 4,600 cubic feet per second. Imagine 4600 basketballs passing by you 4070

every second.4071

In addition, this allows units to be built before the flood control solutions are completely in 4072

place. Additionally, in October of '16, I'll say 2016, specific, the City's Traffic Engineer wrote a 4073

letter to the applicant stating that no development with the current road structure could be, occur 4074

in Development Areas 2 and 3, unless an easement was provided by the Las Valley, Las Vegas 4075

Valley Water District.  4076
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In addition, as it's been mentioned, I've been told verbally that without that easement, no more 4077

than 1500 units can be built without their easement. I've received a letter, I – (sic) may have 4078

already been put into the record, that says they're not going to get that easement. It's not going to 4079

happen. And that makes a major portion of this agreement challenged. 4080

Other incentive items in the agreement, as briefed, are contingent upon items out of the control 4081

of the residents, one of them being the Las Vegas Valley Water District easement. It would seem 4082

that in good faith those contingent items would be part of the agreement and they would be going 4083

in – play anyway.4084

When it comes to fire, police, medical services, the school, the Development Agreement does 4085

not address this at all in any section. The impact of public safety or schools. Public safety I 4086

understand consumes a majority of the local government expenditures. This agreement does not 4087

provide for any additional public safety resources. And over the last seven months, speaking to 4088

thousands of Ward 2 residents, crime and lack of police presence is already a top issue affecting 4089

our community. 4090

The Clark – County School District has sent a letter requesting an agreement to address the need 4091

to accommodate additional students. That should be addressed in the Development Agreement, 4092

as well, just as it has been in other similar agreements. Our schools in Ward 2, as we know, are 4093

already severely over-capacity. This is a critical issue.4094

These are just some examples of concern. There are far too many to describe here.  4095

So, as I move toward the conclusion, I've looked at 13 recent golf course closures in 4096

communities across the country and how they're dealing with them. These include one course 4097

that closed 10 years ago in Florida, where the developer was proposing only 800 homes or so. 4098

No decision has been yet made after 10 years. We don't wanna emulate them.  4099

None of the 13 courses I studied had anything close to the number of units being considered here 4100

today. The vast majority of these cases have former 18-hole golf courses being converted to 2 4101

(sic) to 300 homes, not 2100 units at 35 units per acre.  4102

As a way to tackle the new phenomenon, we heard earlier today a, of golf course closures, a 4103

county in Florida put a moratorium on golf course conversions until they could develop 4104

appropriate policies. Maybe we should be considering doing the same. 4105
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I believe, as we've heard today from others, a reasonable and equitable development agreement 4106

is possible, but this is not it. I've worked extremely hard in my first two weeks learning all sides 4107

of the issue, the history and what needs to be done. What we need to do is do better by our 4108

citizens, including the developer. We need consistent information, thoughtful discussion and 4109

dialogue.4110

So I considered the options. To vote yes would be putting in place an agreement where there is 4111

no agreement. Clearly, we hear that today. There is no clarity. There is consistency. In essence, 4112

we don't really know what we are agreeing to. Whoever do, however, we do know we are far 4113

from agreeing.  4114

Now, I want to ask, Mr. Jerbic, if we do vote yes, can we ever change the density that we agreed 4115

to?4116

4117

BRAD JERBIC4118

No. That's a 20-year agreement with a 5-year option, I believe.  4119

 4120 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA4121

Could we change the location of a development once we agree to this? 4122

 4123 

BRAD JERBIC4124

No.4125

 4126 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA4127

Thank you. So what we're saying is if we agree to this, we have no say. And I'm saying we don't 4128

really know what it is that we're agreeing to, and we don't have an agreement. A development 4129

agreement is a contract with, a contract; it assumes agreement.  4130

On the other hand, to vote no, no presents concerns about it’s, what, next in the property, what 4131

goes next, and we've heard that discussion. However, it does bring us closure. I've heard the 4132

appeal for that, on both sides. It resets the discussion if there is going to be a discussion into the 4133
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future. It also levels the playing field for – the future and encourages a dialogue and compromise 4134

heretofore not seen.4135

In speaking with the City Attorney, a new agreement can come back at any time, even if we vote 4136

no to this one. You just can't bring this one back for a year, but you can bring another one back 4137

right away.4138

To abey. We've heard a lot of discussion about delaying today. A vote to abey for two weeks or 4139

even a month is an attractive option. We hope, we would hope it would allow all parties to 4140

address their concerns, and actually come to an agreement. However, it's easily argued, what's 4141

the point? It's been two years.  4142

At this point, and we've heard that length of time repeatedly today, two, two and a half years. 4143

After that period of time, you would expect an agreement to be perfect, to be no typos and 4144

everything squared away. In addition, this meeting has been on the books for six weeks.  4145

What have we done? In the, there has only been minor movement in the agreement by either 4146

party in the last seven days. So what would an abeyment (sic) do? 4147

This Council is the body to determine policy. And I think it's fair to say that this document, as it 4148

stands, whichever version we're looking at right now, is not good policy. I want to, it appears we 4149

are at an impasse. And remember, this is, we are voting on an agreement for all the marbles. 4150

There is no changing it later if we vote yes. If we were working on a major modification or a 4151

general plan amendment, that would be different. 4152

I've heard that we may need an opportunity for the community and the developer to move on. 4153

I've heard that loud and clear today. So, Madame Mayor, I would like to make a motion, and I 4154

move to deny this Development Agreement. And I ask my colleagues to join me in protecting 4155

this community, and respecting the developer. 4156

 4157 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE4158

Mayor, may I ask if Councilman Seroka would consider a motion to maybe withdraw? 4159

 4160 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4161

The, withdraw without prejudice? 4162
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COUNCILWOMAN FIORE4163

Yeah, withdraw without prejudice. 4164

 4165 

COUNCILMAN COFFIN4166

Who has asked that? 4167

 4168 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4169

That's what she's asking. 4170

 4171 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE4172

Yeah.4173

 4174 

BRAD JERBIC4175

It seems to me, and let me talk to Tom, as well. I don't know that there's really any difference. A 4176

withdrawal, since they can come back with another agreement any time, a different agreement, 4177

certainly a different agreement, maybe even this agreement, it would operate almost as the same. 4178

If it's withdrawn, it's off until somebody brings back something different, and I – can tell you we 4179

would be very disappointed if somebody tried to bring this back after there was a withdrawal, 4180

because we would expect something different, if it did come back.  4181

But that's, legally, they almost operate as the same. This would not be on the table. There would 4182

not be another vote. It would be gone until somebody proposed something else.  4183

 4184 

COUNCILWOMAN FIORE4185

Okay.4186

 4187 

MAYOR GOODMAN4188

Any more comments? Because there's a motion on the floor to deny. 4189
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COUNCILWOMAN FIORE4190

So if – I, this is my, I understand the motion to deny. And my biggest concern with denying this 4191

is, again, just having Badlands in – limbo. And so today this is what I heard, and I took some 4192

notes. And so you guys are not upset that you don't have a golf course, like my Silverstone folks 4193

are. My residents are upset about their golf course. You guys are upset about a contractor. Okay. 4194

And you're willing to fight for the developer to go into foreclosure so another developer can 4195

come in. 4196

That's what I heard, and as a woman with intuition, I, it kind of sounds like you have some 4197

lenders and investors and lots of dollars to take this property. And that's basically forcing the – 4198

contractor out of dollars. So, that’s, I'm going to vote no on this, because I want 30 days. So if it 4199

passes, it passes. If it fails, I'm gonna come back with a motion to give us 30 days. 4200

4201

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4202

Mayor? 4203

 4204 

MAYOR GOODMAN4205

Yeah?4206

 4207 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4208

I don't know what it's worth, but we've been at this for quite some time now. And I believe that 4209

we, one last ditch effort, I don't think 30 days is going to impact us. After 30, you know, come 30 4210

days from now, I may have a different feeling, in relation to where we are with this. And so, I 4211

believe, that 30 days is one last ditch effort, because I, what I really don't want is for the golf 4212

course to go down, specifically after the photos that I've seen. 4213

I used to play Badlands quite a bit. It was one of my favorite courses. And so, to see where it is, 4214

in this state right now, it can only get worse. And I just hate that the residents in this area would 4215

have to live with the golf course being in such grave despair moving forward. And so, I would at 4216

least wanna try one more opportunity for a 30-day approach. Thank you.4217
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MAYOR GOODMAN4218

And I'm going to add into that, because we have spent two years at this, and I am going to ask, 4219

after this vote, we'll see where it lands. I still believe that this is something we can work through, 4220

want those 30 days as well, and I still would ask, depending on this may pass, and I really 4221

appreciate everything you've done, your research, everything, your earnestness in this, that, 4222

Councilman Seroka, and really appreciate it. But my – hope would be that with those 30 days 4223

and then at that point asking staff to create this from what everything that they've heard, that I 4224

started with this morning or whenever it was, that we would go there. 4225

But there is a motion on the floor. The vote would be to agree with Councilman Seroka that a 4226

vote for yea is a vote to support his motion that says denial. Correct?  4227

Okay. So I am calling for the vote. Please vote. 4228

4229

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN4230

Madame Mayor – 4231

 4232 

MAYOR GOODMAN4233

Yes – 4234

 4235 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN4236

– can I just say that I would prefer to wait the 30 days, but out of respect for the person who, 4237

who's mostly involved with this, I would go for the denial. 4238

 4239 

MAYOR GOODMAN4240

Okay. So you have to vote. Vote your yea. Okay. And, Councilman Coffin, please vote. And 4241

then I'm going to ask you to post. No, she's voting. Your comment – was?  4242

4243

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN4244

I would prefer – waiting the 30 days. I'm just one of those people that feels you never give up. 4245

However, he has had a lot more time to read the research, and I'm going to go on the basis of 4246
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what he recommends as the leader in that area. 4247

 4248 

MAYOR GOODMAN4249

Oh. All right. So, please post. Everybody's  – 4250

 4251 

COUNCILWOMAN TARKANIAN4252

Oh, I do that all the time. Sorry. 4253

 4254 

MAYOR GOODMAN4255

How do you know? Oh, because you have the vote. 4256

4257

COUNCILMAN BARLOW 4258

Right.4259

 4260 

MAYOR GOODMAN 4261

And then, please post. And the motion carries. 4262

 4263 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4264

Yes, she has to revote. 4265

 4266 

MAYOR GOODMAN4267

We withdraw the whole the vote? Bring it back to us and we all revote? 4268

 4269 

COUNCILMAN BARLOW4270

No, she has it right there. 4271

 4272 

MAYOR GOODMAN Oh, you have it. Yeah. Hold back. Withdraw your vote. And the motion 4273

carries. (Motion to Deny carried with Goodman, Barlow and Fiore voting NO.) So the 4274

motion has been upheld to deny. And thank you all for your support and efforts and where we 4275
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are.4276

So, we will now move, yes, please. Turn your microphone on.  4277

 4278 

CHRIS KAEMPFER4279

If I may just please just thank staff for their hard work in this, especially Brad Jerbic and Tom 4280

Perrigo, and I appreciate what they've done. 4281

 4282 

MAYOR GOODMAN4283

Everybody, please keep your voices down as you're going out. 4284

4285

CHRIS KAEMPFER4286

They know I appreciate what they've done.  4287

 4288 

MAYOR GOODMAN4289

Yes.4290

 4291 

CHRIS KAEMPFER4292

You know that the suggestion that they worked, on behalf of the developer, is insane, and it was 4293

their efforts that got it from 3,000 units to 2,000. It was their efforts that got three towers to two. 4294

 4295 

MAYOR GOODMAN4296

Thank you. No, they work very hard. 4297

 4298 

CHRIS KAEMPFER4299

It was their efforts that got, I mean, staff did an incredible job on behalf of the City and the 4300

neighbors. Thank you. 4301

 4302 

MAYOR GOODMAN4303

Thank you, Mr. Kaempfer. Thank you. Thank you very much. All right. We will then move on to 4304
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Agenda Item 31, Recommending Committee, bills eligible for adoption at this meeting. Bill No. 4305

2017-27. City Attorney, would you read the bill, please.4306

 4307 

BRAD JERBIC4308

Your Honor, I don't have to read it. I'm going to recommend, based on the vote that you just took 4309

last, this is irrelevant and ask that you strike it from the agenda. 4310

4311

MAYOR GOODMAN4312

Thank you. Agenda Item 31 is stricken.  4313

 4314 

END RELATED DISCUSSION 4315

RESUMED RELATED DISCUSSION 4316

 4317 

STACEY CAMPBELL 4318

Thank you, Mayor. We need to vote on 31. 4319

 4320 

MAYOR GOODMAN4321

Okay. May I have a motion on 31? So sorry. The motion to strike, on Agenda Item 31, please. I'll 4322

make the motion to strike 31. 4323

 4324 

COUNCILMAN SEROKA4325

Mayor, I'd like to make a motion to strike Item 31. 4326

 4327 

MAYOR GOODMAN4328

Okay. Thank you. Motion, the Councilwoman is gone. All right, there it is. Please post. Motion 4329

carries. (Motion to Strike carried with Tarkanian excused.) 4330

(END OF DISCUSSION) 4331

/slc;gpb4332
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1 
11-5-15 Reporting

Badlands Development Agreement CLV Comments

Planning

Recitals

City Attorney to provide additional Recital language.

Recital D refers to Resolution R-176-2004 and should be removed, as it is not relevant to the subject 
site. If the Developer wants to meet the intent of the Resolution then such could be stated.

Recital I refers to Resolution R-176-2004 and should be deleted.

Section One – Definitions

“BLM” should be removed from the list of definitions as it is not relevant to the subject site.

“Certificate of Occupancy or C of O” shall be included within the definitions as the development includes 
multi-family development. The definition shall be as follows: 

“That certificate issued by the Building Official pursuant to the City of Las Vegas Administrative 
Code authorizing the use and occupancy of buildings and structures or portions thereof after the 
Building Official has inspected the building or structure and has found no violations of the 
provisions of that code or other laws which are enforced by the enforcement agency.”

“City Infrastructure Improvement Standards” refers to Kyle Canyon and should be revised to Badlands, 
unless no new engineered drawings are to be included within the Design Guidelines and then the entire 
sentence should be deleted.

“Entitlement Request” should include Site Development Plan Review within the definition.

“Grading Plan, Master Rough” shall be removed from the Development Agreement.

B&S: The building code only allows grading of up to 120 acres at one time.  We are okay with 
allowing more as long as it is clear the dust control and erosion control will be strictly enforced 
due to the neighborhood.

“Grading Plan, Specific” shall be removed from the Development Agreement and replaced with current 
UDC grading procedures/requirements.

PW: “Master Sewer Study” shall be revised to read as follows: 

“means the comprehensive study to be approved by the Director of Public Works prior to the 
recordation of the first Development Phase Final Map, including updates required by the City 
where changes to the conditionally approved densities or layout of the development are 
proposed that would impact on-property and/or off-property pipeline capacities and may result 
in additional required off-property sewer improvements.”
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“Master Utility Plan” should be revised to reflect the removal of “….except easements for existing NV 
Energy facilities constructed pursuant to BLM grants,” as it is not relevant to the subject site.

PW: “Parent Map, Tentative” shall be revised to read as follows: 

“means a preliminary subdivision map of the Property that is the first discretionary request by 
the Master Developer to legally subdivide the Property pursuant to the provisions of NRS 278 
and the UDC.  Such map shall delineate all areas to be subdivided, including sanitary sewers, 
roadways and related necessary rights-of-way, easements and common areas.  Furthermore, 
such map shall not include any individual residential lots.”

“Property” should be updated to reflect the correct gross acreage of the site (250.92 acres).

PW: “Village Streets” If the development does not have village streets then this definition is not needed.

Section Two – Applicable Rules and Conflicting Laws

Section 2.02(d) –Area plans would be a plan that the MD could abdicate from. CAO to comment. 

Section Three – Planning and Development of the Community

Section 3.01(a) – single-family and multi-family shall be properly hyphenated.

Section 3.01(f) – Master Developer is to present to the City a justification for why this special provision 
that was allotted to Skye Canyon should be granted to this proposed development. (Alcohol Related 
Uses) 

Section 3.01(g) – This section would be better addressed within the proposed Design Guidelines. Further 
discussion will be needed regarding any special provisions and potential language to be added to the DA 
versus the Design Guidelines.

B&S: Section 3.02(a) - Since this development is primarily commercial based it was discussed to limit the 
number of permits to buildings instead of a percent complete.  We will only issue one C of O for the 
commercial buildings so there will not be a way to track the percentage of available units.

B&S: Section 3.02(b) - It is unsure how they will map the property so this section may need to be 
modified once a decision is made.

PW: Section 3.02(c) – This is typical of single-family residential development. The City will withhold 
building permits versus C of O.

Section 3.02(d) – Language pertaining to Master Rough Grading shall be removed from the Development 
Agreement. This section shall be reworded to reflect conformance with current grading practices.

PW: Not sure if this section applies.
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Section 3.03(d)(ii) – States “Prior to the Planning Commission consideration of a Major Modification that 
increases density in the Community…” This language alludes to the fact that the Major Modification 
process can increase density within the Community, when in actuality on the amending of the 
Development Agreement can do so. This language will need to be revised.

Section 3.05(a)(2)(b) – This section shall be revised to read as follows: “ The addition of similar and 
complementary architectural styles, color palates and detail elements to residential and commercial 
uses.” This language is to be identical to Section 3.03(b)(ii).

Section 3.05(a)(2)(e & f) – Setback encroachments and wall heights and locations are to be placed within 
the Design Guidelines. Please remove from the DA. Regarding encroachments on should also include 
pergolas. 

Section 3.05(b)(2)(ii)(2) – Add the following language, “The Director of Planning may, in their discretion, 
approve or deny….”

Section 3.06(b) – Planned Community should be “Planned Development”. “R4 Zoning Classification…….” 
Should read as follows “…High Density Residential (R-4) zoning classification on the portion of the 
Property shown as Orchestra Village Planning Areas 1 & 2 on the Master Land Use Plan.”  

PW: Section 3.06(c)(i)(4) - Per UDC, should show sanitary sewer layout for connection points and identify 
public sewer easements.

B&S: Section 3.06(c)(ii) - Depending on how the map proceeds this may need to be modified. DA Section 
reference regarding Off-Site Improvements is incorrect.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(ii) - Not sure this section applies. Modify based on Mapping.  Construction phase 
should be tied to drainage improvements.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(ii)(1) - Will not need this as we’re looking at one master Tentative map and 
subsequent Final Maps.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(iii) - Will not need this as we’re looking at one master Tentative map and 
subsequent Final Maps.

Section 3.06(c)(iii) – Is the Master Developer going to be filing all of the Tentative Map requests? Also, if 
the proposed land use designations within the PD are specific to only one set of standards then the last 
sentence should be deleted. If the Master Developer is not submitting all of the Tentative Maps and an 
individual builder can submit a Tentative Map, the last sentence should be revised to reflect the Master 
Developers submitting a letter substantiating their review and approval of the request prior to or at the 
same time as submittal of the Tentative Map.

Section 3.06(c)(iv) – Site Development Plan Review is capitalized.

Section 3.06(c)(iv)(1 & 2) – The review type is Site Development Plan Review (capitalized). These 
sections should follow the same process as the Special Use Permit. If the desire is to have everything 
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administrative the language in this section shall refer to the new process that is to be established by the 
Design Guidelines. The language is to include the Administrative review times and appeal process for the
applicant and City Council, as well as the Master developer written verification letter language.

Section 3.07(b) – There is no need for a model homes to be allowed at an earlier point in time than that 
allowed by the UDC. Master Developer will need to justify why they should have this special provision. 
The City is inclined to have the Master Developer conform to the UDC standards.  

B&S: If there are no models this section can be deleted.

B&S: Section 3.10: Since everything internal is going to be private, is this section needed?

PW: Section 3.10: Replace this section with areas that are not a part of this DA but will need full street 
improvement. – LVVWD property.

Section 3.11 – Community identity monuments would be better served as being part of the Design 
Guidelines and not a subsequent review. If time is not permitting these to be designed and incorporated 
into the Design Guidelines then this language could remain.

PW: Section 3.12 - Possibly no Village Streets so this paragraph should include all common areas.

Section 3.13 – Need a decision on whether or not the Master Developer is going to use a City standard 
street light pole. Need to know if there is going to be a Master HOA responsible or if there is some other 
entity yet to be defined.

PW: May not need if we don’t have a dedicated public street.

Section 3.14 – Master Developer indicated that there would be no blasting and that they would use 
existing materials on-site to create fill and grade. This section will need to be revised to include the 
intended method of processing, as well as if there will be trucking of materials.

B&S: Recommend adding a section about a crushing operation.  It was asked by GC Wallace 
what the requirements are and because of the neighborhood I think it should be identified, i.e. 
noise abatement, hours and any penalties.

Section 3.18 – Please include Republic Services in the Franchise Agreements section.

Section 3.19 – The proposed commercial section of the overall development is within the Planned 
Development (PD) portion. The development standards to be applied to this land use designation shall 
be prescribed within the Design Guidelines or deferred to a specific City of Las Vegas zoning district [i.e. 
C-1 (Limited Commercial)]. The multi-family (hyphenated) is found within both the PD portion and the 
straight R-4 zoned portion of the property. The PD portion will need to development standards as 
prescribed within the Design Guidelines and the straight zoned portion will defer to the UDC zoning 
district development standards. This is best done by calling out “Planning Areas” numbers or some other 
identifier within the Master Land Use Plan.
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Section 4.01(a) – The “similar entity” will need to be defined within the definitions, described within the 
Recitals, as well as anywhere else maintenance or responsibilities are discussed and change of 
assignment language is present.

PW: This section shall be revised to read as follows: “Master Developer agrees to organize a 
Master HOA or similar entity to manage and maintain sidewalk, common landscape areas, any 
landscaping within the street rights-of-way including median islands, public drainage facilities 
identified as privately maintained located within on the property, including but not limited to, 
rip-rap lined channels and natural arroyos as determined by the Master Drainage Study or 
applicable Technical Drainage Studies, but excluding City dedicated public streets, curbs, gutters, 
streetlights upon City-dedicated public streets, City owned traffic control devices and traffic 
control signage and permanent flood control facilities as identified on the Regional Flood 
Control District Master Plan Update that are eligible for maintenance funding.”

Section 4.01(b) – This section speaks to a Nevada non-profit entity for the HOA or “similar entity”. The 
Master Developer has indicated a for-profit management group (Landscape maintenance) so 
clarification is needed. 

PW: Section 4.02 – This section shall include the following sentence: “The Flood Control portion of the 
Maintenance Plan shall comply with Title 20.10.”

Section 4.04 – This section will be subject to negotiation. The City wants assurances through 
development triggers/milestones that will require improvements to be installed. There is no desire to 
leave such improvements to market demands or uncertainty.  

PW: Not sure we’ll have public streetlight with this project, so the language will need to be 
changed if we don’t. The following sentence is to be eliminated from the section: “Master 
Developer or Master HOA or similar entity will maintain all temporary detention basins identified in 
the Master Drainage Study.”

Section 5.01 – Public facilities or contributions towards public facilities will need to be placed here. 
Commitment by the Master developer to provide contributions towards things such as pedestrian 
bridges, open space facilities to service their Community and the community at large will need to be 
negotiated based upon amount open space provided and intensification of service demand due to new 
residents. At a proposed 3,080 residential units at a ratio of 2.5 persons per unit yields 7,700 residents. 
An open space provision of 2.5 acres per 1,000 residents would result in the provision of 19.25 acres of 
open space being required. Planning Area 1 contains 60,325 square feet (approximately 1.38 acres or 
31%) of recreation/open space for where 4.5 acres would be required (720 units X 2.5 persons = 1,800 
residents / 1,000 X 2.5 acres = 4.5 acres).

Area Units Provide Open Space Required Open Space
1 720 60,325 SF 1.38 Acres 196,020 SF 4.5 acres -135,695 SF -3.12 Acres
2 1500 TBD TBD 408,375 SF 9.375 acres TBD TBD
3 800 TBD TBD 217,800 SF 5 acres TBD TBD

Forrest 60 TBD TBD 16,335 SF .375 acres TBD TBD
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Total 3,080 TBD TBD 838,530 SF 19.25 acres TBD TBD

Section 6.01 – Conservation areas placed behind gates, which will not be accessible for the mutual 
enjoyment of the Community within and outside of the community will not be considered open space 
and will need to be differentiated within this section of the DA.

PW: Section 7.02 - No BLM that we’re aware of. Possibly delete this section.

PW: Section 7.04(a) - One of the criteria is that calculations are done using a pipes’ capacity at ½ full. 
Please revise the language as follows: “Design and Construction of Sanitary Sewer Facilities Shall 
Conform to the Master Sanitary Sewer Study.  Master Developer shall design, utilizing City’s sewer 
planning criteria, and construct all sanitary sewer main facilities that are identified as Master 
Developer’s responsibility in the Master Sanitary Sewer Study.”

PW: Section 7.04(c) – Please add the following language as a new subsection: 

(c) Updates. The Director of Public Works may require an update to the Master Sanitary 
Sewer Study as a condition of approval of the following land use applications: tentative map, residential 
or commercial; site development plan review, multifamily or commercial; or parcel map if those 
applications are not in substantial conformance with the approved Master Land Use Plan or Master 
Sanitary Sewer Study.  The update must be approved prior to the approval of any construction drawings.  
An update to the exhibit in the approved Master Sanitary Sewer Study depicting proposed development 
phasing in accordance with the Development Agreement shall be submitted for approval by the Sanitary 
Sewer Planning Section.  

PW: Section 7.05 - Not needed if no Village Street.

PW: Section 7.05(e)(I & ii) - Anticipate approval of master studies prior to DA going to City Council. 

PW: Section 7.05(e)(iv) - Main Storm Systems must be in place or bonded for prior to approval of civil 
plans for a given development area.

Section 7.08(d) – The construction of On-site and Off-site improvements should be tied to development 
milestones/dates and not be fluid , so that there is a high level of assurance the Master Developer will 
improve the property beyond the first phase and any new assignees will also be held to the 
improvement requirements if the original Master Developer defaults.

Section 7.09(d) - The construction of drainage improvements should be tied to development 
milestones/dates and not be fluid , so that there is a high level of assurance the Master Developer will 
improve the property beyond the first phase and any new assignees will also be held to the 
improvement requirements if the original Master Developer defaults.
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PW: Provide agreed triggers for construction phasing.  CLV would like to hold permits on last 2 
buildings in area 2 till we have construction plans and a bond for the complete storm drain 
improvements.

PW: Section 8.01 - We don’t think this section is applicable, but if used it can only be used for items 
identified on the Master Flood Control District Facilities within the Property.  SID must be based on 
maximum density and pro-rated.

Section 10.03 – This section speaks to the limitations of monetary damages due to breach of contract. 
The City may want to explore a higher level of assurance through the revising of this section to include 
penalties?

Section 11.02(b)(2) – Do we want investment firms to be “pre-approved transferees”? This was only in 
the Skye Canyon DA as a result of Wachovia. I am not sure this is applicable.

Section 11.04 – This section includes the defense against legal action related to the waiver of any 
proximity restriction specified in the UDC for alcohol related uses. If the Master Developer does not 
bring forth justification for why Section 3.01(f) should apply to this development this portion of the 
section can be deleted.

Section 11.13 – The CAO will review this section, as to whether or to have this in the agreement.

Design Guidelines 

Development Standards specific to the Forrest at Queensridge

Building Fire Sprinkler Systems 

All buildings subject to this agreement shall be provided with an approved automatic 
fire sprinkler system designed and installed in accordance with the Fire Code. 

Exceptions: 
Detached structures located more than 25 feet from habitable structures, less 
than 500 square feet in area, not meant for human habitation, 
Open faced canopy structures (Ramadas) 

The onsite water system design shall accommodate the requirements for building fire 
sprinkler systems. 

(Based upon reduced roadway design speeds, reduced roadway width, longer dead-ends and cul-
de-sacs, and relaxed secondary access requirements, the time for emergency vehicles is 
increased above that of conventional development patterns within the City of Las Vegas.) 

Roadways

Vehicle Turnouts. Vehicle turnouts shall comply with the following:
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Turnouts shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide and 80 feet long with a minimum 10 foot taper 
at each end of the turnout. 
Roadways shall have turnouts every 800 feet or at the midpoint if the road is 1,600 feet or 
less. Turnouts may be installed on either side of the road.
When approved by the Fire & Rescue, turnarounds may be used in lieu of vehicle turnouts.

Driveways

For the purposes of this agreement, driveways are private drives providing access from a roadway to 
a home or homes.

Driveways shall be a minimum of 16 feet in width and built to accommodate fire 
department apparatus.
Driveways greater in length than 150 feet shall be provided a fire department vehicle 
turnaround.
Electronically controlled access gates associated with driveways of length greater than 50 
feet shall comply with the fire code to provide immediate access for emergency response.

Vegetation

A vegetation management plan shall be developed and submitted to the fire department for 
approval. Fire-resistive vegetation shall be utilized where possible to prevent the spread of fire 
within the proposed conservation overlay area. Natural fire breaks shall be incorporated within 
the conservation overlay area.
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Planning 11/05/15 DA Highlights 

 

1. The Design Guidelines are need for review and comment prior to the Development Agreement 
being able to be moved forward.  

2. A Master Rough Grading Plan shall be removed from the DA and all language shall reflect 
conformance to the current adopted grading development standards. 

3. Residential Adjacency Standards are to be addressed in the Design Guidelines. 
4. Model Homes do not seem relevant to this project; therefore the language should be removed. 
5. The City wants assurances through development triggers/milestones that will require 

improvements (Flood, drainage, etc.) to be installed. There is no desire to leave such 
improvements to market demands or uncertainty. 

6. Provision of open space/recreation is to be provided at a rate of 2.5 acres per 1,000 residents. 
Contributions to improvements and offsite recreation facilities may be negotiated as acceptable 
means by which to mitigate on-site deficiencies.  
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ADDENDUM

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is hereby attached to and made a part of the 
Development Agreement (“Agreement”) between the City of Las Vegas (“City”) and 180 Land 
Company LLC, a Nevada limited liability company (“Master Developer”).  

WHEREAS: 

A. The City and Master Developer have negotiated the Agreement in good faith, pursuant to  
NRS 278 and Title 19, to establish long-range plans for the development of the Property as 
defined in the Agreement.   

B.   Based on neighborhood input, after numerous meetings with residents surrounding the 
Property, the City and Master Developer wish to clarify certain topics in the Agreement as 
outlined herein.  

C.  The City staff has recommended approval of the Agreement identified as Director’s 
Business Item 63602 (DIR-63602) and reaffirms its recommendation for approval as amended 
herein.      

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

1. In Development Area 4, the minimum one-half (1/2) acre lots allowed under the Design 
Guidelines, as defined in the Agreement as Exhibit D, shall be limited to Section A on 
Exhibit B.  All other Sections on Exhibit B will have lots larger than one-half (1/2) acre 
and up to five (5) acres or more. No lot will be smaller than the adjacent existing lot(s) 
located outside the Property.         

2. The following shall be added to Section 3.01(g)(ii) of the Agreement pertaining to the 
landscaped space in Development Area 4:  “Upon completion of Development Area 4, 
there shall be a minimum of seven thousand five hundred (7,500) trees in Development 
Area 4”.  

3. There shall be no blasting on the Property during the term of the Agreement.   

4. The Development Phasing, Exhibit F to the Agreement, shall be clarified under 
Development Area 4 to define “access ways” as rough roads within Development Area 4 
without paving.  

5. The Development Phasing, Exhibit F to the Agreement, shall be clarified under the Notes 
Section to state that the “clear and grub” option may only apply to the green space or turf 
space on the existing golf course and not to the existing desert portions of the golf course.    

All other terms of the Agreement remain unchanged. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum on this 
__________day of _______________________, 2016. 

CITY:

City Council, City of Las Vegas

By:
Mayor

Approved as to Form:

City Attorney

Attest:

City Clerk

By:
LuAnn Holmes, City Clerk
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Master Developer 

180 LAND COMPANY LLC,

a Nevada limited liability company

By:

Name:
Title:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me

on this _____ day of ____________________, 2016.

Notary Public in and for said County and State
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PARTIES:
PROPERTY:

Total
Development 

Area 1
Development 

Area 2-3
Development 

Area 4
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Substantial Changes to the Development Agreement 
for the Two Fifty 

Based on Resident Feedback
(July 27, 2017)

Tudor Park Exhibit F was updated to reflect changes in Section 3.01(h).

In Section 3.01(b)(vii), the language related to the watering of the Property was deleted.

In Section 3.01(h), a minimum wall height of six (6) feet but up to ten (10) feet was 
added to separate Development Areas 1, 2 and 3 from Development Area 4.

In Section 3.01(h), to address the Ravel Court homeowners’ concerns, a minimum of a 
two (2) gross acre lot will be located immediately adjacent to the northeastern property 
line of the five (5) Ravel Court homeowners that abut Development Area 3.  The 
minimum two (2) gross acre lot shall be in lieu of the "No Building Structures Zone" and 
“Transition Zone” referenced therein.  

In Section 3.01(h), the Tudor Park homeowners adjacent to Development Area 3 shall 
be given twenty (20) feet of property adjacent to their existing residential lots, which 
upon transfer, shall no longer be a part of The Two Fifty and shall be automatically 
released from the encumbrances of this Agreement without the necessity of executing or 
recording any instrument of release.  Prior to transfer of the aforementioned twenty (20) 
feet of property, Master Developer shall elevate the twenty (20) feet of property to  
approximately the same elevation  as the applicable homeowner’s rear yard elevation 
and densely landscape the five  (5) feet, within the aforementioned twenty (20) feet, 
nearest to Development Area 3 to obstruct the view of Development Area 3.  For 
purposes herein, densely landscaped shall mean a minimum of thirty-six (36) inch boxed 
trees located twelve (12) feet on center.    

Section 3.01(k) was added as follows: 

Landscape Easements. The development of the Property will be done in a manner 
which does not affect the use of the portions of the Property upon which certain 
landscape easements have been granted in favor of adjacent property owners for the 
purposes specified within each respective landscape easement.   

In Section 4.02, the following was added:  

In instances where Master HOAs, Sub-HOAs or similar Entities are responsible for the 
private  maintenance of public facilities, a private maintenance covenant shall be filed 
upon the respective property allowing enforcement  rights in favor of the City (where
such rights do not exist under applicable code), including the right of City to levy 
assessments on the property owners for costs incurred by City in maintaining the 
respective facilities, which assessments shall constitute liens against the land and the
individual lots within the subdivision which may be executed upon.  The City shall have 
the right to review the declarations for the purpose of determining compliance with the 
provisions of this Section.   

Section 5.03(d)(ii) was amended to incorporate the City’s approval of the traffic signal on 
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Rampart Boulevard at the first driveway located south of Alta Drive to Development Area 
1 as part of the initial Developer-constructed improvements for the first phase in 
Development Area 1. 

The following language submitted by Boyd Gaming and approved by the Planning 
Commission was added as Section 5.03(e):  

Intersection of Alta and Clubhouse Drive. Upon approval by the City of the 1500th

permitted dwelling unit within the Community, Master Developer shall prepare a traffic 
impact analysis to reexamine the intersection of Alta and Clubhouse Drive and include 
recommendations for any necessary mitigation measures, which may include providing 
three northbound travel lanes for Clubhouse Drive approaching Alta. Boyd Gaming 
Corporation, as owner of the Suncoast Hotel & Casino on the north side of Alta at 
Clubhouse Drive, as well as the City shall be provided copies of the analysis for their 
review.  If either Boyd Gaming or the City does not agree with the recommendations, the 
traffic impact analysis shall be reviewed and approved by the City Council at a public 
hearing.  Any mitigation measures will be implemented by the Master Developer at its 
sole expense.  

In Section 7.01, the Term was amended from 30 years to 20 years. 

In Section 8.01, the following language was added: 

The report shall contain information regarding the progress of development within the 
Community, including, without limitation: 

(a) data showing the total number of residential units built and approved on the date 
of the report; 

(b) specific densities within the Community as a whole; and
(c) the status of development within the Community and the anticipated phases of 

development for the next calendar year.

In the event Master Developer fails to submit such a report within thirty (30) days 
following written notice from City that the deadline for such a report has passed, Master 
Developer shall be in default of this provision and City shall prepare such a report and 
conduct the required review in such form and manner as City may determine in its sole 
discretion. City shall charge Master Developer for its reasonable expenses, fees and 
costs incurred in conducting such review and preparing such report. If at the time of 
review an issue not previously identified in writing is required to be addressed, the 
review at the request of either party may be continued to afford reasonable time for 
response.

Signature lines were added for Seventy Acres and Fore Stars. 

001499

5694



001500

5695



001501

5696



001502

5697



001503

5698



001504

5699



001505

5700



001506

5701



001507

5702



001508

5703



001509

5704



001510

5705



001511

5706



001512

5707



001513

5708



001514

5709



001515

5710



001516

5711



001517

5712



001518

5713



001519

5714



001520

5715



001521

5716



Exhibit 57

5717



1 
11-5-15 Reporting

Badlands Development Agreement CLV Comments

Planning

Recitals

City Attorney to provide additional Recital language.

Recital D refers to Resolution R-176-2004 and should be removed, as it is not relevant to the subject 
site. If the Developer wants to meet the intent of the Resolution then such could be stated.

Recital I refers to Resolution R-176-2004 and should be deleted.

Section One – Definitions

“BLM” should be removed from the list of definitions as it is not relevant to the subject site.

“Certificate of Occupancy or C of O” shall be included within the definitions as the development includes 
multi-family development. The definition shall be as follows: 

“That certificate issued by the Building Official pursuant to the City of Las Vegas Administrative 
Code authorizing the use and occupancy of buildings and structures or portions thereof after the 
Building Official has inspected the building or structure and has found no violations of the 
provisions of that code or other laws which are enforced by the enforcement agency.”

“City Infrastructure Improvement Standards” refers to Kyle Canyon and should be revised to Badlands, 
unless no new engineered drawings are to be included within the Design Guidelines and then the entire 
sentence should be deleted.

“Entitlement Request” should include Site Development Plan Review within the definition.

“Grading Plan, Master Rough” shall be removed from the Development Agreement.

B&S: The building code only allows grading of up to 120 acres at one time.  We are okay with 
allowing more as long as it is clear the dust control and erosion control will be strictly enforced 
due to the neighborhood.

“Grading Plan, Specific” shall be removed from the Development Agreement and replaced with current 
UDC grading procedures/requirements.

PW: “Master Sewer Study” shall be revised to read as follows: 

“means the comprehensive study to be approved by the Director of Public Works prior to the 
recordation of the first Development Phase Final Map, including updates required by the City 
where changes to the conditionally approved densities or layout of the development are 
proposed that would impact on-property and/or off-property pipeline capacities and may result 
in additional required off-property sewer improvements.”
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“Master Utility Plan” should be revised to reflect the removal of “….except easements for existing NV 
Energy facilities constructed pursuant to BLM grants,” as it is not relevant to the subject site.

PW: “Parent Map, Tentative” shall be revised to read as follows: 

“means a preliminary subdivision map of the Property that is the first discretionary request by 
the Master Developer to legally subdivide the Property pursuant to the provisions of NRS 278 
and the UDC.  Such map shall delineate all areas to be subdivided, including sanitary sewers, 
roadways and related necessary rights-of-way, easements and common areas.  Furthermore, 
such map shall not include any individual residential lots.”

“Property” should be updated to reflect the correct gross acreage of the site (250.92 acres).

PW: “Village Streets” If the development does not have village streets then this definition is not needed.

Section Two – Applicable Rules and Conflicting Laws

Section 2.02(d) –Area plans would be a plan that the MD could abdicate from. CAO to comment. 

Section Three – Planning and Development of the Community

Section 3.01(a) – single-family and multi-family shall be properly hyphenated.

Section 3.01(f) – Master Developer is to present to the City a justification for why this special provision 
that was allotted to Skye Canyon should be granted to this proposed development. (Alcohol Related 
Uses) 

Section 3.01(g) – This section would be better addressed within the proposed Design Guidelines. Further 
discussion will be needed regarding any special provisions and potential language to be added to the DA 
versus the Design Guidelines.

B&S: Section 3.02(a) - Since this development is primarily commercial based it was discussed to limit the 
number of permits to buildings instead of a percent complete.  We will only issue one C of O for the 
commercial buildings so there will not be a way to track the percentage of available units.

B&S: Section 3.02(b) - It is unsure how they will map the property so this section may need to be 
modified once a decision is made.

PW: Section 3.02(c) – This is typical of single-family residential development. The City will withhold 
building permits versus C of O.

Section 3.02(d) – Language pertaining to Master Rough Grading shall be removed from the Development 
Agreement. This section shall be reworded to reflect conformance with current grading practices.

PW: Not sure if this section applies.
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Section 3.03(d)(ii) – States “Prior to the Planning Commission consideration of a Major Modification that 
increases density in the Community…” This language alludes to the fact that the Major Modification 
process can increase density within the Community, when in actuality on the amending of the 
Development Agreement can do so. This language will need to be revised.

Section 3.05(a)(2)(b) – This section shall be revised to read as follows: “ The addition of similar and 
complementary architectural styles, color palates and detail elements to residential and commercial 
uses.” This language is to be identical to Section 3.03(b)(ii).

Section 3.05(a)(2)(e & f) – Setback encroachments and wall heights and locations are to be placed within 
the Design Guidelines. Please remove from the DA. Regarding encroachments on should also include 
pergolas. 

Section 3.05(b)(2)(ii)(2) – Add the following language, “The Director of Planning may, in their discretion, 
approve or deny….”

Section 3.06(b) – Planned Community should be “Planned Development”. “R4 Zoning Classification…….” 
Should read as follows “…High Density Residential (R-4) zoning classification on the portion of the 
Property shown as Orchestra Village Planning Areas 1 & 2 on the Master Land Use Plan.”  

PW: Section 3.06(c)(i)(4) - Per UDC, should show sanitary sewer layout for connection points and identify 
public sewer easements.

B&S: Section 3.06(c)(ii) - Depending on how the map proceeds this may need to be modified. DA Section 
reference regarding Off-Site Improvements is incorrect.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(ii) - Not sure this section applies. Modify based on Mapping.  Construction phase 
should be tied to drainage improvements.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(ii)(1) - Will not need this as we’re looking at one master Tentative map and 
subsequent Final Maps.

PW: Section 3.06(c)(iii) - Will not need this as we’re looking at one master Tentative map and 
subsequent Final Maps.

Section 3.06(c)(iii) – Is the Master Developer going to be filing all of the Tentative Map requests? Also, if 
the proposed land use designations within the PD are specific to only one set of standards then the last 
sentence should be deleted. If the Master Developer is not submitting all of the Tentative Maps and an 
individual builder can submit a Tentative Map, the last sentence should be revised to reflect the Master 
Developers submitting a letter substantiating their review and approval of the request prior to or at the 
same time as submittal of the Tentative Map.

Section 3.06(c)(iv) – Site Development Plan Review is capitalized.

Section 3.06(c)(iv)(1 & 2) – The review type is Site Development Plan Review (capitalized). These 
sections should follow the same process as the Special Use Permit. If the desire is to have everything 
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administrative the language in this section shall refer to the new process that is to be established by the 
Design Guidelines. The language is to include the Administrative review times and appeal process for the
applicant and City Council, as well as the Master developer written verification letter language.

Section 3.07(b) – There is no need for a model homes to be allowed at an earlier point in time than that 
allowed by the UDC. Master Developer will need to justify why they should have this special provision. 
The City is inclined to have the Master Developer conform to the UDC standards.  

B&S: If there are no models this section can be deleted.

B&S: Section 3.10: Since everything internal is going to be private, is this section needed?

PW: Section 3.10: Replace this section with areas that are not a part of this DA but will need full street 
improvement. – LVVWD property.

Section 3.11 – Community identity monuments would be better served as being part of the Design 
Guidelines and not a subsequent review. If time is not permitting these to be designed and incorporated 
into the Design Guidelines then this language could remain.

PW: Section 3.12 - Possibly no Village Streets so this paragraph should include all common areas.

Section 3.13 – Need a decision on whether or not the Master Developer is going to use a City standard 
street light pole. Need to know if there is going to be a Master HOA responsible or if there is some other 
entity yet to be defined.

PW: May not need if we don’t have a dedicated public street.

Section 3.14 – Master Developer indicated that there would be no blasting and that they would use 
existing materials on-site to create fill and grade. This section will need to be revised to include the 
intended method of processing, as well as if there will be trucking of materials.

B&S: Recommend adding a section about a crushing operation.  It was asked by GC Wallace 
what the requirements are and because of the neighborhood I think it should be identified, i.e. 
noise abatement, hours and any penalties.

Section 3.18 – Please include Republic Services in the Franchise Agreements section.

Section 3.19 – The proposed commercial section of the overall development is within the Planned 
Development (PD) portion. The development standards to be applied to this land use designation shall 
be prescribed within the Design Guidelines or deferred to a specific City of Las Vegas zoning district [i.e. 
C-1 (Limited Commercial)]. The multi-family (hyphenated) is found within both the PD portion and the 
straight R-4 zoned portion of the property. The PD portion will need to development standards as 
prescribed within the Design Guidelines and the straight zoned portion will defer to the UDC zoning 
district development standards. This is best done by calling out “Planning Areas” numbers or some other 
identifier within the Master Land Use Plan.
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5 
11-5-15 Reporting

Section 4.01(a) – The “similar entity” will need to be defined within the definitions, described within the 
Recitals, as well as anywhere else maintenance or responsibilities are discussed and change of 
assignment language is present.

PW: This section shall be revised to read as follows: “Master Developer agrees to organize a 
Master HOA or similar entity to manage and maintain sidewalk, common landscape areas, any 
landscaping within the street rights-of-way including median islands, public drainage facilities 
identified as privately maintained located within on the property, including but not limited to, 
rip-rap lined channels and natural arroyos as determined by the Master Drainage Study or 
applicable Technical Drainage Studies, but excluding City dedicated public streets, curbs, gutters, 
streetlights upon City-dedicated public streets, City owned traffic control devices and traffic 
control signage and permanent flood control facilities as identified on the Regional Flood 
Control District Master Plan Update that are eligible for maintenance funding.”

Section 4.01(b) – This section speaks to a Nevada non-profit entity for the HOA or “similar entity”. The 
Master Developer has indicated a for-profit management group (Landscape maintenance) so 
clarification is needed. 

PW: Section 4.02 – This section shall include the following sentence: “The Flood Control portion of the 
Maintenance Plan shall comply with Title 20.10.”

Section 4.04 – This section will be subject to negotiation. The City wants assurances through 
development triggers/milestones that will require improvements to be installed. There is no desire to 
leave such improvements to market demands or uncertainty.  

PW: Not sure we’ll have public streetlight with this project, so the language will need to be 
changed if we don’t. The following sentence is to be eliminated from the section: “Master 
Developer or Master HOA or similar entity will maintain all temporary detention basins identified in 
the Master Drainage Study.”

Section 5.01 – Public facilities or contributions towards public facilities will need to be placed here. 
Commitment by the Master developer to provide contributions towards things such as pedestrian 
bridges, open space facilities to service their Community and the community at large will need to be 
negotiated based upon amount open space provided and intensification of service demand due to new 
residents. At a proposed 3,080 residential units at a ratio of 2.5 persons per unit yields 7,700 residents. 
An open space provision of 2.5 acres per 1,000 residents would result in the provision of 19.25 acres of 
open space being required. Planning Area 1 contains 60,325 square feet (approximately 1.38 acres or 
31%) of recreation/open space for where 4.5 acres would be required (720 units X 2.5 persons = 1,800 
residents / 1,000 X 2.5 acres = 4.5 acres).

Area Units Provide Open Space Required Open Space
1 720 60,325 SF 1.38 Acres 196,020 SF 4.5 acres -135,695 SF -3.12 Acres
2 1500 TBD TBD 408,375 SF 9.375 acres TBD TBD
3 800 TBD TBD 217,800 SF 5 acres TBD TBD

Forrest 60 TBD TBD 16,335 SF .375 acres TBD TBD
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